
Resources Department
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE D

Members of Licensing Sub Committee D are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on, 27 November 2018 at 6.30 
pm.

Lesley Seary
Chief Executive

Enquiries to : Jackie Tunstall
Tel : 020 7527 3068
E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk
Despatched : 19 November 2018

Membership Substitute

Councillor Nick Wayne (Chair)
Councillor Marian Spall (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Kadeema Woodbyrne

All other members of the Licensing 
committee

Quorum: is 3 Councillors

Welcome : Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. 
Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached.

Public Document Pack



A. Formal matters Page

1. Introductions and procedure

2. Apologies for absence

3. Declarations of substitute members

4. Declarations of interest

If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business:
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it 
becomes apparent;

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.  

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item.

If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in 
the discussion and vote on the item.

*(a)Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain.

(b)Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union.

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between 
you or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) 
and the council.

(d)Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.
(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 

longer.
(f) Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 

which you or your partner have a beneficial interest.
 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a 

place of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of 
the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.  

This applies to all members present at the meeting.

5. Order of Business

6. Minutes of Previous Meeting 1 - 6

B. Items for Decision Page



1. 177a Blackstock Road, N5 2LT - New premises licence 7 - 46

2. Benugo, 116 St John Street, EC1V 4JS - New premises licence 47 - 80

3. Fora Space, 71 Central Street, EC1V 8BU - Premises licence variation 81 - 
116

4. The Sekforde Arms, 34 Sekforde Street, EC1R OHH - Review of premises 
licence

117 - 
472

C. Urgent non-exempt items

Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered 
urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will 
be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.

D. Exclusion of public and press

To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the 
agenda, any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or 
confidential information within the terms of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the 
press and public during discussion thereof.

E. Urgent Exempt Items (if any)

Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently 
by reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for urgency will be 
agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.



ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES - 

PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

INTRODUCTION TIME 
GUIDE

1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-
Committee, Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have 
been given permission to appear) to introduce themselves.

2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as 
detailed below.

CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:

N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to 
present a summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the 
report.

3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or 
representations.
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions.

4)  Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.

10 mins

5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.

6)  Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.

10 mins

7)  The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.

8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify 
any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear.

10 mins

9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.

10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing 
Policy.

11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of 
representations     given above.

CASE SUMMARIES

12)  Responsible Authorities 2
13)  Interested parties mins
14)  Applicant each

DELIBERATION AND DECISION

15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 
remain with the Sub-Committee.

16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 
clarification.

17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing.



ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES - 

PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING REVIEW APPLICATIONS UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

INTRODUCTION TIME 
GUIDE

1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-Committee, 
Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have been given 
permission to appear) to introduce themselves.

2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as 
detailed below.

CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:
N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to present 
a summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the report.

3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or 
representations.
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions.

4)  The applicant (interested party or responsible authority) to present the key points of their 
representations; and clarify any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the 
Authority, may appear.

10 
mins

5)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicant (interested party or responsible authority) on matters 
arising from their submission.

6)  Other representatives (interested party or responsible authority) to present the key points of 
their representations; and clarify any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by 
the Authority, may appear.

10 
mins

7)  The Sub-Committee to question the other representatives (interested party or responsible authority) 
on matters arising from their submission.

8) The licensee to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify 
any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear.

10 
mins

9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.

10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing 
Policy.

11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of 
representations     given above.

CASE SUMMARIES

12)  Applicant 2
13)  Other representatives mins
14)  Licensee each

DELIBERATION AND DECISION

15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 
remain with the Sub-Committee.

16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 
clarification.

17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing.



This page is intentionally left blank



1

London Borough of Islington

Licensing Sub Committee D -  27 September 2018

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee D held at Committee Room 4, Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on  27 September 2018 at 6.30 pm.

Present: Councillors: Nick Wayne (Chair), Marian Spall (Vice-Chair) and 
Kadeema Woodbyrne

Councillor Nick Wayne in the Chair

8 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1)
Councillor Nick Wayne welcomed everyone to the meeting and officers and members 
introduced themselves.  The procedure for the conduct of the meeting was outlined.

9 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2)
None.

10 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3)
There were no declarations of substitute members. 

11 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4)
There were no declarations of interest. 

12 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5)
The order of business would be Item B2, B1 and B3.

13 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6)
RESOLVED
That the minutes of the meeting held on the 17 July 2018 be confirmed as a correct record 
and the Chair be authorised to sign them.

14 ELITE CAFE, 177-187 WHITECROSS STREET, EC1Y 8QP - NEW PREMISES LICENCE 
(Item B1)
A local resident spoke against the application.  He raised concerns about the cumulative 
impact of the licence, particularly regarding the late hours of opening. He stated that he 
would have no objection if the hour for the sale of alcohol was reduced to 10.30pm during 
the week.  He also raised concerns regarding hours on Sundays as other local premises 
were not open on this day and this was the one night that was quiet.   He asked that the 
premises close at 10.30 pm on a Sunday or preferably in the afternoon and open for lunch 
only.  He did not consider that there needed to be another licensed premises in the area 
and was concerned about the number of covers which he said would be 50 or more.

In response to questions the local resident stated that he had known the applicant for over 
ten years and believed he was a fit and proper person to manage the business but 
considered that an earlier closing time would be preferable.  It was noted that there was a 
small pub that was quite far away but the nearest pub was very large but was not open on a 
Sunday. 

Page 1

Agenda Item A6



Licensing Sub Committee D -  27 September 2018

2

The applicant’s representative stated that he would modify the application for the sale of 
alcohol to end at 10.30pm with a closing time of 11pm Monday to Sunday.  The applicant 
managed a number of premises and had been a licence holder for 13 years.  Proposed 
conditions 17 and 18 addressed resident concerns and ensured that alcohol would only be 
served with a table meal.  The applicant would be the designated premises supervisor and 
the application proposed comprehensive conditions.  There would be about 35-40 covers. 
The application fell within the framework hours detailed in the licensing policy, fell within the 
exceptions to the Bunhill cumulative impact policy and complied with licensing policy 2.  The 
applicant’s representative also advised that the Home Office guidance be considered when 
making the decision.

In response to questions it was noted that there would be no delivery service.  The nature of 
the business was not expected to change although it was the intention to serve burgers in 
the evening and alcohol would be sold with those meals.  The premises were open until 
4.30pm currently but with alcohol these hours would be extended.  The applicant modified 
the application for Sunday and reduced the hour for the sale of alcohol to 9.30 pm.  

In summary, the local resident stated that it would not want the hours to be too long and on 
Sundays the area was very quiet with only one public house open.  Tables and chairs were 
near to a residential area and could cause disturbance.  He welcomed the reduction in 
hours on a Sunday but would prefer the closing hour to be earlier. The applicant advised 
that the closing time on Sunday was proposed to be 10pm and stated that this was not a 
precedent as all cases would be considered on their merits.
  
RESOLVED
1) That the application for a new premises licence, in respect of Elite Café, 187 

Whitecross Street, EC1V 8QP be granted to allow:-

a) The sale by retail of alcohol, on supplies only, from 10 am until 10:30 pm Monday to 
Saturday and on Sundays from 10 am until 9pm. 

b) The premises to be open to the public from 6am to 11pm Monday to Saturdays and 
from 6am to 9.30pm on Sunday.

2) That conditions detailed on pages 35 and 36 of the agenda shall be applied to the 
licence.

REASONS FOR DECISION
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy. 

The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policies 2 & 3.  The premises fall 
within the Bunhill cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 3 creates a rebuttable 
presumption that applications for the grant or variation of premises licences which are likely 
to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused following the receipt of 
representations, unless the applicant can demonstrate in the operation schedule that there 
will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives.

Six local resident objections had been received.  There had been no representations made 
by the responsible authorities. Conditions had been agreed with the Noise Team.

One resident made oral submissions at the hearing and requested the hours applied for be 
reduced to 10.30pm for last sales and to 11pm for closure.

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee D -  27 September 2018

3

The applicant agreed to this at the hearing and went further by amending the application 
such that the time for last sales would be 9.30pm and closure at 10pm on a Sunday.

The Sub-Committee noted that the hours sought were within the hours specified in licensing 
policy 6.

The Sub-Committee concluded that the applications should be granted subject to the 
conditions set out in the application papers and agreed to with the Noise Team. In addition, 
the Sub-Committee concluded that last sales should be at 9pm and closing time be at 
9.30pm on a Sunday.

15 NEW WOKS KITCHEN, 334-336 CALEDONIAN ROAD, N1 1BB - NEW PREMISES 
LICENCE (Item B2)
The applicant requested an adjournment as a solicitor had just been engaged and further 
time was required.

RESOLVED that the application be adjourned to a future meeting.

16 AJ NEWS, 127 WHITECROSS STREET, EC1Y 8PU - REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE 
(Item B3)
The licensing officer reported that there had been a site visit by the licensing team on the 27 
September 2018 and there had been some improvements.  A refusals record was now 
being kept, efforts had been made to keep invoices in an orderly fashion and the CCTV 
seemed to be in operation although this could not be operated by the member of staff 
present.

In response to questions the trading standards officer stated that no invoices had been 
produced for the illicit alcohol and only some invoices over the past two months had been 
produced.  There did not appear to be the amount of invoices available for the amount of 
stock on the premises.

The trading standards officer referred to her report and stated that condition 5 of the licence 
required that stock should be easily traceable. The illicit alcohol on the shelves could not be 
easily traced.  There was a large quantity of polish alcohol on the premises that was not 
intended for sale in the UK.

In response to questions, the trading standards officer reported that in 2015, illegal alcohol 
was seized from the premises and conditions were added to the licence by an officer panel.  
It was also stated that officer seized alcohol on the 7 June 2018 and, only one week later, 
on the 15 June, another large quantity of alcohol not intended for the UK market was 
seized.  At the first visit on the 7 June, it was made clear that the sale of this alcohol was a 
breach of condition and a visit report was also left to explain why the alcohol could not be 
sold. 

The licensing authority highlighted the report on pages 79-81 of the agenda and stated that, 
although there had been some improvement, it had taken some time to get to this point. 
Alcohol sold should not be above 6.5 abv and the Chair considered that condition 14 of the 
current licence be reworded to avoid confusion. 

The police stated that they supported the review submitted.  They had other matters of 
concern in relation to the premises which were not licensing matters but were outlined in the 
papers.  

The licensee’s representative stated that this was a very small shop and a very busy family 
business.  Insufficient care and attention had been paid to the conditions on the licence and 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee D -  27 September 2018

4

illicit alcohol had been sold on the premises.  There had now been significant progress 
made in addressing these issues.  New CCTV had been installed, the refusals book was 
now up to date, the Challenge 25 notices were on display. The licensee had brought all 
invoices to the Sub-Committee.  They were being put into categories.  He needed to 
undertake a stock take and was currently working on till prompts.  This improvement had 
happened and a short suspension should not be a punishment.  He agreed that condition 
14 could be reworded and he considered that there should be an acknowledgement of 
improvements made and that a suspension was not necessary.

In response to questions it was noted that the licensee was gathering receipts so that they 
would be complete from now on.  It was accepted that there had been a historic lack of 
care. It was noted that there were four staff on the premises.  It was noted that receipts 
were now more organised, staff had received mandatory training and were still to receive 
training in the CCTV system and would need to be able to retrieve invoices.  It would take 
about one more week to teach staff the items outstanding. The licensee stated that he had 
always bought alcohol from a cash and carry.  The polish beer had been purchased five 
years ago from another shop and had been in the basement.  When asked why illicit alcohol 
was still on the shelves after the 7th June the licensee said that the cash and carry had said 
the alcohol would be fine to sell. The licensee stated that he would be able to show all the 
invoices for the past two months. 

In summary, the trading standards officer stated that no invoices had been produced for the 
brands listed in the report. Some of those brands would have had English writing on but 
some not.  The licensing authority and the police stated they had nothing further to add.  
The licensee’s representative stated that there had been significant progress and there had 
been a consistent application of the conditions of the licence over the past few weeks.  He 
accepted that there had been non-compliance in the past.  He agreed that there be an 
amendment to condition 14.  The focus was now on the future of the business.  He 
considered that a period of suspension was not an appropriate solution and was 
unnecessary in the circumstances.

RESOLVED
That the premises licence, in respect of AJ News, 127 Whitecross Street, EC1Y 8PU be 
suspended for a period of six weeks and modified as follows:-

 Condition 14 be amended to read:-

No high strength beer, lager or cider of 6.5% abv or above shall be sold.

REASONS FOR DECISION
This was an application to review the licence in question. The review was brought by 
Trading Standards.

The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy. 

Verbal representations were received by Trading Standards, the Licensing Authority, the 
Police and the Respondent’s representative. 

The Sub-Committee heard evidence that there had been two recent occasions, on 7th June 
2018 and 15th June 2018, Trading Standards Officers seized quantities of cans of alcohol 
that were not permitted to be sold in the UK. The licensee ignored the warning given by the 
Trading Standards Officer on 7th June and continued to display illegal alcohol for sale.

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee D -  27 September 2018

5

The licensee had not managed to have his documentation/invoices in order and this was 
still the case on 27th September 2018, the date of the hearing, when the premises were 
visited for a third time by Trading Standards Officers. There were however some 
improvements in the management of the premises since the last visit on 15th June 2018.

The Sub-Committee did not believe the version supplied by the licensee that he purchased 
the illicit alcohol from Bestway Cash and Carry.

The Sub-Committee had serious concerns about the management of the premises and the 
ability of the licensee to comply with the licence conditions. The Sub Committee was 
concerned that despite the licensee having had a considerable period of time to make the 
necessary improvements, breaches were still occurring and it had little confidence that there 
would not be further breaches.

The Sub-Committee further noted that none of the Responsible Authorities asked for 
revocation of the licence. 

Taking all the above factors into account the Sub-Committee decided to suspend the 
licence for 6 weeks. This period to be utilised by the licensee to properly train his staff and 
to ensure that all his invoices and sale records were in order.

The Sub-Committee concluded that a suspension of 6 weeks was proportionate and 
reasonable given the facts of this matter.

The meeting ended at 8.15 pm

CHAIR

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment & Regeneration 
Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, London, N1 1XR 

Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 

Meeting of Date Agenda Item Ward(s) 

Licensing Sub-Committee 27 September 2018 Highbury East 

Delete as 
appropriate 

Non-exempt 

Subject: PREMISES LICENCE NEW APPLICATION 
177a Blackstock Road, London, N5 2LT  

1. Synopsis

1.1 This is an application for a new premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2 The new application is to:

I. Supply alcohol for consumption on the premises only from Monday to Sunday from 
11:00 to 00:00.

II. late night refreshment: Monday to Sunday from 23:00 to 00:00.

III. Opening hours of the premises on Monday to Sunday from 11:00 to 00:00. 

2. Relevant Representations

Licensing Authority No 

Metropolitan Police Yes –  Conditions Agreed 

Noise Yes – Conditions Agreed 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

• ISLINGTON 

Page 7

Agenda Item B1



Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: 8 

Other bodies No 

3. Background

3.1 Papers are attached as follows:- 
Appendix 1: application form; supporting letter 
Appendix 2: representations; 
Appendix 3 current licence in force at the premises; 
Appendix 4: suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

3.2 Brief Licensing history 

i. The premises are currently licensed however, the current licensee is no longer the 
tenant at the premises and is refusing to transfer the existing licence without payment 
for  their previous business loses.  The current premises licence can be found at 
Appendix 3 of this report.

ii. This application is seeking reduced licensable hours and activities than those 
currently authorised.  The operating schedule has been updated and enhanced in 
agreement with the responsible authorities.

iii. The applicant has provided a cover letter addressing the resident's concerns and has 
removed live music and recorded music from his application, this can be found at 
appendix 1.

iv. As a result, two local residents have withdrawn their representations at the time of the 
publishing of this report. 

4. Planning Implications

4.1 Planning records reveal that No. 177 Blackstock Road is permitted to be use as a 
restaurant. However, it would appear that it was conditioned to operate between 08.00 and 
24.00 on any week day and Saturday and 08.00 and 23.00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 

5 Recommendations 
5.1 To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the Licensing 

Act 2003. 

5.2 If the Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the Operating
Schedule (see appendix 4)

ii. any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four licensing
objectives. (see appendix 4)

Page 8



6 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

6.1 The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant information, 
and if approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to promote the 
licensing objectives. 

 

 

 

 

Background papers: 

The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
Licensing Act 2003 
Secretary of States Guidance 

Final Report Clearance 

Signed by    
 Service Director – Public Protection  Date 
    

 
Received by    
 Head of Scrutiny and Democratic Services  Date 
    

 

Report author: Licensing Service 

Tel: 020 75027 3031 

E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 

15/11/18

Page 9



tt lS LI NGTO N 

Section 1 of 21 

Islington 
Application for a premises licence 
Licensing Act 2003 

For help contact 

licensing@islington.gov.uk 

Telephone: 020 7527 3031 

" required information 

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in w hen you resume. 

System reference I Not Currently In Use I This is the unique reference for this 
.... ________________ ...., application generated by the system. 

Your reference 
You can put w hat you want here to help you 

~--------------~ track applications if you make lots. of them. It 

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant? 

(' Yes (e No 

Applicant Details 

* Fi rst name 

* Family name 

* E-mail 

Main telephone number 

Other telephone number 

I Brodie 

D Ind icate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone 

Are you: 

(e Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader 

r Applying as an individual 

Applicant Business 

Is your business registered in 
the UK with Companies 
House? 

Regist ration number 

(e Yes (' No 

111296410 

is passed to the authority. 

Put "no" if you are applying on your own 
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or 
work for. 

Include country code. 

A sole t rader is a business owned by one 
person without any special legal structure. 
Applying as an individual means you are 
applying so you can be employed, or for 
some other personal reason, such as 
following a hobby. 

Note: completing t he Applicant Business 
section is optional in this form. 

Business name ITOP CUVEE I If your business is registered, use it s 
.... ________________ ....,, registered name. 

VAT number 

Legal status 

DI ... n_o_n_e _____ __, Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT. 

!Private Limited Company 

© Queen's Printer and Cont roller of HMSO 2009 

Page 10



Continued from previous page ... 

Your posit ion in the business I Director I 

Home country !united Kingdom 
I The country where the headquarters of your 

business is located. 

Registered Address Address registered w ith Companies House. 

Building number or name 111 I 

Street !Millennium Place I 
Dist rict I I 

City or town I London I 
County or administrat ive area I I 

Postcode IE2 9NL I 
Country !united Kingdom I 

Section 2 of 21 

PREMISES DETAILS 

I/we, as named in sect ion 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises 
described in sect ion 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this applicat ion to you as the relevant licensing authority 
in accordance w ith sect ion 12 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

Premises Address 

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises? 

(i Address r OS map reference r Description 

Postal Address Of Premises 

Building number or name l1n A I 
Street I Blackstock Rd I 
Dist rict I I 

City or town I London I 
County or administrat ive area I I 
Postcode INS 2LT I 
Country !united Kingdom I 
Further Details 

Telephone number I I 

Non-domest ic rateable 
122,000 I value of premises (£) 

B aueen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 11



Section 3 of 21 

APPLICATION DETAILS 

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence? 

D An individual or individuals 

~ A lim ited company/ lim ited liability partnership 

D A partnership (other than limited liability) 

D An unincorporated association 

D Other (for example a statutory corporation) 

D A recognised club 

D A charity 

D The proprietor of an educational establishment 

D A health service body 

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act 

D 2000 (cl 4) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales 

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and 
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated 

D activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in 
England 

D The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales 

Confirm The Following 

~ I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves 
the use of the premises for licensable activit ies 

D I am making the application pursuant to a statutory function 

D I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by 
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative 

Section 4 of 21 

NON INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS 

Provide name and registered address of applicant in ful l. Where appropriate give any registered number. In the case of a 
partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate), give the name and address of each party concerned. 

Non Individual Applicant's Name 

Name 

Details 

Registered number (where 
applicable) 

Ir op Cuvee LTD 

111296410 

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company, unincorporated association etc) 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 12



Continued from previous page ... 

!Private limited company 

Address 

Building number or name 

Street 

District 

City or town 

County or administrative area 

Postcode 

Country 

Contact Details 

E-mail 

Telephone number 

Other telephone number 

* Date of birth 

* Nationality 

Section 5 of 21 

OPERATING SCHEDULE 

When do you want the 
premises licence to start? 

11 

!Millennium Place 

I London 

L-------------------' 

IE2 9NL 

!united Kingdom 

I British Cit izen 

Add another applicant 

~ 1o:D 11 201s 

dd mm yyyy 

If you wish the licence to be 
valid only for a limited period, D / D / I 
when do you want it to end dd mm .__YYY_Y__, 

Provide a general description of the premises 

Documents that demonstrate entitlement to 
work in the UK 

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the 
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for 
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the 
premises. 

A cafe, wine bar and delicatessen offering small plates of seasonal food alongside a selection of interesting high quality 
w ines and craft beers to be consumed on premise or taken away for consumption at home. A single story terrace between 
a fast food outlet and an industrial unit with a yard at the rear. On the corner of a main road, commercial, shopping area 
w ith no residential properties in the immediate vicinity. 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 13



Continued from previous page ... 
Aiming to be an inclusive meet ing place tor our neighbors, pricing w1 11 retlect that however our bacKground in Michelln 
star dining will ensure the level of customer service remains in-l ine with worlds best practice. We also look to support local 
artists, hosting community focused art shows and workshops. 

We aim to have seating for around 60 guests with part of the room dedicated to table service, with the bar area consisting 
of bar seating for customers to consume food or have a glass of wine or coffee. 
A kitchen, refuse store area and customer bathrooms also on the ground floor. 

Background music will be provided via a stereo system. 

If 5,000 or more people are 
expected to attend the 

I I premises at any one time, 
state the number expected to 
attend 

Section 6 of 21 

PROVISION OF PLAYS 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing plays? 

(' Yes (i No 

Section 7 of 21 

PROVISION OF FILMS 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing films? 

(' Yes (i No 

Section 8 of 21 

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing indoor sporting events? 

(' Yes (i No 

Section 9 of 21 

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments? 

(' Yes (i No 

Section 10 of 21 

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing live music? 

(i Yes r No 

Standard Days And Timings 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 14



Continued from previous page ... 

MONDAY 
Give t im ings in 24 hour clock. 

Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 

110:00 I loo:oo 
I of the week when you intend t he premises 

Start End to be used for the activity. 

TUESDAY 

Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 

WEDNESDAY 

Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 

THURSDAY 

Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 

FRIDAY 

Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 

SATURDAY 

Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 

SUNDAY 

Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 110:00 I End loo:oo I 

Will the performance of live music take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other 
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may 

(i' Indoors r Outdoors r Bot h include a tent. 

State type of activity to be aut horised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not 
exclusively) whether or not music w ill be amplified or unamplified. 

Potential for amplified live music on occasion i.e live pianist or 3 piece band during dinner service 

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music 

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on addit ional days during t he summer mont hs. 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 15



Continued from previous page ... 

I 

Non-standard t imings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of live music at different times from those listed 
in the column on the left, list below 

For example (but not exclusively), where you w ish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve. 

Section 11 of 21 

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing recorded music? 

r- Yes r No 

Standard Days And Timings 

MONDAY 
Give timings in 24 hour clock. 

Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 

Start loo:oo I loo:oo 
I of the week when you intend the premises 

End to be used for the activity. 

TUESDAY 

Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 
Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 

WEDNESDAY 

Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 
Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 

THURSDAY 

Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 
Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 

FRIDAY 

Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 
Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 

SATURDAY 

Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 
Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 16



Continued from previous page ... 

SUNDAY 

Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 
Start loo:oo I End loo:oo I 

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other 
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may 

r- Indoors r Outdoors r Both include a tent. 

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further detai ls, for example (but not 
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified. 

Background music provided via stereo system 

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music 

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months. 

Non-standard t imings. Where the premises will be used for the playing of recorded music at different times from those listed 
in the column on the left, list below 

For example (but not exclusively), where you w ish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve. 

Section 12 of 21 

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing performances of dance? 

(' Yes r- No 

Section 13 of 21 

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF 
DANCE 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing anything similar to l ive music, recorded music or 
performances of dance? 

(' Yes r- No 

Section 14 of 21 

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT 

Will you be providing late night refreshment? 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 17



Continued from previous page ... ( 

Standard Days And Timings 

MONDAY 
Give timings in 24 hour clock. 

Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 

Start 123:00 I loo:oo 
I of the week when you intend the premises 

End to be used for the activity. 

TUESDAY 

Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 

WEDNESDAY 

Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 

THURSDAY 

Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 

FRIDAY 

Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 

SATURDAY 

Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 

SUNDAY 

Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 123:00 I End loo:oo I 

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or 
both? 

r- Indoors r Outdoors r Both Where taking place in a building or other 
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may 
include a tent. 

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not 
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified. 

State any seasonal variations 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 18



Continued from previous page ... 

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on addit ional days during the summer months. 

Non-standard t imings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of late night refreshments at d ifferent times from 
those listed in the column on the left, list below 

For example (but not exclusively), where you w ish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve. 

Section 1 S of 21 

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol? 

(i Yes r No 

Standard Days And Timings 

MONDAY 
Give timings in 24 hour clock. 

Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 

Start 111 :00 I loo:oo 
I of the week when you intend the premises 

End to be used for the activity. 

TUESDAY 

Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 111 :00 I End loo:oo I 

WEDNESDAY 

Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 
Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 

THURSDAY 

Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 111 :00 I End loo:oo I 

FRIDAY 

Start 111 :00 I End loo:oo I 
Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 

SATURDAY 

Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 
Start 111 :00 I End loo:oo I 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 19



Continued from previous page ... 

SUNDAY 

Start I 11 :00 

Start I 11 :00 

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption: 

r On the premises r Off the premises 

State any seasonal variations 

End loo:oo 

End loo:oo 

Ci Both 

If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on 
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol 
is for consumption away from the premises 
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for 
consumption on the premises and away 
from the premises select both. 

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on addit ional days during the summer months. 

Non-standard t imings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different t imes from those listed in the 
column on the left, list below 

For example (but not exclusively), where you w ish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve. 

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the 
licence as premises supervisor 

Name 

First name 

Family name 

Date of birth 

I Brodie 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 20



Continued from previous page ... 

Enter the contact's addres~ 

1111 --
--
(if known) 

number 

Issuing licensing authority 
(if known) 

• 
_____ _, 

- '----------' --'------------' 
1154053 

I Manchester City Council 

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT 

How wi ll the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor 
be supplied to the authority? 

(' Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor 

(i As an attachment to this application 

Reference number for consent 
form (if known) 

Section 16 of 21 

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT 

If the consent form is already submitted, ask 
the proposed designated premises 
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your 
reference'. 

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the 
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children 

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give 
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example 
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, fi lms for restricted age groups etc gambl ing machines etc. 

Section 17 of 21 

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

Standard Days And Timings 

MONDAY 

Start I 11 :00 

Start I 11 :00 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

.--------. Give timings in 24 hour clock. 
End loo:OO I (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 

I 
of the week when you intend the premises 

End loo:OO _ to be used for the activity. 
Page 21



Continued from previous page ... 

TUESDAY 

Start 111 :00 I End loo:oo I 
Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 

WEDNESDAY 

Start 111 :00 I End loo:oo I 
Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 

THURSDAY 

Start 111 :00 I End loo:oo I 
Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 

FRIDAY 

Start 111 :00 I End loo:oo I 
Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 

SATURDAY 

Start 111 :00 I End loo:oo I 
Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 

SUNDAY 

Start 111 :00 I End loo:oo I 
Start I 11 :00 I End loo:oo I 

State any seasonal variations 

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on addit ional days during the summer months. 

Non standard t imings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different t imes from 
those listed in the column on the left, list below 

For example (but not exclusively), where you w ish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve. 

Section 18 of 21 

LICENSING OBJECTIVES 

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 

a) General - all four l icensing objectives (b,c,d,e) 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 22



Continued from previous page ... 

List here steps you w ill take to promote all four licensing objectives together. 

With a combined 20 years in the hospitality industry and as current license holder/opperator of a number of venues across 
different London boroughs we are confident that we w ill promote the four licensing objectives. 

Designed to be a sophisticated environment for the enjoyment of fine wines and high quality craft beers looking to 
replicate the sophisticated cafe culture found throughout Europe; NOT a place to meet and get drunk. We expect our 
clientele to be in the 25+ age range and will in no way be promoting excessive or irresponsible drinking activit ies. With 
regards to the retail sale of alcohol; this w ill be geared at the "specialty" end of the market giving customers the opportunity 
to purchase high quality w ines and beers along w ith our charcuteries and cooking ingredients not available at other local 
out lets to enjoy at home. We do not aim to be a typical "off license" providing low cost alcohol for immediate consumption. 

TO PROMOTE ALL FOUR LICENSING OBJECTIVES WE WILL KEEP: 
Strong management controls and effective training of all staff so that they are aware of the premises license and the 
requirements to meet the four licensing objectives w ith part icular attention to: 
a/ no selling of alcohol to underage people 
b/ no drunk and disorderly behavior on the premises area 
c/ vigilance in preventing the use and sale of illegal drugs 
d/ no violent and anti-social behaviour 
e/ no harm to children 

- Operating Schedule providing the hours of operation and licensable activit ies during those hours clearly displayed. 
- Designated premises supervisor confi rmed it is obligated to be in day-to-day control of the premises, to provide good 
t raining for staff on the Licensing Act. 
- Operate a "Challenge 25" policy to prevent the supply of alcohol to under-age drinkers. 
- Roller metal exterior window shutter in use to ensure that premise is safe and secure at all times 

As a l icensed premises we know that it is necessary to carry out our functions or operate their businesses w ith a purpose of 
promoting these objectives. We promise to support these objectives through their operating schedules and other measures 
(including staff training and qualifications, policies, and strategic partnerships w ith other agencies). 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

We will take the following steps to promote the prevention of crime and disorder in association w ith the 
premises: 

A clear and legible notice outside the premises indicating the normal hours under the terms of the premises license during 
which licensable activities are permitted. 

Not offering any irresponsible alcohol promotions. 
No sell ing of alcohol to drunk or intoxicated customers; Staff w ill be trained on how to refuse to serve patrons who are 
drunk. Staff will be trained on how to spot and deal w ith the early signs of a patron becoming drunk. This will include the 
right to refuse to serve an individual any more alcohol and ejecting patrons who are disruptive. 

Custom will not be sought by means of personal solicitation outside or in the vicinity of the premises. 

Prevention and vigilance in illegal drug use at the premises w ith a zero tolerance policy on use of drugs. 
Staff w ill be trained on how to deal w ith instances where individuals are under the influence of drugs and an 
organizational duty of care policy will be communicated to all staff. Staff will retain the right to refuse entry to anyone under 
the influence. 
Instances where staff deal w ith individuals under the infl uence w ill be recorded. 

Staff w ill be well t rained in asking customers to use premises in an orderly and respectful manner. 

A CCTV system will be installed w ithin the premises and recordings will be made in real t ime with copies available for the 
police. Recording equipment is kept in are secure, staff only area. 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 23



Continued from previous page ... 

Incidents will be logged and reported to relevant authority if they occur. 

Informat ion share 
We will become a member of, and attend the local Pub Watch meetings in order to faci litate information 
share amongst local businesses and promote best pract ice in the area. 

External l ighting will be installed immediately outside the premises and kept on whilst it is open. Blackstock Rd/ 
Mountgrove Rd are well lit streets. 

Non-public areas will be locked, available only with a key or code. 

Excessive consumption of alcohol will never be the focus of the venue. Operat ing hours will always include the provision of 
food. 
Drinking water will be suppl ied to every guest alongside any alcoholic beverages. 

No queuing is envisioned during usual operations. 

Signs will be displayed to request pat rons to leave in a quiet manner. 

Customers waiting for taxis/ubers will be able to wait inside until transport arrives for a quick and quiet dispersal. 

c) Public safety 

Risk assessment 
A full risk assessment will be completed pre-opening identifying potential hazards within the physical 
premises and setting our precautions to manage these hazards. 
Risk assessments will be reviewed regularly and logged. 

Routine checks of the premises will take place every day. Any new hazards found will be logged and communicat ed. 
Toilets are self-contained and include a sink and dryer. Toilets w ill be checked and cleaned regularly throughout the daily 
operation. 

Fully stocked first aid boxes will be available on the premises throughout operating hours. 
First Aid boxes will be restocked on a regular basis. Any items used will be recorded and monitored. 
Accidents will be logged w ithin an accident book w hich will be regularly reviewed and any required mitigating actions 
implemented. 

Staff will be on hand to clear up spillages and broken glass immediately. 

Internal and external lighting set to promote public safety. 
Well trained staff adherence to environmental health requirements. 
Training and implementat ion of underage ID checks. 

All parts of the premises and all fittings and apparatus therein, door fastenings and notices, lighting, heating, electrical, air 
condition, sanitary accommodation and other installat ions, will be maintained at all t imes in good order and in a safe 
condition. 

Prevention and vigilance in illegal drug use at the premises w ith a zero tolerance policy on use of drugs. 
Staff will be trained on how to deal with instances w here individuals are under the influence of drugs and an 
organizational duty of care policy will be communicated to all staff. Staff will retain the right to refuse entry to anyone under 
the influence. 
Instances where staff deal with individuals under the influence w ill be recorded. 

No smoking will be permitted within the premises at any t ime. 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 24



Continued from previous page ... 

Local taxi numbers and information regarding the nearest public transport routes w ill be available to all customers. 
Signs w ill be displayed to request patrons to leave in a quiet manner. 

External l ighting will be installed immediately outside the premises and kept on whilst it is open. Blackstock Rd/ 
Mountgrove Rd are well lit streets. 

d) The prevention of public nuisance 

Noise reduction measures to address the public nuisance objective. 
Amplified music w ill be played at reasonable levels. It w ill be the responsibility of the manager to ensure that levels of music 
are not excessive and this will be monitored. 
A contact telephone number w ill be made available to local residents who can report any disturbances as they occur. 

Where possible, all doors and windows will be kept shut throughout operating hours. 

No queuing is envisioned during usual operations. 

Clear and legible notices will be displayed at the exit requesting the public to respect the needs of nearby 
residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 

Customers waiting for taxis/ubers will be able to wait inside until transport arrives for a quick and quiet dispersal. 
Deliveries of goods necessary for the operation of the business will be carried out at such a time or in such a manner as to 
prevent nuisance and disturbance to nearby residents. 

Customers w ill be asked not to stand around loud ly talking in the street outside the premises. 

Customers w ill not be admitted to premises outside of opening hours. 

Refuse and glass bins are situated indoors, minimizing the risk of noise from disposing of waste becoming a nuisance. 
Bins will not be put out for collection on the street after 23:00 or before 07:00. 

Any lighting on or outside the premises w ill be positioned and screened in such a way so as to not cause a disturbance to 
nearby residents or highways. 

e) The protection of children from harm 

Operate a "Challenge 25" policy to prevent the supply of alcohol to under-age drinkers. 
A refusal log shall be kept on the premise. 
No children under the age of 18 w ill be allowed on the premises w ithout being accompanied by a responsible adult. 

Section 19 of 21 

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 25



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not 

limited liability partnerships:  
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:  

 • does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or  
 • is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable 
 activity.  

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder 
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.  
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing 
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this by providing with this application 
copies or scanned copies of the following documents (which do not need to be certified).   
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK 

 • An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the 
 holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see 
 note below about which sections of the passport to copy].  

 • An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport 
 as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national 
 of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.  
 • A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European  
 Economic Area country or Switzerland.  

 • A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the 
 holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their  
 stay in the UK. 

 • A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay 
 indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK. 

• A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement 
 indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in 
 the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National  
 Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.  

• A full birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK which includes the name(s) of at least one of the holder’s 
 parents or adoptive parents, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s  
 permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in  
 combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their  
 name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an 
 official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a  
 Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to 
 work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a  
 licensable activity. 

Page 26



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

• A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the 
 holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to  
 the carrying on of a licensable activity. 

• A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic  
 Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or 
 residence. 

• A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder  
 with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not  
 subject  to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity  
 when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance  
 number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer. 

• A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 17(3) or 18A   
 (2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2006, to a  person who is not a national of a  
 European Economic Area  state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has  
 derivative rights of residence.  

• Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK  
 with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or  
 reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration  
 decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number. 

• Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but  
 who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in 
 the UK including:-  

• evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,  
• evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage  
 certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and 
• evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one  
 of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months: 

(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer, 
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank, 
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or 
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements. 

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide 
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the 
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form. 
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the 
following pages should be provided:- 

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality; 
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph; 
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature; 
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and 
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to 
work.  
If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided. 
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration 
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be 
determined until you have complied with this guidance. 

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 27



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience  
 does not exceed 500. 

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises  between 08.00 and  
 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the  
 screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides  
 by age classification ratings. 

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided  
 that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman  
 wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not  
 exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or  
 wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an  
 indoor sporting event. 

• Live music: no licence permission is required for: 
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell  
 alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not  
 licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises 
 of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,  
 and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local  
 authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol  
 for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a  
 local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) 
 the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority  
 concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

Page 28



Continued from previous page ... 

• Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the 
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains 
licensable. 

• Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on 
audience size for: 

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided 
by or on behalf of the local authority; 

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the 
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider; 

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or 
on behalf of the school proprietor; and 

o any entertainment (excluding fi lms and a boxing or wrestl ing entertainment) taking place at a travelling 
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and 
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days. 

Section 21 of 21 

PAYMENT DETAILS 

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card. 

Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises. 
To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/ 
business _rates/i ndex.htm 
Band A - No RV to £4300 £ 100.00 
Band B- £4301 to £33000 £190.00 
Band C - £33001 to £87000 £315.00 
Band D - £87001 to £125000 £450.00* 
Band E - £125001 and over £635.00* 
*If the premises rateable value is in Bands Dor E and the premises is primari ly used for the consumption of alcohol on the 
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee 
Band D- £87001 to £125000 £900.00 
Band E- £125001 and over £1,905.00 
There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls, 
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, vi llage halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The 
costs associated w ith these licences w ill be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises t he use of 
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee wi ll be requ ired. 
Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated w ith the authorisation of regulated entertainment 
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college. 
If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one t ime 
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00 
Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00 
Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00 
Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00 
Capacity 30000-39999 £16,000.00 
Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00 
Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00 
Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00 
Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00 
Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00 
Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00 

* Fee amount (£) 1100.00 

ATTACHMENTS 

AUTHORITY POSTAL ADDRESS 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 29



Continued from previous page ... 

Address 

Building number or name I I 

Street I I 

District I I 

City or town I I 

County or administrative area I I 

Postcode I I 
Country !united Kingdom I 
DECLARATION 

[Applicable to ind ividual applicants only, including those in a partnership which is not a limited liabil ity partnership] I 
* understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I 

am subject to a condit ion preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my 
licence will become invalid if I cease to be entit led to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15). 

The DPS named in this application form is entit led to work in the UK (and is not subject to condit ions preventing him or 
* her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, if 

appropriate (please see note 15) 

□ Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration 

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on 
behalf of the applicant?" 

* Full name I I 

* Capacity I I 

Date (dd/mm/yyyy) I I 

I Add another signatory I 
Once you're finished you need to do the following: 
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as ... 
2. Go back to httgs://www.gov.uk/ai;ml~-for-a-licence/gremises-licence/islington/aQ1;~1~-1 to upload this fi le and continue 
with your application. 
Don't forget to make sure you have all your support ing documentation to hand. 

IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE 
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION 

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY 
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF 
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO 
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, 
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN 
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE 
IS DISQUALIFIED 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 30



Top Cuvee 
177a-177b Blackstock Road 

London  
N5 2LL 

 
Dear Neighbours, 
 
I hope this letter finds you well. 
 
My name is Brodie and i am the incoming tenant at 177a-177b Blackstock Rd. 
 
I am writing to put your concerns at ease over our intended use as I understand unknown change 
can be a worrying thing especially in your local area and you have made a representation to our 
application. Having read your representations I believe there is a misunderstanding about our 
business. 
 
As you know this premises has held an alcohol license for 20 years and has operated since then as 
a restaurant. The usual process would be for me to simply transfer this existing license and operate 
under those same conditions. However the previous tenant is refusing to transfer, leaving the 
premises empty and unable to trade. 
 
It is important to clarify that the terms of the license are no different to those already in place, as is 
the intended use of the premises. (in fact we will have reduced trading hours and new conditions 
more relevant to current licensing policy as agreed with the local authority) Any concerns about loud 
music or anti social behaviour can be put to rest as we will not be operating the kind of venue that 
will attract these problems, we certainly will not be operating a “club” or live music venue. To ensure 
this is clear we will remove the “live and recorded music” part of our application as we only 
intend to have music as background. 
 
We have been in dialogue with the local police force who welcome us as a responsible operator and 
force for positive growth in the area and I truly believe we will be an asset the the neighbourhood; 
our philosophy towards food and drink actively sets out to promote this. 
 
To give you an idea of who we are; my professional background is in Michelin starred dining, 
working for the chef Heston Blumenthal in Melbourne before returning to the UK to undertake my 
own venture with my wife Erin who will work alongside me, together with an old friend Max, who is 
currently operating other successful venues in London. 
 
The venue itself will serve charcuteries alongside tapas style plates showcasing British ingredients 
with a rotating list of wines by the glass and craft beers. Background music will be provided over a 
small stereo system and any live music would be acoustic guitarist or pianist on occasion. As the 
business grows we hope to employ people from the local area and support local producers, with a 
keen interest in promoting urban agriculture. 
 

Page 31



It is with the above in mind that I ask you to withdraw your representation and enable us to get 
started building what will hopefully be a great asset to your community. 
 
If you still have concerns I would like to invite you to our current venue - Bar III in Spitalfields at an 
agreed time where we can meet in person and answer any questions you may have. This will also 
give you the opportunity to get a feel for the way we operate; table service, background music, high 
quality produce etc.  
I understand Bar III maybe far to travel so I will be more than happy to meet at Blackstock Rd if 
that’s preferable. Please be in touch with me via the below if you would like to arrange a time to 
meet in person. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you and hopefully serving you on Blackstock Rd soon. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Brodie 
brodie@topcuvee.com 
07428480638 
 
 
 

Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Rep 1  

Dear Sir / Madam 
 
I wish to object to the licence application at 177A-177B Blackstock Road for late night supply 
and sale of alcohol and live and recorded music, 7 days a week from 10am to midnight, by 
Top Cuvee Ltd. 
 
1. The premises is located in Mountgrove Road, to the rear of 177 Blackstock Road. It is in 
close proximity to many residential properties. If a licence was granted it would cause a high 
level of ongoing nuisance to the local residents. 
2. There are residential properties within 10m of the application premises. The premises 
themselves are of a lightweight construction and would offer minimal containment of noise. 
They are totally unsuitable for the proposed use. 
3. The premises has previously been a restaurant for the last 20 years. A restaurant is an 
appropriate use, a club use or music performance use is not an appropriate use for this 
location. 
4. The noise nuisance that would occur would be intolerable. The normal sleep patterns of 
local residents would be interupted, this is unacceptable, especially to the many local 
children that live close by, including my own. 
5. Nuisance would undoubtedly extend beyond the official closing time, as it is the case that 
the departure of people from such premises would create noise, people linger and 
congregate in the street, they talk, smoke and shout. Taxi noise. There would certainly also 
be incidences of urination or vomiting in the street and gardens. It would be the residents 
that would have the unpleasant impacts of this. Sad but true. 
6. My home is on the corner of Canning Road and Mountgrove Road. We already suffer from 
the drug dealing that occurs in this area. This is something that the Council and Police have 
yet to solve. If a club / music performance licence were granted, it would exacerbate this 
problem. 
 
I understand that the objective of licensing is intended to prevent crime and disorder, prevent 
public nuisance and protect children from harm. I therefore request that the application is 
refused as the proposed use would not be in accordance with these objectives. It 
is inappropriate for the premises and the location. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 

Rep 2 

I am writing to object to the application for a Licence for recorded and live music and sale 
and supply of alcohol, to be open from 10am (note on the website it says 11 am but 10 on 
the site) to midnight 7 days a week, at the site of the former Exodus restaurant in 
Mountgrove Road, (address 177A & 177B Blackstock Road) on the following grounds: 

-Loss of amenity to local residents; 

-Disturbance and public nuisance to local residents due to loud music emanating from the 
premises; 

-Disturbance and public nuisance to local residents due to the increase in foot and vehicle 
traffic late at night; 

Page 38



-Disturbance and public nuisance from anti-social behaviour e.g. raised voices, shouting, 
and drunken behaviour; 

-Other anti-social behaviour and public nuisance such as littering in the form of broken glass 
and fast food left in the street, urinating in the street, and drunken/intoxicated people 
intimidating local resident and passers-by.  

Canning Road is the neighbouring residential street and we are already subjected to much of 
the above on match days and a development such as this serving alcohol for 14 hours a day 
opposite a pub is not appropriate for this area. 

It seems clear that there will be an adverse impact on residents and it will adversely impact 
on crime, disorder and public nuisance and so I object on these grounds.  

Please acknowledge receipt of this objection.  

 

Rep 3 

 
I wish to object to the application for a Licence for recorded and live music and for the sale 
and supply of alcohol at the site of the former Exodus restaurant in Mountgrove Road, 
(address 177A & 177B Blackstock Road) and for the proposed business to be open from 
10am to midnight 7 days a week. The objection is on the following grounds: 

-Loss of amenity to local residents 

-Disturbance and public nuisance to local residents due to loud music issuing from the 
premises 

- The premises is not suitable for music as the construction of the building is not designed for 
and therefore not capable of absorbing sound 

-Disturbance and public nuisance to local residents due to the increase in foot and vehicle 
traffic late at night.  

-Disturbance and public nuisance from anti-social behaviour e.g. raised voices, shouting, 
drunken behaviour 

-Other anti-social behaviour and public nuisance such as littering in the form of broken glass 
and fast food left in the street (pet dogs get sick when they eat rotten food they find in the 
street. This can range from minor illness to the need for hospitalisation), urinating in the 
street, and drunken/intoxicated people intimidating local residents and passers-by. (It is 
already unacceptable on football match days when fans spill out of the Arsenal Tavern on 
Mountgrove Road, shouting, and urinating in Mountgrove Road and Canning Road) 

-Criminal activity due to potential increase in drug dealing, and drug paraphernalia left on the 
street. (Canning Road has been suffering from late night drug dealing for many months) 

-Canning Road is a quiet residential street. This development is not appropriate for this area. 

The Conditions of licensing include: 

Page 39



No adverse impacts on residents 

Should not impact in terms of crime, disorder and public nuisance 

Therefore, it is clear that this application cannot be granted. 

Yours sincerely 

Rep 4 

Dear Sir/Madam 

I wish to object to the application (by Top Cuvee Ltd) for a Licence for recorded and live 
music and sale and supply of alcohol to be open 10am-midnight 7 days a week at a 
proposed club on the site of the former Exodus restaurant on Mountgrove Road (address 
177A-177B Blackstock Road, N5 2LL) on the following grounds:  

- Loss of amenity to local community/residents 

- Disturbance and public nuisance to local residents from loud music coming out of the 
premises 

- These premises are not suitable for music - the construction of the building will not absorb 
sound - and the premises are situated  

in between two terraces in the middle of a densely populated residential area. 

- Disturbance and public nuisance to local residents due to the increase in foot and vehicle 
traffic late at night 

- Disturbance and public nuisance from anti-social behaviour eg shouting, raised voices and 
drunken behaviour. 

- Other anti-social behaviour and nuisance eg littering including broken glass and fast food 
left in the street, urinating in the street and front  

gardens, intoxicated (drink and drugs) people intimidating local residents and passers-by. 
This is on top of what is already unacceptable 

behaviour by Arsenal fans on match days who spill out of Arsenal Tavern on Mountgrove 
Road shouting and urinating in Mountgrove and  

Canning Road. 

- Criminal activity due to potential increase in drug dealing and drug paraphernalia left on the 
street - adding to the current problems of late 

night drug dealing on Canning Road. 

- Canning Road is a quiet residential street - this development is not appropriate for this 
area. 

The Conditions of Licensing include: 

1. No adverse impacts on residents 

2. Should not impact in terms of crime or disorder and public nuisance 

Page 40



It is therefore clear that this application cannot be granted. 

Your sincerely 

Rep 5  

Licence Representation Comments – Property: Formerly Exodus Mediterranean  
 
Restaurant, Mountgrove Road, N5 
 
This predominantly residential area is not an acceptable vicinity for a new drinking or musical 
establishment. Such venues increase the ambient noise of the surrounding area 
exponentially. I suggest such a venue would have net negative social and health effects on 
the surrounding populace. We are currently fortunate that the Arsenal Tavern and the newly-
opened wine bar on the corner of Mountgrove Road and Finsbury Park Road are, as such 
venues go, relatively quiet. There are plenty of drinking establishments in the area; with 
musical venues only a short walk or brief bus journey away. There is no hunger locally for 
any more such venues. Those houses which back onto the businesses on Blackstock Road 
are already inundated with the near-constant, loud noise of their various refrigeration and 
extractor fan units. I would urge and implore you to reject this application and any future 
applications for drinking and music venues in the area. 
This e-mail is intended for the addressee only. If you have received it in error, please contact 
the sender and delete the material from your computer. Please be aware that information in 
this email may be confidential, legally privileged and/or copyright protected.  
 

Rep 6 

We object to the application for a Licence for recorded and live music and sale and supply of 
alcohol, to be open from 10am to midnight 7 days a week, at the site of the former Exodus 
restaurant in Mountgrove Road, (address 177A & 177B Blackstock Road) on the following 
grounds: 

-Loss of amenity to local residents; 

-Disturbance and public nuisance to local residents due to loud music emanating from the 
premises; 

- The premises is not suitable for music as the construction of the building is not capable of 
absorbing sound; 

-Disturbance and public nuisance to local residents due to the increase in foot and vehicle 
traffic late at night; 

-Disturbance and public nuisance from anti-social behaviour e.g. raised voices, shouting, 
and drunken behaviour; 

-Other anti-social behaviour and public nuisance such as littering in the form of broken glass 
and fast food left in the street (pet dogs get sick if they eat rotten food they find in the street; 
this can range from minor illness to the need for hospitalisation), urinating in the street, and 
drunken/intoxicated people intimidating local resident and passers-by. (It is already 
unacceptable on football match days when fans spill out of the Arsenal Tavern on 
Mountgrove Road, shouting, and urinating in Mountgrove Road and Canning Road); 

-Criminal activity due to potential increase in drug dealing, and drug paraphernalia left on the 
street. (Canning Road has been suffering from late night drug dealing for many months); 

Page 41



-Canning Road is a quiet residential street. This development is not appropriate for this area. 

The Conditions of licensing include: 

• No adverse impacts on residents 
• Should not impact in terms of crime, disorder and public nuisance 

Therefore, it is clear that this application cannot be granted. 

Rep 7 

Dear Sir or Madam, 

I would like tom register my objection to the granting of a licence to the planned club at the 
above address. 

• Clearly, a club at this particular location will incur adverse impacts on residents. This 
is because of the noise generated as the two rows – one along Blackstock Road and 
the other along Canning Road, form an unintended echo chamber that causes 
intense amplification of sounds affecting all who live in these two sections of those 
streets. 

• Such a club will also increase crime, disorder and public nuisance because the 
narrow residential streets: Mountgrove Road, Canning Road and Blackstock Road, 
cannot contain the expected movement of large people prone to anti-social 
behaviour. 

Please turn down this application. 

Your faithfully, 

Rep 8 

Response to planning application 
 
I wish to object to the application for a Licence for recorded and live music and for the sale 
and supply of alcohol at the site of the former Exodus restaurant in Mountgrove Road, 
(address 177A & 177B Blackstock Road) and for the proposed business to be open from 
10am to midnight 7 days a week.  The objection is on the following grounds: 
 
-Loss of amenity to local residents 
 
-Disturbance and public nuisance to local residents due to loud music issuing from the 
premises 
 
- The premises is not suitable for music as the construction of the building is not designed for 
and therefore not capable of absorbing sound 
 
-Disturbance and public nuisance to local residents due to the increase in foot and vehicle 
traffic late at night. 
 
-Disturbance and public nuisance from anti-social behaviour e.g. raised voices, shouting, 
drunken behaviour 
 
-Other anti-social behaviour and public nuisance such as littering in the form of broken glass 
and fast food left in the street (pet dogs get sick when they eat rotten food they find in the 

Page 42



street.  This can range from minor illness to the need for hospitalisation), urinating in the  
street, and drunken/intoxicated people intimidating local residents and passers-by. (It is 
already unacceptable on football match days when fans spill out of the Arsenal Tavern on 
Mountgrove Road, shouting, and urinating in Mountgrove Road and Canning Road) 
 
-Criminal activity due to potential increase in drug dealing, and drug paraphernalia left on the 
street. (Canning Road has been suffering from late night drug dealing for many months) 
 
-Canning Road is a quiet residential street. This development is not appropriate for this area. 
 
The Conditions of licensing include: 
 
No adverse impacts on residents 
Should not impact in terms of crime, disorder and public nuisance Therefore, it is evident 
that this application should not be granted. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 

Page 43



Appendix 4 

Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule 
1. A refusal log shall be kept on the premise. 
2. No children under the age of 18 shall be allowed on the premises without being accompanied by a 

responsible adult. 
3. The premises shall have an external roller metal window shutter to be used when premises are 

closed. 
4. The premised shall operate a zero tolerance policy on use of drugs. 
5. Staff shall be trained on how to deal with instances where individuals are under the influence of 

drugs and an organizational duty of care policy will be communicated to all staff.  
6. Instances where staff deal with individuals under the influence shall be recorded in an incident log.  
7. The licence shall ensure that customers waiting for taxis/ubers will be able to wait inside until 

transport arrives for a quick and quiet dispersal. 
8. The licence holder shall ensure that a full risk assessment is completed pre-opening identifying 

potential hazards within the physical premises and setting our precautions to manage these hazards.  
Including maintaining that all staff adhere to environmental health requirements These risk 
assessment shall be reviewed regularly and logged.  

9. The licence holder shall ensure that routine checks of the premises will take place every day. That 
any new hazards found will be logged and communicated. 

10. The licence holder shall ensure that toilets will be checked and cleaned regularly throughout the 
daily operation. 

11. The premises shall have a fully stocked first aid boxes will be available on the premises throughout 
operating hours. 

12. The licence holder shall ensure that accidents will be logged within an accident book which will be 
regularly reviewed and any required mitigating action implemented. 

13. The licensee that ensure that staff clear up spillages and broken glass immediately.  

Conditions proposed by the Police Licensing Team (Accepted) 
14. The premises will operate a proof of age scheme, such as challenge 25 

(a) Staff engaged in alcohol sales shall be trained in the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
(b) Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK driving licence, or 

holographically marked PASS scheme cards, will be accepted. 
15. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or an 

authorised officer, which will record the following 
(c) All crimes reported to the venue 
(d) Any complaints received 
(e) Any incidents of disorder 
(f) Any faults in the CCTV system 
(g) Any visit known to (or brought to the attention of), the management, by a relevant authority 

or emergency service 
(h) Any and all ejections of patrons 
(i) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(j) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 

16. In the event that any assault, serious crime or disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on 
the premises, the management will arrange upon becoming aware of it that: 

(a) The police (and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service) are called without 
unreasonable delay 

(b) Where staff consider it safe to do so, all reasonable measures are taken to apprehend any 
suspect pending the arrival of the police 

(c) Where it is noted that police attendance will occur, any crime scene is preserved until the 
arrival of police, so as to enable a full forensic investigation to be carried out by the police 

(d) Such other measures are taken, as far as is reasonably practicable, to fully protect the safety 
of all persons present on the premises. 

 

Page 44



17. CCTV shall be installed, operated and maintained, at all times that the premises is open for 
licensable activities, so as to comply with the following criteria: 

(e) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every week to ensure that the system is 
working properly and that the date and time are correct.  A record of these checks, showing 
the date and name of the person checking, shall be kept and made available to Police or 
authorised Council officers on request, subject to meeting the tests contained within the Data 
Protection Act 1998 

(f) The Police must be informed if the licence holder becomes aware that said system will not 
be operating for longer than one day of business for any reason 

(g) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises 
(h) The system will provide full coverage of the publicly accessible interior of the premises 

(excluding the toilet areas), and any exterior part of the premises accessible to the public 
(i) The system shall record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped 
(j) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided 

free of charge to Police or authorised Council officers on request (subject to the Data 
Protection Act 1998) within 24 hours of any request 

(k) At all times when the premises are open for licensable activities, there will be a person on 
the premises who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council 
officers to view footage on request and to supply a copy of footage immediately to Police to 
assist with the immediate investigation of an offence 

18. There shall be a personal licence holder, or a person who has completed a qualification equivalent 
to (or greater than), the BII Responsible Alcohol Retailing Course on the premises at all times when 
the premises are open for licensable activities. 

19. There shall be no vertical drinking in the premises at any time. 

Conditions proposed by the Noise Team (Accepted) 
20. Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby 

properties. 
21. Noise and/or Odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells serving the building shall 

not cause nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity. 
22. Doors and windows to the premises will be kept closed, so far as practicable, at all times when noise 

generating regulated entertainment is taking place i.e. live and recorded music. 
23. In the event of a noise complaint substantiated by authorised officers, the licensee shall reduce all 

levels of amplified sound until such works are carried out to contain sound and re-assess sound 
levels at the premises to the satisfaction of the Environmental Pollution Policy & Projects Team. 

24. In the event of a noise complaint relating to amplified sound substantiated by authorised officers, the 
licensee shall immediately take appropriate measures in order to prevent further disturbance. 

25. Exterior lighting shall be directed away from residential properties. 
26. There shall be no collections of refuse or bottles between the hours of 23:00 – 08:00hrs. 
27. No rubbish including bottles will be moved, removed or placed in outside areas on Sundays or 

Bank/Public Holidays and between the hours of 23:00hrs and 07:00hrs other days of the week. 
28. The delivery, loading or unloading of licensable goods shall be restricted to the hours between 08:00 

and 20:00hrs Monday-Saturday and no deliveries shall be made on a Sunday or Bank Holiday. 
29. There shall be no bottling out from the premises between 23:00hrs and 08:00hrs. 
30. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting the public to respect 

the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 
31. Drinks shall not be taken outside in open containers for consumption apart from to customers seated 

in any authorised area for external tables and chairs. 
32. Smokers shall not be permitted to take alcoholic drinks outside to the smoking area(s). 
33. The sale of alcohol shall cease 30 minutes before the premises close to provide a “wind down” 

period.  Staff shall be required to take all practical measures to ensure that everyone leaves the 
premises quietly with due respect to the amenity of local residents. 
 

Page 45



Page 46



 

 

 

Environment & Regeneration 

Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, London, N1 1XR 

 

 

 

Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 

Meeting of  

 

Date 

 

Agenda Item 

 

Ward(s) 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 

 

27 November 2018 

 

 

 

Bunhill 

 

Delete as 

appropriate 

 Non-exempt 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Subject: PREMISES LICENCE NEW APPLICATION 

BENUGO,116 ST JOHN STREET, EC1V 4JS 

1. Synopsis 

1.1 This is an application for a new premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 

1.2 The new application is to allow: 

 The sale by retail of alcohol, on and off supplies, from 10:00 until 23:00 Monday to 
Saturday and from 12:00 until 22:30 on Sunday, and 

 The premises to be open to the public from 07:00 until 23:00 Monday to Saturday and 
from 07:00 until 22:30 on Sunday. 

2. Relevant Representations 

Licensing Authority No 

Metropolitan Police No 

Noise No 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

t 1S LINGTON 

Page 47

Agenda Item B2



Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: Four Local Residents 

Other bodies No: 

3. Background

3.1 Papers are attached as follows:-

Appendix 1: application form; 

Appendix 2: representations; 

Appendix 3 response to objectors from applicant; and 

Appendix 4: suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

4.

4.1 

4.2 

Planning Implications

The Planning team have stated that planning permission was granted on 1st July 1998 for 
change of use of ground floor and basement from (A1) retail to the use of the property as a 
restaurant (A3) at no.116 St. John Street only.  They have no record of a planning authorisation 
for the combined address 116-118 St. John Street.

In response to this the applicant has stated, that they have operated at this site for 
approximately 20 years and on acquisition, the two premises 116 and 118 were combined into 
one premises.  They understood on acquisition that planning permission was for A3 for the 
premises.

5 Recommendations 

5.1 To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 
2003. 

5.2 These premises are located in the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Area therefore the Licensing 

Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states that there is a presumption of 

refusal unless the Committee is satisfied that there will be no adverse cumulative impact on the 

licensing objectives. 

5.3 If the Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the Operating
Schedule (see appendix 4)

ii. any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four licensing

objectives.(see appendix 4)

Page 48



6 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

6.1 The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant information, and if 

approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to promote the licensing 

objectives. 

Background papers: 

The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 

Licensing Act 2003 

Secretary of States Guidance 

Final Report Clearance 

Signed by 

Service Director – Public Protection Date 

Received by 

Head of Scrutiny and Democratic Services Date 

Report author: Licensing Service 

Tel: 020 75027 3031 

E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

14 November 2018

Page 49



ffl' ISLINGTON 

Section 1 of 21 

Islington 
Application for a premises licence 
Licensing Act 2003 

Appendix 1 

For help contact 

licensing@islington.gov.uk 

Telephone: 020 7527 3031 

* requ ired informat ion 

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume. 

System reference 

Your reference 

I Not Currently In Use I This is the unique reference for this 
.__ ---------------~ application generated by the system. 

IJOSW I You can put what you want here to help you 
.__ -----------------' track applications if you make lots of them. It 

is passed to the authority. 

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant? Put "no" if you are applying on you r own 
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or 
work for. r- Yes 

Applicant Details 

* First name 

* Family name 

* E-mail 

(' No 

IBenugo Limited 

I I 

I I 
Main telephone number 

Other telephone number 

I I Include country code. 
~---------------~ 

I I 
D Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone 

Is the applicant: 

(e Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader 

r Applying as an individual 

Applicant Business 

Is the applicant's business 
registered in the UK with 
Companies House? 

Registration number 

r- Yes (' No 

-----~ 

A sole trader is a business owned by one 
person w ithout any special legal structure. 
Applying as an individual means the 
applicant is applying so the applicant can be 
employed, or for some other personal reason, 
such as following a hobby. 

Note: completing the Appl icant Business 
section is optional in this form. 

Business name 
,....1------------------, If the applicant's business is registered, use 
._B_e_n_u_g_o_L_im_ it_e_d __________ ~ its registered name. 

VAT number EJI-
Legal status !Private Limited Company 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Put "none" if the applicant is not registered 
for VAT. 

Page 50



Continued from previous page ... 

Applicant's position in the 
business 

Home country 

Registered Address 

Building number or name 

Street 

District 

City or town 

I I 
The country where the applicant's 

._u_n_it_e_d_K_i_n_g_d_o_m __________ ___,_ headquarters are. 

Address registered w ith Companies House. 

ITvp 2 300 

!Thames Valley Park Drive 

!Reading 

County or administrative area ._IB_e_rk_s_h_ir_e _____________ _, 

Postcode 

Country 

Agent Details 

* Fi rst name 

* Family name 

* E-mail 

Main telephone number 

Other telephone number 

IRG61PT 

!united Kingdom 

!John Gaunt & Partners 

IJWallsgrove@john-gaunt.co.uk 

103300584150 

D Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone 

Are you: 

(e' An agent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader 

r A private individual acting as an agent 

Agent Business 

Is your business registered in 
the UK with Companies 
House? 

Is your business registered 
outside the UK? 

(' Yes (e' No 

r Yes (e' No 

Include country code. 

A sole trader is a business owned by one 
person w ithout any special legal structure. 

Note: completing the Appl icant Business 
section is optional in this form. 

Business name I
John Gaunt and Partners I If your business is registered, use its 
._ _________________ _,_ registered name. 

VAT number 

Legal status I Partnersh ip 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT. 

Page 51



Continued from previous page ... 

Your posit ion in the business I I 

Home country !united Kingdom 
I The country where the headquarters of your 

business is located. 

Agent Business Address If you have one, th is should be your official 
address - that is an address required of you 

Build ing number or name !John Gaunt & Part ners by law for receiving communications. 

Street I units 39-41 Haslar Marine Tech Park 

District IHaslar Road 

City or town !Gosport 

County or administrative area I Hampshire 

Postcode IP012 2AG I 
Country !united Kingdom I 

Section 2 of 21 

PREMISES DETAILS 

I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises 
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as t he relevant licensing aut hority 
in accordance w ith section 12 of t he Licensing Act 2003. 

Premises Address 

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises? 

r- Address r OS map reference r Descript ion 

Postal Address Of Premises 

Build ing number or name IBenugo I 
Street i 116 St John Street I 
District I I 
City or town !London I 
County or administrative area I I 
Postcode IECl V 4JS I 
Country !united Kingdom I 
Further Details 

Telephone number I I 
Non-domestic rateable 
value of premises (£) I I 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 52



Section 3 of 21 

APPLICATION DETAILS 

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence? 

D An individual or individuals 

~ A limited company/ limited l iability partnership 

D A partnership (other than lim ited l iability) 

D An unincorporated association 

D Other (for example a statutory corporat ion) 

D A recognised club 

D A charity 

D The proprietor of an educational establishment 

D A health service body 

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act 

D 2000 (cl 4) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales 

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and 
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated 

D activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in 
England 

D The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales 

Confirm The Following 

(g] I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business w hich involves 
the use of the premises for licensable activit ies 

D I am making the application pursuant to a statutory function 

D I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by 
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative 

Section 4 of 21 

NON INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS 

Provide name and registered address of applicant in fu ll. Where appropriate give any registered number. In the case of a 
partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate), give the name and address of each party concerned. 

Non Individual Applicant's Name 

Name 

Details 

Registered number (where 
applicable) 

IBenugo Limited 

--
Description of applicant (for example partnership, company, unincorporated association etc) 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 53



Continued from previous page ... 

!Limited company 

I 

Address 

Building number or name lrvp 2 300 I 
Street lrhames Valley Park Drive I 
District I I 
City or town !Reading I 
County or administrative area lserkshire I 
Postcode IRG61PT I 
Country !united Kingdom I 
Contact Details 

E-mail IJWallsgrove@john-gaunt.co.uk I 
Telephone number 103300584150 I 
Other telephone number I I 
* Date of birth 0 , 0 , 1 I 

dd mm yyyy 

* Nationality I 
I Documents that demonstrate entitlement to 

work in the UK 

I Add another applicant I 
Section 5 of 21 

OPERATING SCHEDULE 

When do you want the 
~ / [!TI i i I 2018 premises licence to start? 
dd mm yyyy 

If you wish the licence to be 
valid only for a limited period, D / D / I I 
when do you want it to end dd mm yyyy 

Provide a general description of the premises 

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the 
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for 
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the 
premises. 

Cafe on one floor w ith outside seating 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 54



Continued from previous page ... 

If S,000 or more people are 
expected to attend the 

I I premises at any one time, 
state the number expected to 
attend 

Section 6 of 21 

PROVISION OF PLA VS 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing plays? 

(' Yes r- No 

Section 7 of 21 

PROVISION OF FILMS 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing films? 

(' Yes r- No 

Section 8 of 21 

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing indoor sporting events? 

(' Yes r- No 

Section 9 of 21 

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments? 

(' Yes r- No 

Section 10 of 21 

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing live music? 

(' Yes r- No 

Section 11 of 21 

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing recorded music? 

(' Yes r- No 

Section 12 of 21 

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing performances of dance? 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 55



Continued from previous page ... 

Section 13 of 21 

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF 
DANCE 

See guidance on regulated entertainment 

Will you be providing anything sim ilar to live music, recorded music or 
performances of dance? 

(' Yes r. No 

Section 14 of 21 

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT 

Will you be providing late night refreshment? 

(' Yes r. No 

Section 1 S of 21 

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol? 

r. Yes r No 

Standard Days And Timings 

MONDAY 
Give t imings in 24 hour clock. 

Start 110:00 I End 123:00 I (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 

I I I 
I of the week when you intend the premises 

Start End to be used for the act ivity. 

TUESDAY 

Start 110:00 I End 123:00 I 
Start I I End I I 

WEDNESDAY 

Start 110:00 I End 123:00 I 
Start I I End I I 

THURSDAY 

Start 110:00 I End 123:00 I 
Start I I End I I 

FRIDAY 

Start 110:00 I End 123:00 I 
Start I I End I I 

SATURDAY 

Start 110:00 I End 123:00 I 
Start I I End I I 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 56



Continued from previous page ... 

SUNDAY 

Start I 12:00 I 
Start .__I _ ___,I 

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption: 

r On the premises r Off the premises 

State any seasonal variations 

End 122:30 I 

End .__I _ ___,I 

r. Both 

If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on 
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol 
is for consumption away from the premises 
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for 
consumption on the premises and away 
from the premises select both. 

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on add itional days during the summer months. 

Non-standard timings. Where the premises w ill be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the 
column on the left, list below 

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve. 

State the name and details of the individual whom you w ish to specify on the 
licence as premises supervisor 

Name 

First name 

Family name 

Date of birth 

______________ __,I Remigijus 

-- I Chmieliauskas 

[i] l [i] / 1• 1 

dd mm yyyy 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 57



Continued from previous page ... 

Enter the contact's address 

Building number or name 

Street 

District 

City or town 

County or administrative area 

Postcode 

Country 

Personal Licence number 
(if known) 

Issuing licensing authority 
(if known) 

• ------~ 
- -----' 
'----------------' - ----' ----------' - ----~ 

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT 

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor 
be supplied to the authority? 

r Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor 

r- As an attachment to this application 

Reference number for consent 
form (if known) 

Section 16 of 21 

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT 

If the consent form is already submitted, ask 
the proposed designated premises 
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your 
reference'. 

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activit ies, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the 
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children 

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give 
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example 
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, fi lms for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc. 

None 

Section 17 of 21 

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

Standard Days And Timings 

MONDAY 

Start lo7:00 

Start 

© Queen's Printer and Cont roller of HMSO 2009 

~--~ Give t imings in 24 hour clock. 
End 123:00 I (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 

I 
of the week when you intend the premises 

End . to be used for the activity. 
Page 58



Continued from previous page ... 

TUESDAY 

Start 107:00 I End 123:00 I 
Start I I End I I 

WEDNESDAY 

Start 107:00 I End 123:00 I 
Start I I End I I 

THURSDAY 

Start 107:00 I End 123:00 I 
Start I I End I I 

FRIDAY 

Start 107:00 I End 123:00 I 
Start I I End I I 

SATURDAY 

Start lo7:oo I End 123:00 I 
Start I I End I I 

SUNDAY 

Start lo7:oo I End 122:30 I 
Start I I End I I 

State any seasonal variations 

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months. 

Non standard t imings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from 
those listed in the column on the left, l ist below 

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve. 

Section 18 of 21 

LICENSING OBJECTIVES 

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four l icensing objectives: 

a) General - all four l icensing objectives (b,c,d,e) 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 59



Continued from previous page ... 

List here steps you w ill take to promote all four licensing object ives together. 

Food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in all parts of the premises where alcohol 
is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises 
Alcohol may only be consumed by persons who are seated at tables. The sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises 
w ill only be to those persons seated immediately outside the premises. 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system . All entry and exit points w ill be covered enabling 
frontal identificat ion of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the 
premises is open for licensable activities and during all t imes when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall 
be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and t ime stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available 
immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day period. 

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all 
t imes when licensable act ivities are provided. This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised counci l 
officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested 

c) Public safety 

d) The prevention of publ ic nu isance 

No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the struct ure of the premises wh ich gives 
rise to a nuisance 

e) The protection of children from harm 

A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only acceptable forms of identification are 
recognised photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS 
Hologram 

Section 19 of 21 

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 60



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not 
limited liability partnerships:  
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:  

• does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
• is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable

activity.
Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder 
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.  
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing 
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this by providing with this application 
copies or scanned copies of the following documents (which do not need to be certified).   
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK 

• An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

• An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

• A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

• A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

• A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

• A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

• A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

• A full birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK which includes the name(s) of at least one of the holder’s
parents or adoptive parents, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

• A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

• A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

• A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

Page 61



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

• A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

• A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

• A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject  to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

• A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 17(3) or 18A
(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2006, to a  person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area  state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

• Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

• Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

• evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,
• evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage

certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
• evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one

of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide 
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the 
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form. 
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the 
following pages should be provided:- 
(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work.
If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided. 
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration 
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be 
determined until you have complied with this guidance. 

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 62



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises  between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

• Live music: no licence permission is required for:
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell

alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not

licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,

community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol

for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,

community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Page 63



Continued from previous page ... 

• Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the 
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains 
licensable. 

• Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, w ith no limit on 
audience size for: 

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided 
by or on behalf of the local authority; 

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the 
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider; 

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or 
on behalf of the school proprietor; and 

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling 
circus, provided that (a) it takes place w ithin a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and 
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days. 

Section 21 of 21 

PAYMENT DETAILS 

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card. 

Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises. 
To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/ 
business_rates/index.htm 
Band A - No RV to £4300 £ 100.00 
Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00 
Band C - £33001 to £87000 £315.00 
Band D - £87001 to £125000 £450.00* 
Band E - £125001 and over £635.00* 
*If the premises rateable value is in Bands Dor E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the 
premises then your are requi red to pay a higher fee 
Band D - £87001 to £125000 £900.00 
Band E - £ 125001 and over£ 1,905.00 
There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls, 
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The 
costs associated w ith these licences w ill be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use of 
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee w ill be required. 
Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment 
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college. 
If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time 
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00 
Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00 
Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00 
Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00 
Capacity 30000-39999 £16,000.00 
Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00 
Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00 
Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00 
Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00 
Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00 
Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00 

* Fee amount (£) I 100.00 I 
DECLARATION 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 64



Continued from previous page ... 

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I 
* understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I 

am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a l icensable activity) and that my 
licence will become inval id if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15). 

The DPS named in this applicat ion form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or 
* her from doing work relating to a licensable act ivity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to work, if 

appropriate (please see note 15) 

~ Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration 

This sect ion should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent act ing on 
behalf of the applicant?" 

* Fu ll name !John Gaunt and Partners 

* Capacity I sol icitors for the applicant 

* Date [ill 1 ~ 1 1 201 s 
dd mm yyyy 

Add anothe r signatory 

Once you're finished you need to do the follow ing: 
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as ... 
2. Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-l icence/islington/apply-1 to upload this file and continue 
with your applicat ion. 
Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand. 

IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE 
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION 

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY 
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF 
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO 
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 1 S OF THE IMMIGRATION, 
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN 
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE 
IS DISQUALIFIED 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 65



OFFICE USE ONLY 

Applicant reference number IJosw 

Fee paid 

Payment provider reference 

ELMS Payment Reference 

Payment status 

Payment authorisation code 

Payment authorisation date 

Date and t ime submitted 

Approval deadline 

Error message 

Is Digitally signed □ 

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Page 66



Existin9 brick painted wall to be sandblasted 
lo expose raw brick 

Exi:lling banquelle seating to be - - ----
removed. Disturbed surfaces to be 
made good 
New loose seating refer lo furniture -·· 
legend drawing 679.01 .6 for quantalies 
ans specifications. 

Contractor to investigate to _____ _ 
see ii brick work can be 
exposed 

New condiments unll. Refer to·-· • 
drawing 679.14.2 for details 

New full height plasterboard -
wall to accept paint 
decoration to both sides 

Free issue lloor lamp 

Existing stainless steel splash back 
to be removed and made good to 
accept paint deooralion 

Existing mozaic eigange to removec1 

Existing extract 10 be exposed -------

Existing banquette - . 
seating to be removed. 
Disturbed surfaces to be 
made good 

New _shelf lo llall height staircase wall. Reier to----
drawing 679.13.1 For details 

Exploratory work to be carried out to ---
understand ii this can be flattened out 

Existing stainless sleet rear counter by to be made --
good. Reier to drawing 679.10.1 For details 

Existing mozalc sign to be retained -· ______ _ 

Existing deli counters lo be over clad. --
Reier lo drawing 679.09.1 For details 

Remove low level cladding to windows--
to existing glass 

Dolled line denotes extent of new canopy. - --- -
Reier to drawing 679.00. t For details 

G 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

. . • J .. . 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Dueling to be removed as part ol strip out 

All new slgnage refer lo elevallon drawings 
679.03.1-2 For detalls 

New joinery tin counter to be installed. Reier lo counter 
drawing 679.04.1 For details 

Stain.less steel rear counter by Comet Catering. Reier to 
drawing 679.05.1 For details 

Soup/Window display counter refer to 
drawing 679,06.1 For details 

·:::.1 - - ··---·--- Oottod line denotes existing oven to be 
, relocated as shown. Refer to draWing 
: 1.r,11.10.1 For details 
1-------Fascias to be made good and decorated 
: Reier lo drawing 679.00.1 For details · 

-New condimont unli. Reier to drawing 
Gi'!l.014.1 For dell'lilll 

111-=-----al-P-s--~ .~ ,/'~.,.,..._,,_____.__ 
I 

I 

Crackad windows to be replaced with 
naw as required 

Hot Counter butchers block to be 
installed. Reier to drawing 679.09.3 --~-y 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I __________ J 

Meal slicer butchers block 10 be 
Installed. Reier to drawing 679.09.3 

New tiles to exterior walls. Reier to drawing 
679.00.1 For detalls 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT 
CU9IT 

BENUGO -FdIA~IU,CII 

flu.-tl, u.tlor~oll ~ iri 

v,i.,IWl:wonbl:f 

~ N FO[RMfo\ U~ON 
Uv I l!.V IV ll'lrUMIVIJ-\ I JUI\! 

sit -· 1:100 ®AS 

P
age 67



Appendix 2

From: 
To: ~ 
Date: 16 October 2018 09:40:37 

To Whom It May Concern 

I live in and I am appealing against this application for licence. 

Whenever a new place ~bar, there is a lot of crowd who make a lot of noise. 
As my appointment is_, the noise comes up to my flat. I believe that if 
alcohol is sold and it is open until late, people will get loud and the noise will get to my 
house. I aheady have problems sleeping so does my husband. I believe this will negatively 
impact mine and my husbands wellbeing. 

My husbands job involves him coming home at 10pm so with this place being open until 
late and the noise that it will create, as with previous places that were opened, he will 
snuggle to sleep and relax. When I have come home late at night, I have witnessed people 
urinating at the black gates late at night, this is as a result of people being out late around 
mallo1y buildings, st john sn·eet. This is not something that is acceptable and it is not 
something that we should have to live with. 

Also, people driving to attend will park in residential areas at night due to free parking so 
if we go out with our car and then aiTive late we will not be able to pai-k. We ai·e ah eady 
snuggling with parking spaces since a minicab fnm opened near Mallo1y Buildings and 
having this place opened for longer will make this problem worse 

There ai·e also a few pubs and bars close by and having another will make the ai·ea loud 
and worse and it will staii changing our area from a nice, clean friendly and safe area to 
the opposite. We aheady have a big number of places within walking range that are open 
late and sell alcohol. We do not need another one. It is changing our nice friendly area, 
where I have lived in this home for over 25 yeai·s, to something that is not nice. 

Mallo1y Buildings and the other close council homes are fainily friendly places, where 
there are a lot of children living in the flats and also older people who have grandchildren 
coming over and staying overnight, especially on weekends, the noise will affect the 
children from sleeping. 

I believe all of these answers your points of public nuisance, crime and disorder, protection 
of children from haim and public safety. I hope you can take all of this into consideration 
when making your decision. I am happy to talk about this in person. 

Rep 1 

Page 68



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: ref wk/180032963 - Benugo 116-118 St John Street
Date: 09 October 2018 19:45:22

Hello

I live in and I with like to state that I am against this application for

licence.

I have a  difficulties in

sleeping at night and if you were to allow this, then it will be detrimental to him as we

live on the ground floor. He 

 because our street is safe. However, having

more places that are open late at night and sell alcohol for people to drink inside and

outside, he will want to go in and we wouldn't know where he is and he won't be safe

around people who may have had too much to drink. We wouldn't feel comfortable for

him to continue going out on his own anymore and this will have a detrimental impact

on his mental health if there are changes which he does not understand.

 do not fully understand danger around them and cannot adapt to

change.

When Cicada (a previous bar) was open, before we had the black gates added at

, people from there use to come near my front door, as I live on the

ground floor and urinate there at night. I had witnessed this myself numerous times

when arriving home late. Since Simmons opened, I have had a few people urinate near

the black gates. This is not something that is acceptable and it is not something that we

should have to live with.

Also, people driving to attend will park in residential areas at night due to free parking so

if we go out with our car and then arrive late we will not be able to park. We are already

struggling with parking spaces since a minicab firm opened near  and

having this place opened for longer will make this problem worse

There are also a few pubs and bars close by and having another will make the area

loud and worse and it will start changing our area from a nice, clean friendly and safe

area to the opposite. We already have a big number of places within walking range that

are open late and sell alcohol. We do not need another one. It is changing our nice

friendly area, where I have lived in this home for over 25 years, to something that is not

nice.

 and the other close council homes are family friendly places, where

there are a lot of children living in the flats and also older people who have

grandchildren coming over and staying overnight, especially on weekends, the noise

will affect the children from sleeping.

I believe all of these answers your points of public nuisance, crime and disorder,

protection of children from harm and public safety. I hope you can take all of this into

consideration when making your decision. I am happy to talk about this over the phone

or in person.

Rep 2

-

Page 69



From:
To: Licensing
Cc:
Subject: Ref WK/180032963, BENUGO 116-118 ST JOHN ST
Date: 19 October 2018 17:04:33
Importance: High

Dear licensing Service Team
Yor Ref WK/18032963
With respect to the licence application for Benugo , basement and Ground floor 116-118 St John
 Street Islington, London, EC1V 4JS
Public Nuisance
As owners of a property that is to 116-118 St John Street we would be directly
 impacted by the increased nuisance levels if this property is granted a licence to sell alcohol
 both on and off premises especially on weekends as this establishment is normally closed on
 weekends and also extending alchol sale to 23.00 weekdays & Saturdays and 22.30 on Sundays
 these are opening times that far exceed the times this establishment normally closes. We are
 already negatively by the noise levels from the Slaughtered lamb on Great Sutton street and
 other public houses on St John street and Clerkjenwell Road (especially on weekends). And the
 licence will only increase the number of smokers coming into the entrance of Leo yard (where
 we live) dropping cigarette butts and general rubbish. We have already had issues with Benugo
 staff coming into the Leo yard to eat their lunch and leaving rubbish behind. We feel that are
 already a significant number of other licenced establishments in close proximity to Benugo on St
 John Street serving Alcohol namely:

- J&A Café, 1-4 Sutton Ln, Clerkenwell, London EC1M 5PU (less than 50 metres away
from the Premises);

- The Slaughtered Lamb at 34-35 Great Sutton Street (less than 75 metres away from the
Premises);

- 1920 Bar at 19-20 Great Sutton Street (less than 100 metres away from the Premises);
- The Sutton Arms at 16 Great Sutton Street (less than 100 metres away from the
Premises); and

- Simmons Bar at 180 St John Street (approximately 225 meters away from the
Premises).

As well as off licence availability at local supermarkets such as Sainsburys (50m) Tesco
(100m away) and Waitrose (100m away) and Brewdog Bar Clerkenwell road

When I asked the manager of Benugo about the application she said she was against it
but Head office wanted to ‘maximize profits’

Crime and Disorder
On numerous occasions we have had members of the public late at night coming into the
 entrance of  Benugo and urinating
 and defecating
in the entrance area right next to the entrance to our building  which we have had to
 clean up ourselves) we have had to clear up broken wine glasses, beer bottles and takeaway
 containers. This activity increases after pub opening hours esp after dark. To add another
 licenced establishment so close to  will only serve to increase the likelihood of this type
 of behaviour.
Protection of Children from Harm
Pls see above re broken glass and human waste in close proximity to where we access our home
 with our  son.
Public safety

Rep 3

-

--
-

-
Page 70



Any build-up of patron’s outside the entrance to to Benugo will already increase the risk of
 accidents on a very busy crossing on both St John Street and Clerkenwell road.
I strongly object to the granting of this Licence

Page 71



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: WK/180032963 - Benugo, Basement and Ground Floor, 116-118 St John Street, Islington, London EC1V 4JS
Date: 16 October 2018 17:43:41

Dear Licensing Service Team
Your ref: WK/180032963
I write with reference to the licensing application sought with respect to Benugo, Basement and
 Ground Floor, 116-118 St John Street, Islington, London EC1V 4JS (the “Premises”).
I note that the Premises is located within the Bunhill and Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area of
 Islington (the “Area”), and is proximate to the following licensed premises, excluding those in
 Clerkenwell Square (the “Competing Establishments”):

- J&A Café, 1-4 Sutton Ln, Clerkenwell, London EC1M 5PU (less than 50 metres away
from the Premises);

- The Slaughtered Lamb at 34-35 Great Sutton Street (less than 75 metres away from the
Premises);

- 1920 Bar at 19-20 Great Sutton Street (less than 100 metres away from the Premises);
- The Sutton Arms at 16 Great Sutton Street (less than 100 metres away from the
Premises); and

- Simmons Bar at 180 St John Street (approximately 225 meters away from the
Premises).

Taking the licensing objectives in turn:
1. The prevention of crime and disorder

· The stated purpose of Islington Council’s cumulative impact area policy is to
identify those areas which have a high number of licensed premises that
collectively lead to problems related to licencing objectives.
· I would have to defer to the Police and Islington Council as regards the
frequency of such “problems”, but take it as read that given that the Premises
fall within the Area that this is a cause for concern.
· I note that the incidence of drunkenness (including individuals urinating and
vomiting in doorways), graffiti and other vandalism, criminal behaviour
(including moped/scooter-borne crime, burglary and drug-abuse) is marked in
the Area, and clearly something the Police and Islington Council are trying to
address given the frequency of CCTV-enabled vehicles patrolling the vicinity
(particularly immediately south of the junction of Clerkenwell Road and St John
Street); yet, in my experience, fighting/swearing/loud singing/shouting/smashed
glasses/the smell of alcohol/blocked pavements (by patrons and piled up
rubbish) etc., particularly outside of The Slaughtered Lamb and Simmons Bar, is
already an issue on both Great Sutton Street and St John Street given the
number of Competing Establishments.
· The incidence of homelessness is also acute in the Area, and I have regularly
seen individuals begging for money outside each of the Competing
Establishments (often those persons who also tend to locate themselves near
the Tesco and Waitrose supermarkets on St John Street).

2. The prevention of public nuisance
· There is a greater density of residential properties (albeit above street level) at
the junction of Clerkenwell Road and St John Street and, accordingly, an
increased possibility of noise from both patrons of and music emanating from
the Premises proving a cause for alarm/offense/irritation for occupants.

Rep 4

Page 72



· On a personal note, the only time there is any semblance of quiet on St John
Street outside of my property is c.8pm onwards each day, when rush hour is
over, the non-alcohol licenced premises/shops nearby are shut and footfall
abates; adding a bar into the mix can only cause “public nuisance” to the
residents within the  postcode

· The “problems” referred to above will necessitate an increased burden on
Islington Council and the Police, both in terms of call outs and patrolling more
generally, with a concomitant cost to Islington Council Tax payers.
· Alcohol delivery trucks will be unable to park on either of the main roads
(Clerkenwell Road / St John Street) outside of the Premises, both of which have
double yellow lines. There are also traffic light pedestrian crossings on both the
South and West sides of the Premises, neither of which should be impeded.

3. Public safety
· Overflowing pavements from what would be an on and off-licence may cause
pedestrians to utilise the road, or veer close to it, which is a hazard.
· Smashed glasses will cause a risk of injury to individuals and damage to
vehicles. There is also a risk of damage to those stationary vehicles from patrons
exiting the Premises.

4. The protection of children from harm
· The points raised in bullets 1-3 above, and the risks highlighted apply as much
to children as they do to adults.

For the reasons outlined above, I must strongly object to the granting of an alcohol licence in
 respect of the Premises.
Yours faithfully,

- -

Page 73



Appendix 3 

London Borough of Isl ington 
Licensing Officer 
Islington Town Hall 
222 Upper Street 
Islington 
London 
Nl lXR 

Dear Sir of Madam, 

JGGP John Gaun, 
& Partners 

Licensing Solicitors 

Our Ref: JONW/ BEN/BEN195 
Contact : Jon Wallsgrove 

05 November 2018 

Premises Licence- Benugo Clerkenwell, Benugo, 116 St John Street, 
London, EC1 V 4JS 

We act for the applicant and write further to the letters of representation you 
have forwarded to us from four residents. We would be grateful if you would 
pass on this letter to each of them. 

Having discussed the issues raised in the representations with my client they 
would be willing to amend the application if the residents reconsidered their 
position and wi thdrew their representation and confirm that a hearing is not 
requ ired in this matter. 

Before setting out the revision to the application our client is willing to make we 
would like to make some general observations and to confirm the conditions 
which will be imposed on the licence if it is granted. Those conditions we believe 
go a long way to address the concerns expressed by residents and the 
amendment we respectfully suggest should remove any rema ining concern. 

Our client wou ld like to reassure the residents that the nature and character of 
the Benugo will not change whatsoever if the premises licence is granted. There 
will be no " bar" within the venue and customers wi ll be required to be seated. 
There will be no "vertical drinking." 

Benugo already operate several licensed sites in the same way that this branch 
will do so, for example Benugo at John Lewis Oxford Street and Benugo at 
Waterloo Station. There will be a limited offer of bott led beer, wine and spirits 
but there will be no draught beers. Primarily this is to offer the early evening 
visitors to the venue an opportunity to enjoy a greater choice of beverages and 
able to enjoy a glass of beer or wine in very different surroundings to a pub or 
wine bar. 

Tel: 03300 584 150 
Helpline: 0114 266 3400 
Fax: 0114 267 9613 
Email: gosport@john-gaunt.co.uk 
www. john-gaunt.co.uk 

Partners: Tim Shield (S69713i 

Michelle Hazlewood !56971 4) 

Christopher Grunert 
Jon Wallsgrove 

Practice Manager: Jonathan Pupius 

John Gaunt P. Partners 
Units 39-41 

Haslar Marine Technology Park 
Haslar Road, Gosport 

PO12 2AG 
John Ga.um & Pa1tners a1Jtho,"isE:1d and regulated by the SOlci:01s Regulation AtJlhority - SRA No. 173393. Sol.Cl:lors of Eng}ar)CJ & Wales. We use the wo,d -partner" 10 reJef either to a panner ot .. onn Gaunt & Panners (the "ltm~).a.n ona 
hOlde< in a Qartner: or 3n etl1)f0yee Of c:onsunant ol the firm With eqUvatent ~landing ana quaur~cauons. Head Ottlce: Jotln Gaunt & Partners, 372-374 Cemetery Road, SMtrteld , s11 8FT 

Page 74



JG~P John Gaun~ 
6 Partners 

Licensing Solicitors 
The police and Local Licensing Authority have asked for the following list of 
conditions to be added to the licence. Our client's agreement to these conditions 
has led to both the Police and Licensing Officer withdrawing their objections to 
the application: 

1) The premises will operate a proof of age scheme, such as challenge 25 
(a) Staff engaged in alcohol sales shall be trained in the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 
(b) Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK 
driving licence, or holographically marked PASS scheme cards, will be accepted. 

2) An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made avai lable on request to 
the police or an authorised officer, which wil l record the following 
(a) All crimes reported to the venue 
(b) Any complaints received 
(c) Any incidents of disorder 
(d) Any faults in the CCTV system 
(e) Any visit known to (or brought to the attention of), the management, by a 
relevant authority or emergency service 
(f) Any and all ejections of patrons 
(g) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(h) Any refusal of the sa le of alcohol 

3) In the event that any assault, serious crime or disorder is, or appears to have 
been, committed on the premises, the management will arrange upon becoming 
aware of it that: 
(a) The police (and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service) are called 
without unreasonable delay 
(b) Where staff consider it safe to do so, all reasonable measures are taken to 
apprehend any suspect pending the arrival of the police 
(c) Where it is noted that police attendance will occur, any crime scene is 
preserved until the arrival of police, so as to enable a full forensic investigation to 
be carried out by the police 
(d) Such other measures are taken, as far as is reasonably practicable, to fully 
protect the safety of all persons present on the premises. 

4) CCTV shall be installed, operated and maintained, at all times that the 
premises is open for licensable activities, so as to comply with the following 
criteria: 
(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every week to ensure that 
the system is working properly and that the date and time are correct. A record 
of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, shall be kept 
and made avai lable to Police or authorised Council officers on request, subject to 
meeting the tests contained within the Data Protection Act 1998 
(b) The Police must be informed if the licence holder becomes aware that said 
system will not be operating for longer than one day of business for any reason 
(c) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises 
(d) The system will provide full coverage of the publicly accessible interior of the 
premises (excluding the toilet areas), and any exterior part of the premises 
accessible to the public 

Tel: 03300 584 150 
Helpline: 0114 266 3400 
Fax: 0114 267 9613 
Email: gosport@john-gaunt.co.uk 
www.john-gaunt.co.uk 

Partners: Tim Shield t56971JJ 

Michelle Hazlewood (569714! 

Christopher Grunert 
Jon Wallsgrove 

Practice Manager: Jonathan Pupius 

John Gaunt i' Partners 
Units 39-41 

Haslar Marine Technology Park 
Haslar Road, Gosport 

P012 2AG 
Jo1,.-. Gaunt & Pann.,rs autnotiseo and o::rgdat&d by the Solicitors Regulation Auctiorlty - SRA No. 1 ?3393. SolldtCfS of Englano & Wates. We us:e the word 4partne,• to re,er etiner to a painner of John Ga1.nt & Parlners (the " llrm•);an olUoe 
no~e< In a l)a:ftner. or an emplOyeeor consultant o f the firm with equivalent standing and QUS1lifica1ions. Head Ofilce: John Gaunt 6 P,itner~. 372~74 Cemetory Aoad, Shesff"'4d. S1 1 8FT 

Page 75



JG6P John Gaun, 
t Partners 

Licensing Solicitors 
(e) The system shall record in real time and recordings will be date and time 
stamped 
(f) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will 
be provided free of charge to Police or authorised Council officers on request 
(subject to the Data Protection Act 1998) within 24 hours of any request 
(g) At all times when the premises are open for licensable activities, there will be 
a person on the premises who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police 
or authorised Council officers to view footage on request and to supply a copy of 
footage immediately to Police to assist with the immediate investigation of an 
offence 

5) There shall be no vertical drinking at any time either inside, or outside, the 
premises. All patrons shall be seated at tables or at static bar stools. 

6) There shall be no off-sales under any circumstances, other than to patrons 
seated outside. There shall be no 'take home' sales made under the premises off 
licence. 

7) The number of persons seated outside shall be limited to (number to be 
determined by any licence granted by the LBI tables and chairs team) 

8) External tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 22.00 each day. 

It is an important factor that no Responsible Authorities have made a 
representation against this appiication. Under the Guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State for the Licensing Act it is made clear that the Responsible 
authorities are experts in their respective fields and the Licensing Authority 
should attach great weight to their views, unless there is credible evidence to 
counter those views. Given there is no objection the Committee must in our 
respectful view, attach considerable weight to that and would only be able to 
refuse the application in the face of substantial evidence to the contrary . 

Our client does acknowledge the concerns raised by each of the residents and 
does not intend to have any adverse effect on the local community by selling 
alcohol if the licence were granted. Accordingly, they would be prepared to revise 
the application so that the sale of alcohol ceased at 9pm each day. 

Given that much earlier time and that the alcohol offer is going to be very much 
an ancillary offer, with the conditions above we would suggest there cannot 
possibly be any negative impact either on the cumulative impact nor on one or 
more of the four licensing objectives. 

Finally, we would like to remind residents that the Licensing Act provided a quick 
and easy remedy for those premises which do have a negative impact and that is 
a review of the premises licence. If our client did not operate the licence in 
accordance with the conditions imposed and/or that there was an increase in anti
social behaviour or nuisance because of the premises selling alcohol the licence 
could be reviewed and back before the Committee in a matter of weeks. 

It is for this reason that we would be inviting the Licensing Authority to grant the 
premises licence. When the Licensing Act was introduced the Government made 
it clear they wanted to change the way society bought and consumed alcohol and 
wanted to create a "cafe culture." Benugo is exactly the sort of premises the 

Tel: 03300 584 150 
Helpline: 0114 266 3400 
Fax: 0114 267 9613 
Email: gosport@john-gaunt.co.uk 
www. john-gaunt.co.uk 

Partners: Tim Shield (569713) 

Michelle Hazlewood cs69714) 

Christopher Grunert 
Jon Wallsgrove 

Practice Manager: Jonathan Pupius 

John Gaunt <, Partners 
Units 39-41 

Haslar Marine Technology Park 
Haslar Road, Gosport 

P012 2AG 
Jann Gaun1 & Partnefs authOrisecl and regulated by lhe SO.'icilo,s Regulation At.Atlortty - SRA No. 173393. Sollcuors of England & Wales, We use the word •pann8" to refer either to a panner of Jcl1n Oeun1 & Pattnet$ (11')8 "l'irm");an offiee 
hOloer in a panner: or an emptoyee or COf"fflAt.anl er 1he flfm with equ1va1ent stanc'1ng &no qu8lifica.1ions. Head Offk::8: JOhn Gau,t & Par1ners, 372+3?'4 Ceme1ery Aoad. Stieffie1d, s11 8FT 

Page 76



{ /_,· JG
,,) p 

c:1( John Gounr 
6 Partners 

Licensing Solicitors 
Government had in mind. A place to go for any age group in a relaxed and safe 
environment where the focus was not simply on drinking alcohol. 

We would be more than happy to answer any further questions or concerns you 
may have which either may be directed through the Licensing Officer at the Local 
Authority or directly to Jon Wallsgrove. 

Thank you for your time in reading this letter and if you have changed your view 
and are prepared to withdraw your representation please write to the Licensing 
Officer as soon as possible. 

Yours faithfully 

John Gaunt & Partners 
Email: JWallsgrove@john-gaunt.co.uk 

Tel: 03300 584 150 
Helpline: 0114 266 3400 
Fax: 0114 267 9613 
Email• gosport@john-gaunt.co.uk 
www.john-gaunt.co.uk 

Partners: Tim Shield cse9113J 

Michelle Hazlewood (569114; 

Christopher Grunert 
Jon Wallsgrove 

Practice Manager• Jonathan Pupius 

John Gaunt i:.' Partners 
Units 39-41 

Haslar Marine Technology Park 
Haslar Road, Gosport 

P012 2AG 
John Gauo1 & Partners au1t10flsed Md regUlated by me SoWcltors FtegutaUon Autnonry .. SAA No. 173393. Sollckors of England & Wates. We u~ the word "'partner" to refer elther to a panner of Jonn Gaunt & Partners (tha ''l.rm-);an omce 
holder in a par1ner; or an emproyee °' consultanl ct the firm with eq1Ave1et11 stancfng and qualilica1i0ns. Head Office: Jotin Gaunt 6 Panners, 372-374 cemetery Roa,ct, Sheffield, s 11 8FT 

Page 77



Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule 

1. A proof of age scheme, such as Challenge (25), shall be operated at the premises
where the only acceptable forms of identification are:

a)  recognised photographic identification cards, such as: a driving license or
passport / holographical marked PASS scheme identification cards

b) Staff engaged in alcohol sales shall be trained in the promotion of the licensing
objectives

2. Non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available on the
premises

3. Alcohol sales only to be permitted to seated customers.

4. The sale of Alcohol for consumption off the premises shall only be to those persons
seated immediately outside the premises.

5. Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance
to nearby properties.

Conditions Agreed with the Metropolitan Police 

6. CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the
premises is open for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following
criteria:

a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure
that the system is working properly and that the date and time are correct.

b)  A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking,
will be kept and made available to the police or other authorised officer on
request;

c) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a
clear, full length image of anyone entering;

d) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any
exterior part of the premises accessible to the public;

e) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time
stamped;

f) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on
the premises who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or
authorised Council officers to view footage on request.

g) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will
be provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request
(subject to the Data Protection Act 1998) within 24 hours of any request.

Appendix 4

Page 78



7. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the
police or an authorised officer, which will record the following

a) All crimes reported to the venue
b) Any complaints received

c) Any incidents of disorder

d) Any faults in the CCTV system

e) Any visit known to (or brought to the attention of), the management, by a
relevant authority or emergency service

f) Any and all ejections of patrons

g) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons

h) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol

8. In the event that any assault, serious crime or disorder is, or appears to have been,
committed on the premises, the management will arrange upon becoming aware of
it that:

a) The police (and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service) are called
without unreasonable delay

b) Where staff consider it safe to do so, all reasonable measures are taken to
apprehend any suspect pending the arrival of the police

c) Where it is noted that police attendance will occur, any crime scene is
preserved until the arrival of police, so as to enable a full forensic
investigation to be carried out by the police

d) Such other measures are taken, as far as is reasonably practicable, to fully
protect the safety of all persons present on the premises.

Conditions Agreed with the Licensing Authority 

9. No sale of alcohol shall be permitted for consumption off the premises - if the external
seating area is not included on the plan.

10. The number of persons seated outside shall be limited to (number to be determined
by any licence granted by the LBI tables and chairs team)

11. External tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 22.00 each day.

12. There shall be no vertical drinking at any time either inside, or outside, the premises.
All patrons shall be seated at tables or at static bar stools.

13. There shall be no off-sales under any circumstances, other than to patrons seated
outside. There shall be no 'take home' sales made under the premises off licence.

Page 79



MAPTHAT V3 

~ Islington Borough Boundary 

fl':. 9 LLPG Points (Postal) 

■ 9 LLPG Points (Non-postal and 
Postal) 

Borough Wide + 

Searcn 

_,,,. ..... .. ..... ( .. 

' 

' ' ' 

I:1111'- XO 0 C•- --"'--' 

... -··· \. _L~:;;:;;::- , __ :;.::;;:.--\ 
\' - ·· - ·~ 

' ' ' ' ' 

. 
' 

' 
' 

'· ··--·-···-·-----· ---------·····-·········-····--
·········-······-· 

:·· ·-. -- --. ·-. -- . -.. ---. ----. --., 
. ' .. 
i : 

.. 
· ·· - -· · · ···- -;_ -: · ·· · ··· · ·· · - - j.' 1---l 

' . 

, • 

. , 

Charterhouse 

'J). <,O~\• 

-0 
~ 
"' , , ,.,:,,. ..... 

·-a· ......... .. : 
,,: 

"' 

... / ~ 
........ 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' , :{ 
,.: .. : •"" \ -~, \ \. 

'. .. . 
' < . ' 

.,. 

< 

Wotf&on ln&.1:ltute of Prewn; 

P
age 80



Environment & Regeneration 

Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, London, N1 1XR 

Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 

Meeting of Date Agenda Item Ward(s) 

Licensing Sub-Committee 27th November 2018 Bunhill 

Delete as 

appropriate 

Non-exempt 

Subject: PREMISES LICENCE VARIATION APPLICATION 

RE: FOR A SPACE, 71 CENTRAL STREET, LONDON, EC1V 8BU. 

1. Synopsis

1.1 This is an application for the variation of a premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2 The premises currently holds a licence allowing:

In the restaurant area:

 The sale by retail of alcohol, on supplies only, Mondays to Saturdays from 10:00 until
22:30 and Sundays from 10:00 until 22:00; and

 to be open to the public, Mondays to Saturdays from 10:00 until 23:00 and Sundays
from 10:00 until 22:00.

In all other specified areas: 

 The sale by retail of alcohol, on and off supplies (except the area marker B on the layout
plan where off supplies are not authorised), Mondays to Sundays from 10:00 until 22:00;
and

 to be open to the public, Mondays to Sundays from 10:00 until 22:00.

t 1S LINGTON 

Page 81

Agenda Item B3



1.3 The variation application is to extend the terminal hour, within the restaurant area only, so as to 
allow: 

 The sale by retail of alcohol, on supplies, Mondays to Saturdays from 10:00 until 23:00
and Sundays from 10:00 until 22:30;

 to be open to the public, Mondays to Saturdays from 10:00 until 23:30 and Sundays
from 10:00 until 23:00; and

 to add off supplies for the restaurant area.

Note: 

All other licensed areas and hours will remain the same. 

2. Relevant Representations

Licensing Authority No 

Metropolitan Police No 

Noise No 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: Three local residents 

Other bodies No: 

3. Background

3.1 Papers are attached as follows:

Appendix 1: application form; 

Appendix 2: current premises licence; 

Appendix 3: representations; and 

Appendix 4: suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

3.2 This premises licence was initially granted before a licensing sub-committee on 11 h October 
2016 before a variation application was approved, to extend the terminal hour for the restaurant 
area only, before a licensing sub-committee on 4 h July 2017. 

4. Planning Implications

4.1 None 

5 Recommendations 

Page 82



5.1 To determine the application for a variation of the premises licence under Section 34 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

5.2 These premises are located in the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Area therefore the Licensing 

Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states that there is a presumption of 

refusal unless the Committee is satisfied that there will be no adverse cumulative impact on the 

licensing objectives. 

5.3 If the Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the Operating
Schedule (see appendix 4)

ii. any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four licensing

objectives.(see appendix 4)

6 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

6.1 The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant information, and if 

approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to promote the licensing 

objectives. 

Background papers: 

The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 

Licensing Act 2003 

Secretary of States Guidance 

Final Report Clearance 

Signed by 

Service Director – Public Protection Date 

Received by 

Head of Scrutiny and Democratic Services Date 

Report author: Licensing Service 

Tel: 020 75027 3031 

E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

14 November 2018

Page 83



S'2.\\1 

Islington Council 

Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are completing 
this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all·cases ensure that your answers are inside the 
boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

11\\'e _ Fora S_l?acel..imited _________________________________________________________________________________________ _ 
(Insert name(s) of applicant) 

being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below 

I Premises licence number 16944-040717

Part 1 - Premises Details 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Fora Space 
71 Central Street 

Post town I I..ondon I Postcode I EClV 8BU

Telephone number at premises (if any) 

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £ no rateable value 

Part 2 - Applicant details 

Daytime contact 
telephone number 
E-mail address ( optional)
Current postal address if different 89 Wai'dour Street 
from premises address 

Post town I I..ondon I. Postcode I WlFOUB 

1 

Appendix 1

I 

.. I 
I I -, 

-

I -
I -

Page 84



Part 3 - Variation 

Please tick as appropriate 
Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible? 181Yes 

No 

DD MM 
I I I I I I 

If not, from what date do you want the variation to take effect? 

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the introduction of the late night levy? 
(Please see guidance note 1) D Yes � No 

Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please see guidance note 1) 

The proposed variation is extend the hours for the sale of alcohol in the area marked A 'the restaurant' on the 
existing licensing plan from the current hours of Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 22:30 and Sunday 10:00 to 
22:00 to the new hours of Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 23:00 and Sunday 10:00 to 22:30. All other licensed 
areas and hours will remain the same. 

The opening hours for the area marked A 'the restaurant' on the existing licensing plan will be Monday to 
Saturday 10:00 to 23:30 and Sunday 10:00 to 23:00. 

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people are 
expected to attend the premises at any one time, please state the number �I _N_IA _______ � 
expected to attend: 

2 

□ 

yyyy 

I 

I 

Page 85



Part 4 Operating Schedule 

Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to change if this 
application to vary is successful. 

Provision of regulated entertainment Please tick all that apply 

a) 

b) 

c) 

d) 

e) 

f) 

g) 

h) 

plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A) 

films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) 

indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C) 

boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D) 

live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) 

recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) 

performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G) 

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) 
(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I} 

Sale by retail of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J) 

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M 

A 

Standa� and timings 
(please read gui ote 
6) 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 

Tue 

Will the performance of a play take place indoors or 
outdoors or both -please tick (please read guidance 
note 2) 

3 

Indoors 

Outdoors 

Both 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

D 

Page 86



State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read guidance note 
�--t-----1 4) .

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

B 

�· 

d timings 
ance note 

Day Start "�ish 

Mon "" 

Tue 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

Will the exhibition of films talce place indoors or
D outdoors or both - please tick (please read guidance Indoors 

note 2) 
Outdoors D 

Both D 

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3) 

State anv seasonal)m;ations for the exhibition of fihris (please read guidance 
note 4) 

Non standard timinlls. Where vou intend to'bse the nremises for the 
exhibition of films at different times to those lishvt in the column on the left. 
please list (please read guidance note 5) 

4 

ou intend to use the remises for the 
es to those listed in the column on the 

~ 

Page 87



c 

�v�m 
and timings 
dance note 

) 

Day Start �ish 

Mein 

Tue 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

D 

ing or wrestling 
ente · ents 
Standard and timings 
(please read gu1 ce note 
6) 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 

Tue 

Wed 

Please give further details {please read guidance note 3) 

State� seasonal variations for indoor snorting: events (please read guidance 
note 4) 

Non standard timinl!s. Where� intend to use the nremises for indoor 
soortin2 events at different times tolbose listed in the column on the left. 
please list (please read guidance note 5

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take place 
indoors or outdoors or both -please tick (please read 
guidance note 2) 

Indoors 

Outdoors 

Both 

further details here (please read guidance note 3) 

State an seasonal variations for boxin 

D 

D 

D 

1------1-----1 read guidance note 4) 

Thur 

5 

',I 

"' "' ---

~ 
""-... 

....... 

~ 
Please~ 

V sz or ~insz entertainment (please 

Page 88



Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for boxing or 
1--:==-......t:�--'--1 wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the 

Sat 

Sun 

E 

I� ance note
) 

d timings

Day Start 
Mon 

Tue 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

F 

Ree usic 

... 

�ish 

"" 

Standard days a s 
(please read guidance note 
6) 

Day Start Finish 
Mon 

· eft lease list (please read guidance note 5)

Will the performance of live music talce place indoors 
or outdoors or both - please tick (please read guidance Indoors 
note 2) 

Outdoors 

Both 
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3) 

� 

D 

D 

D 

State anv seasonal)m;ations for the oerformance of live music (please read 
guidance note 4) 

Non standard timin2s. Where vciu intend to'b.:e the oremises for the 
nerformance of live music at different times to those listed in the column on 
the left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Indoors D 
Will the playing ofrecorded music take place indoors 
. or outdoors or both � please tick· (please read guidance 

Outdoors D 

D 

6 

I 
I 

. --

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3) 

Page 89



Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music (please read 
. atice riote 4) 

Non standard timin s. Where intend to use the remises for the la · 
t------+----1 of recorded music at different times those listed in the column on the left 

Sat 

Sun 

G 

�-·· 
d timings 
ance note 

Day Start �ish 
Mon "" 
Tue 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

please list (please read guidance note 5) 

Will the l!erformance of dance take l!lace indoors 
or outdoors or both,.., l!lease tick(please read 
guidance note 2) 

Indoors 

Outdoors 

Both 
Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3) 

� 

D 

D 

D 

State anv·seasonahcariations for the oerformance of dance (please read 
guidance note 4) 

Non standard timin2s. Where vou intencho use the oremises for the 
oerformance of dance at different times to thhse listed in the column on 
the left, l!lease list (please read guidance note 5) 

7 

Page 90



H 

ything of a similar Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be providing 
de iption to that falling 
with" {e), (f) or (g) 
Standar ays and timings 
(please rea idance note 
6) 

Day Start Will this entertainment take place indoors or Indoors 
1------+-----1,.....-�-1 outdoors or both - please tick (please read guidance 

Mon note 2) Outdoors 

D 

D 

Both D 

Tue 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Suri 

I 

La · t refreshment
Standard da timings 
(please read guidance 
6) 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 

Tue 

·ve further details here (please read guidance note 3)

s for entertainment.of a similar descri tion to 

Will the provision of late night refreshment take 
place indoors or outdoors or both - please tick 
(please read guidance note 2) 

8 

Indoors D 

Outdoors D 

Both D 

State 

. . 

Non standard timin s. Where intend 

t------t------1 at different times to those listed in the column 
(please read guidance note 5) 

Page 91



State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night refreshment 
1----�--,---1 (please read guidance note 4) 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

J 

Supply of alcohol 
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance note 
6) 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 10:00 23:00 

Tue 10:00 23:00 

Wed 10:00 23:00 

Thur 10:00 23:00 

Fri 10:00 23:00 

Sat 10:00 23:00 

Sun 10:00 22:30 

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption- On the 
D please tick (please read guidance note 7) premises 

Only applies to the area marked A 'the restaurant' on Off the 
D 

the existing licensing plan. premises 

Both � 

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read 
guidance note 4) 

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the 
supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on the 
left, please list (please read guidance note 5) 

9 

Non standa intend to use the remises for the 
rovision of late different times to those listed in 

the column on th -----------1 

Page 92



K 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters 
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please read 
guidance note 8). 

L 

Hours premises are open 
to the public 
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance note 
6) 

Day Start Finish 

Mon 10:00 23:30 

Tue 10:00 23:30 

Wed 10:00 23:30 

Thur 10:00 23:30 

Fri 10:00 23:30 
. 

Sat 10:00 23:30 

Sun 10:00 23:00 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 4) 

Only applies to the area marked A 'the restaurant' on the existing licensing 
plan. 

Non standard timings. Where you intend the 2remises to be o�n to the 
2ublic at different times from those listed in the column on the lef� J!lease 
list (please read guidance note 5) 

10 

Page 93



Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as a .. 
consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking. 

Please tick as appropriate 

• I have enclosed the premises licence
• I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence

If you have not ticked one of these boxes, please fill in reasons for not including the licence or part of it 
below 

Reasons why I have not enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence. 

11 

181 

0 

I 

I 

--

-

Page 94



M 

Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of the 
proposed variation: 

a General - all four licensin idance note 9 

The style and operation of the premises will not change and all existing polices, procedures and conditions of 
the premises licence will be adhered to. 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

Please see a) above.

c) Public safety

Please see a) above.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Please see a) above.

e) The protection of childi'en from harm

Please see a) above.

12 

Page 95



• 

Checklist: 
Please tick to indicate agreement 

• I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. � 

, I have not made or enclosed payment of the fee because this application has been made in D 
relation to the introduction of the late night levy. 

• I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others where � 
applicable.

• I understand that I must now advertise my application. � 
• I have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation. � 

• I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be � 
rejected.

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE NOT EXCEEDING 
LEVELS ON THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, 
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. 

Part S - Signatures (please read guidance note 10) 

Signature of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant's solicitor or other duly 
authorised agent (please read guidance note 11 ). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in 
what capacity. 

Signature Wooc1e �bi 
Date 2 October 2018 

Capacity Woods Whur2014 Limited Solicitors for the Applicant 

Where the premises licence is jointly held, signature of 2nd applicant (the current premises licence 
holder) or 2nd applicant's solicitor or other authorised agent (please read guidance note 12). If signing 
on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity. 

Signature 

Date 

Capacity 

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this 
application (please read guidance note 13) 
Andrew Woods 
Woods Whur 2014 Limited 
Devonshire House 

38 York Place 

Post town I Leeds

13 

I Post code I LS 1 2ED

Page 96



·. , 

Telephone number (if any) I 0113 234 3055 

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 
Andrew@woodswhur.co.uk 

14 

Page 97



Appendix 2 

ISLINGTON 
PREMISES LICENCE 

LICENSING ACT 2003 

Premises licence 
number 

16944-040717 
Amended(14Nov18) 

Date
t
�f original 13 October 2016 gran 

*An annual fee associated with this licence is to be paid on the anniversary of the
original grant date. 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

FORA SPACE 
71 CENTRAL STREET 

Post town I London I Post code I EC1V 8BU

Telephone number I 
_.- \ 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 
····,.,, Not Aoolicable .. 

\ \
Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
Ground Floor 

'� 
• The sale by retail of alcohol

······ 
... ____

_

____
_
_ 

'

· 
.. 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

• The sale by retail of alcohol - Restaurant Area Only (Area A on layout plan):

Monday 10:00 to 22:30 
Tuesday 10:00 to 22:30 
Wednesday 10:00 to 22:30 
Thursday 10:00 to 22:30 
Friday 10:00 to 22:30 
Saturday 10:00 to 22:30 
Sunday 10:00 to 22:00 

• The sale by retail of alcohol - All other specified areas:

Monday 10:00 to 22:00 
Tuesday 10:00 to 22:00 
Wednesday 10:00 to 22:00 
Thursday 10:00 to 22:00 
Friday 10:00 to 22:00 
Saturday 10:00 to 22:00 
Sunday 10:00 to 22:00 

Gaming Machine Provision: 
Not Applicable 

____ I_I __ _ 

I ' 

I ,/ ', ' 
I ,' 

J I 

Page 98



The opening hours for the restaurant only: 

Monday 10:00 to 23:00 
Tuesday 10:00 to 23:00 
Wednesday 10:00 to 23:00 
Thursday 10:00 to 23:00 
Friday 10:00 to 23:00 

Saturday 10:00 to 23:00 
Sunday 10:00 to 22:00 

The opening hours for all other specified areas: 

Monday 10:00 to 22:00 
Tuesday 10:00 to 22:00 
Wednesday 10:00 to 22:00 
Thursday 10:00 to 22:00 
Friday 10:00 to 22:00 

Saturday 10:00 to 22:00 
Sunday 10:00 to 22:00 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies 

On and Off Supplies 
Note: 
Off supplies only authorised to supply areas marked C, D and E on the attached plan and in 
accordance with Condition 3 of Annex 2 detailed below . 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence 

Fora Space Ltd 
89 Wardour Street 
London 
W1F OUB

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 

09826907 � 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
Liam Daniel Nelson 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 

Islington Council 
Public Protection Division 
222 Upper Street 
London 
N11XR 
T: 020 7527 3031 
E: licensing@islington .gov.uk 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 

Service Manager (Commercial) 

Date of Issue 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:

l I ' 

\ I" I 

Page 99



a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal

licence or his personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by
a person who holds a personal licence.

3. All door supervisors shall be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

4. The admission of children to the exhibition of a film shall be restricted in accordance
with the recommendation of a film classification body as defined in the Video

Recordings Act 1984 or Islington Council acting as the licensing authority where it

has given notice in section 20(3) of the Licensing Act 2003.

There are further 'Mandatory conditions' applicable to licences authorising the supply of 
alcohol. A full list of the current mandatory conditions is available from the licensing pages 

on Islington's web site, www.islington.gov.uk. This list is subject to change by order of the 
Secretary of State and licensees and other responsible persons are advised to ensure they 

are aware of the latest conditions. 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

1. CCTV shall be installed, operated and maintained in agreement with the Police.
Maintained means that the system will be regularly serviced (at least once a year)

and checked every two weeks to ensure that it is storing images correctly and a log
kept and signed by a Supervisor to this effect. The system will provide an
identifiable full head and shoulder image of everyone entering the premises and will

operate in any light conditions within the premises. The system will cover the full
exterior of the premises and shall record in real time, date and time stamped and
will operate whilst the premises is open for licensable activities. The recordings will

be kept for a minimum of 31 days and copies will be made available to an
Authorised Officer or a Police Officer (subject to the Data Protection Act 1998)
within 24hrs of any request free of charge. There will always be a member of staff
on duty who can operate the system, to allow Officers to view recordings and if

required by a Police Officer, provide a copy of images immediately free of charge to
assist in the immediate investigation of offences. If the system malfunctions and
will not be operating for longer than one day of business then Police must be

informed.

2. There shall be no off sales other than to the area marked C, D and E on the
attached plan ("the meeting room·').

3. The provision of off sales as set out in condition 2 for the areas marked C,D and E
will be ancillary to the office use of the premises and alcohol will only be provided
by way of off sales to the following::

a. Office tenants - those persons with a minimum three month contract to occupy

office space at these or other Office Group premises;
b. Club Room members - those persons who pay a minimum membership of

£150 per calendar month;

c. Virtual office members - those persons who pay a minimum of £30 per
calendar month and who pay a minimum charge of £10 per admission to the
premises;

d. Persons attending a private pre-booked event or function, a list of functions to
be kept at reception for inspection by the relevant authorities;

e. Directors and employees of the licence holder and its affiliated companies;
f. Persons who have pre-booked a meeting room and paid a minimum charge of

£20 per visit;
g. Any guests of the above.

4. A list of the names and addresses of members shall be kept on the premises at all

times together with a book showing the names and dates of attendance of any guests
introduced by members. Both the list and the book shall be produced on demand for
inspection by the police or an authorised officer of the Council.Page 100



5. The sale of alcohol in the area marked A will be to persons who are taking a table
meal and ancillary to the table meal (the restaurant).

6. The sale of alcohol in the area marked B will be to a maximum number of 50 persons

with seating provided all customers.

7. No drinks shall be taken outside the premises other than to any area licensed by
Islington Council and to persons who are seated in such areas.

8. An area shall be identified for smokers outside the venue and smokers shall be
monitored and encouraged not to cause noise disturbance and a maximum number
of smokers set in relation to that area.

9. Dedicated licence taxi/mini cab service will be available within the premises for

customers.

10. Signs shall be displayed at the exit reminding customers to leave quietly and respect
the neighbours.

11. There shall be no waste collections or deliveries between 23.00 and 07.00 Mondays
to Saturdays and none between 22.00 and 09.00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

1. There will be table service in the area marked A.

2. Alcohol sales in the area marked B shall only be to members of Fora and their guests.

Annex 4- Plans 

Reference Number: WK/160026006 Date: 17 August 2016 

Page 101



_
 IS

L
IN

G
T

O
N

 
P

re
m

is
e

s
 L

ic
e

n
c

e
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 A

c
t 2

0
0

3
 

P
re

m
is

e
s

 lic
e

n
c

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

1
6
9

4
4

-0
4

0
7

1
7

 
A

m
e

n
d

e
d

(1
4

N
o

v
1

8
) 

D
a

te
 o

f o
rig

in
a

l 
g

ra
n

t* 
1

3
 O

c
to

b
e

r 2
0

1
6
 

*A
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l fe

e
 a

s
s

o
c

ia
te

d
 w

ith
 th

is
 lic

e
n

c
e

 is
 to

 b
e

 p
a

id
 o

n
 th

e
 a

n
n

iv
e

rs
a

ry
 o

f th
e

o
rig

in
a

l g
ra

n
t d

a
te

. 

P
o

s
ta

l a
d

d
re

s
s

 o
f p

re
m

is
e

s
, o

r if n
o

n
e

, o
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 s

u
rv

e
y

 m
a

p
 re

fe
re

n
c

e
 o

r d
e

s
c

rip
tio

n
 

F
O

R
A

 S
P

A
C

E
 

7
1

 C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

P
o

s
t to

w
n

 
I L

o
n

d
o

n

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

I 

W
h

e
re

 th
e

 lic
e

n
c

e
 is

 tim
e

 lim
ite

d
 th

e
 d

a
te

s
 

N
o

tA
 

lic
a

b
le

 

L
ic

e
n

s
a

b
le

 a
c

tiv
itie

s
 a

u
th

o
ris

e
d

 b
y

 th
e

 lic
e

n
c

e
 

G
ro

u
n

d
 F

lo
o

r 

•
T

h
e

 s
a

le
 b

y
 re

ta
il o

f a
lc

o
h

o
l

I P
o

s
t c

o
d

e

T
h

e
 tim

e
s

 th
e

 lic
e

n
c

e
 a

u
th

o
ris

e
s

 th
e

 c
a

rry
in

g
 o

u
t o

f lic
e

n
s

a
b

le
 a

c
tiv

itie
s

 

I 
E

C
1
V

 8
B

U

•
T

h
e

 s
a

le
 b

y re
ta

il o
f a

lc
o

h
o

l -
R

e
s

ta
u

ra
n

t A
re

a
 O

n
ly

 (A
re

a
 A

 o
n

 la
y
o

u
t p

la
n

):

M
o

n
d

a
y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:3

0
 

T
u

e
s

d
a

y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:3

0
 

W
e

d
n

e
s

d
a

y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:3

0
 

T
h

u
rs

d
a

y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:3

0
 

F
rid

a
y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:3

0
 

S
a

tu
rd

a
y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:3

0
 

S
u

n
d

a
y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:0

0
 

•
T

h
e

 s
a

le
 b

y re
ta

il o
f a

lc
o

h
o

l -
A

ll o
th

e
r s

p
e

c
ifie

d
 a

re
a

s
:

M
o

n
d

a
y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:0

0
 

T
u

e
s

d
a

y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:0

0
 

W
e

d
n

e
s

d
a

y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:0

0
 

T
h

u
rs

d
a

y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:0

0
 

F
rid

a
y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:0

0
 

S
a

tu
rd

a
y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:0

0
 

S
u

n
d

a
y
 

1
0

:0
0

 
to

 
2

2
:0

0
 

G
a

m
in

g
 M

a
c

h
in

e
 P

ro
v

is
io

n
: 

N
o

t A
p

p
lic

a
b

le
 

I 1 

L I 

I-'" 

P
age 102



The opening hours for the restaurant only: 

Monday 10:00 to 23:00 
Tuesday 10:00 to 23:00 
Wednesday 10:00 to 23:00 
Thursday 10:00 to 23:00 
Friday 10:00 to 23:00 
Saturday 10:00 to 23:00 
Sunday 10:00 to 22:00 

The opening hours for all other specified areas: 

Monday 10:00 to 22:00 
Tuesday 10:00 to 22:00 
Wednesday 10:00 to 22:00 
Thursday 10:00 to 22:00 
Friday 10:00 to 22:00 
Saturday 10:00 to 22:00 
Sunday 10:00 to 22:00 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies 

On and Off Supplies 

Note: 
Off supplies only authorised to supply areas marked C, D and E on the attached plan and in 
accordance with Condition 3 of Annex 2 detailed below. 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence 

Fora Space Ltd 
89 Wardour Street 
London 
W1F OUB

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
09826907 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
Liam Daniel Nelson 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited 

It is an offence to allow persons under the age of 16 years to be on the premises whilst it is 
open exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises unless 
they are accompanied by a person aged 18 or over. No unaccompanied person under the age 
of 16 years shall be permitted on the premises between 12 midnight and Sam if alcohol is 
supplied for consumption on the premises. 

Islington Council 
Public Protection Division 
222 Upper Street 
London 
N1 1XR 
T: 020 7527 3031 
E: licensing@islington.gov.uk 

Page 103



0· 

® 
I _,.. 

© 
..: 

.. j ............ J�*��-

® © ® .. ® 
+ 

0 © 

t
® ® 

F 

�--
•, 

l IL.! ® r.

01 I I f.
8J_ I � 

,µ j l I
E 

l 
U'=.-== 

>-R
�······ •·=::::_:==1 i -

- • - I - ' • 100 I "'-"' I� ' Hirn I I I i l ---
�� : , ffi;G&.@ ffl �!!I !'.Q1GJ'r:At' � I ' . = --� 

• n,:. • . ---- - - . ... _... . • .,....... _r- _...,..,..... r 

© 
....... �,"''IUIII 
....... '°'_... ....... -��·�
fll.lf�tO..,.,, ---- ,1

f 

i 
(i)- • 

) 
i 

@-•-·t I 

·1
G)-1-+��--+�-+-��-11-�� 

I 

@-r.-

Q.IENT DEMISE KEY I NOT TO SCALE 

-,' 

DES!< Sll\1BERS 

FIXED DESl(S. 126 
STANDARD LAO. 90 
l'REMIUM LAii- U� 
HOT DES)(S. I & 

TOTAL DESKS INCLUDING HOT· 
TOT AL OESl<S UCLUD1NG HOT·

376 
360 

m"�..F 

SEWARD STREET 

BREAKDOWNS: 

H ms ... DESKS • 146 
1:lOOW DESIS • 218 
STANDARD l(mAL lOLAII • 7 
STANDARD KETTALS LAB • � 
PREMIUM KETT AL I O LAB • l 
l'REMIUM,.EnALSLAll ·S 
l'REMIUM KElT AL 7 I.All • l 

NOTt: I AODmONAl. JO rERSON 
PREMIUM LAii iS l'OSSlAl.tlN LOUNGE 2 
AREA 

to 
Q-<} •.. 

o-o·q �t:
Yd}: 
J"'"" ..., c 

II -j-.J�• ' ' ,'--·�1 · �

01 

2.$ !i<n_ '°"'-

... 
z 
w 
0 

lOm 

JlOHOTK.AU.tOltMAncnMWINC:ClNI.-..No 
tJW1N'!,KWALU4ltt::Stt4\"t J{f.N lr,i.t,11'£, JU Lt Wl.tWlt.lt 
WJ':"Jn'lt,QVUcU,, 

o•.ura,,:4 ... NOllt:Slf".,.JrlltlM.AtNUJnl:C.tt!C4.lf Tttf 
,\untl .. AC"l)(W4 WlU.11. fAklN A("..tJN'S1 IJN.Allttk*l\ttl ..... 
KEYf NOTI:S 

LAYOOJS lOMCIICCUDBYl!IIIIJ)CNC 
CONT'ROI. ONC1! LAtOl/f F1IOZ£N 

lt£fER TO E>ll'lOYERS RIXlUl•tMF.NTS FOil iT. 
DOoll Aa:t:515. rt ANt> AV rtL\IS. 

�-

CUOITDEMISE 

PHONE IIOCITH REFDt TO 
DE1" All. ORA\VlNC DO 

OJ MtlNTEltS 

1Gld so.ormm0£S1-

fRDIIIIM LAO, O£lt: NO. 
2.l'M llt!CHT 

STA>ltlAROLAI • DES)( NO. 
t.>M IIEICHt 

lfllill NO.OFHOTOOK 

CHANGES FROM STAGE E ISSUE, 
HIGHLIGHTED IN RED 

PI AREA LJ,YOUf CONFlll)IED ANO 
CXttRNAl f ACADISCIIAN<lrn. RErEI< 10 
0£TAILS 
IQ llOOII tlNISHIS TIIIIOUCIIOlll GROUND 
ANO BAS[MINf Rf;\115(1). JEf(ft TO owe 
lta,t.1N. 
ft\ M)RICZOSE 1 )0INERY ANl>LAYOVT 
AlTElltll REFD TOCA• )OINEJIY DRAWINGS 
N NONl<tlTALl'lltMIUMLAIOSlOBE 
CHANCED TO DOUBLE CLAUD51'ECUICA TION 
TO REACII ACOIIST1C ra<fORA1ANCE Of 
"011(RW) 
U! MCETINGROOMS WAU.flNl$HISANb 
TIMffll SI.Al DE!IIGN CHANCED, Rl:nlt TO 
t>ETAIL DAA\\llNCS. 
()(, · IMSEMDIT UIYOOJ CONFIUMtl>, Rl'JU 
TO CA, OEIIJL CO.IMS A Nb �ITOll:N 
[JQIIIPAIDlT/SN'iClFICA TIONS BY OTilatS 
111 NOlfflt �IMO.'T 1.AYO\tf CIIANCtll, 
RUDI 100£l'All.l>l<AWlliGS 
Ol IIALIJS11UU>6CHANctl>TOMll.DSlUI. 
RUUt 10 OEfAIL ORAWJ>ICS. 
r,, SOtml llASDIDlT TOIIErS. SHOWER AND 
OIANClNC ROOMS LAYOIJT AND IINl$H£S 
CHANCED. REftt TO Df:I' AIL DIAWINCS. 
IO· ADOfTIONAL PIIONE IIOOTIISA00£0. 
II SIQIACE AND DOOR ACCllS& lJ1'DA no. 
UJEJI TO ELEVATION.\L OIIAWINGS. 

. 
� 

1 

� 

Studiol�HE 
jC,..... .. M-, ... -Jm$.t 

\.,,nJmN•� 

... �l)lll:is.lS.,,.. 
�""·"'*' 

-t,NJIIJffi,'� 

-no.
GROUND GA

....... ....N, 

LEVER STREET 50&2 

I ._ .._No 

I 150@AI 11'300@A3 001 

0 

'LEVER STREET I 

--+-----, - -+---- ---m!:=f:::::.1:.-i:=~:;::;:;:;-::1+-b=~~iJ -,.._ __ .,___ _ _; 
,~-C4 

,e---='-"==,t 

-r t--------=-

1 

J i-----e 1---

L 
A 

P
age 104



        Appendix 3

Whitton, Daniel 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

18 October 2018 13:12 
Licensing 
Licensing Act 2003 Representation Pro-Forma 

Premises Name and Address: Fora Space, 71 Central Sti·eet, Islington, London, EClV 3RB 

Name: 

Interest: Resident 

Address: 

Telephone: 

I declare that I wish to keep my identity anonymous please. 

Public Nuisance: 

Rep 1 

The reason why I am against the selling of alcohol both on and off this premises is because, late in the 
evening, especially during the weekends, people who have consumed alcohol tend to be ve1y loud. People 
tend to shout at the top of their voices and it is ve1y distiuptive. This s01i of distmption can last for hours in 
the evening, lasting late into the night (i.e. until 2am in some cases) . If this premises were to sell alcohol, the 
so1i of disti11ption would be a regulare occurance. 

Crime and Disorder 

In addition to what has been mentioned above, in some occations, people who have consumed more alcohol 
then they can handle tend to also be ve1y vulgur in the language and violent. With having children living 
around the area, having them listen and witness this s01i of behaviour is not acceptable. Fmihe1more, most 
residents (including myself) have vehicles parked right next to the premises. If an intoxicated person were to 
get in a fight or is just acting violently, (such as throwing objects, smashing windows etc), they may cause 
damage to our vehicles. 

Protection of Children from Harm 

Again, this has been mentioned above, with people acting violently and using vulgm language, having 
children hearing and witnessing this s01i of behaviour is unacceptable. 

Public Saftey 

This again has been mentioned above, but this needs to be emphasised even more as there are people who 
come from work late in the evening and pass by the area who may be at risk of being assulted by an 
intoxicated person. 

Thank you for your time and understanding. 

1 Page 105



From: 

To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Dear Islington 

Objection to Fora Planning application - 71 Central Street - WK/180032961 

15 October 2018 22:47:18 

We write to object to the proposed amendment to the licensing anangement for Fora 
Space. 

We received the letter dated 9th October today (15th October) and wish to object on the 
ground� public nuisance and the protection of children from hann. As 
parents- we anticipate additional 
noise as a a result of the extended alcohol sale hours. If it really was necessaiy for alcohol 
to be sold until 11 pm on a Sunday night, Fora should have asked for this when they put in 
their original licensing request. What we are seeing here is opening hours 'creep' and - in 5 
years - we could be looking at ve1y late weekend alcohol sale. 

We strongly oppose the application. 

Regards 

Rep 2 

J.iwlsiml 

Page 106



Licensing Service 

London Borough of Islington 

222 Upper Street London NI lXR 

Re: Fora Space, 71 Central Street, London, ECIV 8BU, Variation of a Premises Licence 

Date: 29 October 2018 

Dear Sirs, 

I am writing to you as a flat owner and a resident with regard to Fora Space's 
(Fora) request for a variation of the alcohol license and working hours. 

I strongly object to this planning application for the reasons set out below. 

Firstly, the planning application relates to the premises which are located within the Bunhill 
Fields Conservation Area. There will potentially be a detrimental effect upon the amenity of the 
area in terms of noise, nuisance and disturbance due to the new license application hence this 
planning application which seeks to extend the sale of alcohol hours adds to the cumulative 
impact and threatens the residential character of the area. An increase in the alcohol sale hours 
will no doubt increase the noise and disturbance caused to the residents and will create a 
precedent for the other premises in Central Street and Bunhill Fields Conservation Area which 
will in tum have a cumulative impact to the whole area. 

This concern was raised by a large number of residents numerous times during the previous 
planning and license applications made by Fora. Accordingly, Fora amended its previous 
application and sought for a license approval strictly on the basis of reduced sale of alcohol from 
10 am to lOpm. Similarly, during the license hearing held on 13 October 2016, the Sub
committee underlined that the longer alcohol sale hours would likely to add to the cumulative 
impact considering that the residents and families with young children live only three meters 
away from the Fora's entrance. The applicant later requested further extension to its working 
hours and alcohol selling hours on the basis that all its customers and staff would leave the 
premises by llpm. 

Forais now requesting extension of its working hours to 11.30pm. This is against the overall 
policy applied in conservation areas and against the characteristics of a residential area. The 
residents re full of working families, many of whom, have small children 
and it is not reasonable to expect that circa 300 residents would not sleep until 11.30pm during 
the weekdays due to 10-15 customers who are willing to stay for another drink. 

Having observed the restaurant as a resident--and having been to Fora's 

Rep3 

Page 107



restaurant; please see the acts and omissions below which are all collectively against the 

conditions of the existing license and /or the requirements of operating a restaurant /bar in a 

special policy area, in particular, the Bunhill and Clerkenwell Cumulative Impact Area of Islington 

(Please also see attached photos): 

• Fora's customers consuming alcohol after 11 pm (i.e. well after the license operation

hour of the restaurant).

• Fora is not closing the restaurant exactly at llpm.

• Fora opens its windows in summers and the residents can hear their customers.

• Fora allows late parties, in particular Christmas parties and loud music is played.

• Fora's kitchen staff has access to building's carpark area and it is unsecure to keep them

in the building after llpm when majority of the residents are in sleep.

• Fora's staff is smoking in a closed underground parking area which is extremely

dangerous, in particular when the residents are sleeping.

• There was a fight between two customers {left in a group) in front of Worcester Point.

• In practice, there is no distinction between the seated restaurant area and bar area and

the customers can walk with their drinks.

• Fora's deliveries and recycling trucks arrive as early as Sam in the morning and makes

significant noise.

• Fora's staff consuming alcohol outside the restaurant at the street as late as midnight.

• Fora's staff smoking and speaking loudly under our balconies as late as midnight.

• Fora's customers and staff who stand in front of our building entrances blocking our 

entrance and also leaving their cigarette ends/butts in front of our entrance door.

• The cab drivers waiting the Fora staff at nights causing noise nuisance.

• The trucks delivering the goods for Fora blocking the disabled parking space.

These events continue despite the fact that a number of staff of Fora and its customers have been 

personally warned about this various times. 

Secondly, taking into account that residential nature of the Central Street; the longer alcohol sale 

hours would cause unreasonable interference with the public's enjoyment of their homes. This is 

because, at present, most of the customers start leaving the restaurant around llpm and this takes 

at least 30 minutes. Extending the operation hours by 11.30pm will result in Fora's customers and 

staff not leaving the premises until midnight. Similarly, in the previous license hearing, the Sub

committee also noted the high level of noise that will be created by Fora's customers given the 

Page 108



close vicinity of residential premises and pointed out the importance of limited operating hours to 

minimise this. 

To sum up, I have serious concerns that Fora's new application will have a detrimental impact upon 

residential amenities and result in increased amount of public nuisance, risks on the public safety 

and the crime and disorder in Central Street. 

Kind regards, 

Attachment: Photographs 

Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule 

No additional measures were proposed. 

Conditions agreed with the Council’s Noise Service 

1. No music emanating from the Restaurant/premises should be audible to cause a nuisance within any
adjoining noise sensitive premises between the operating hours.

2. In the event of a noise complaint relating to amplified sound substantiated by authorised officers the
licensee shall reduce all levels of amplified sound at the premises to lower levels so it is not audible
within any adjoining noise sensitive premises.

3. The last sale of alcohol shall be 30 minutes before the stated closing time.

Conditions agreed with the Council’s Trading Standards Service 

4. The premises shall operate under a strict Challenge 25 policy.

Appendix 4

Page 115



Search 

...... - ·, ..... , 
. -...... 

··�_ ... :.··,. ... r·· .. 

, ...... 

•�xocc•
<

. . 
\····--·-·\ 
� .. ___ ...

..
. ,. . .

. .
. 

..
.. ..

,\ .. £ . ... ...... - - ..
...

. 

···i .. ..
. 

···\ \, �itS�e·

hosburyle,su,e 

Cont,,, 

' 
...
. ' 

:·) · ....... :-
1 .. ..._ / -.. . . 

..
.. --

LJ 

-.. --- ·- .. , ~· --
- - • i... .. :'f 

' 

J 
:!-

na~~ 

. --
~-! __ ,. ........

...... • 

-- -- ... --- -
.... ---- .. 

' . 
' . 

·-·- ... ... .... . 

q 

IQ 

36 

... . -....... 

_,d 

' 

~ ~ 
! : 
' ' : ' 

' . 
' . .... .. .. -·" . . ··I 

' 

' . ' 
. . . .: __ ,:- ... __ 

. La • • ····---
• ..• • .. ••• ··-···-r·r 

' . 
............ . -- . -. - -·--·:··- ·· --r ---- -

' 
•····· .... ....

............ ... 

, .. ... ........ ........
.. . 

' 
------

- ....... ---. ---, ...... ··:.,,,,-·-- -........... 

. 

0 Chadworth House P
age 116



Environment & Regeneration 
Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, London, N1 1XR 

Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 

Meeting of Date Agenda Item Ward(s) 

Licensing Sub-Committee 27 November 2018 Clerkenwell 

Delete as 
appropriate 

Non-exempt 

Subject: PREMISES LICENCE REVIEW APPLICATION 
THE SEKFORDE ARMS, 34 SEKFORDE STREET, LONDON  EC1R OHH 

1.

1.1 

1.2 

Synopsis

This is an application by Islington Council’s Pollution Team for a Review of the Premises 
Licence under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003.  A copy of the review application is 
attached as Appendix 1.

The grounds for review is related to the licensing objective:

i) Prevention of crime and disorder; and

ii) Prevention of public nuisance

2. Relevant Representations

Licensing Authority Yes 

Metropolitan Police No 

Pollution Team Reviewer 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards Yes 

Page 117

Agenda Item B4



Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes – 31 letters in support of the application 
  67 letters in support of the premises 

Local business No 

Other bodies No 

3. Background

3.1 The premises currently holds a licence allowing: 

i) The sale by retail of alcohol, on and off supplies from 11:00 until 00:00 Sundays to
Thursdays and from 11:00 until 01:00 Friday and Saturday.

ii) The provision of films, live music, recorded music and performance of dance from 12:00
until 01:00 Friday and Saturday.

iii) The provision of late night refreshment from 23:00 until 00:00 Sunday to Thursday and
from 23:00 until 01:00 Friday and Saturday.

3.2 The premises have held a licence for the sale of alcohol since at least 2005 when the Justices’ 
On Licence was converted into a premises licence.  At this time, the premises licence was also 
varied.  The current premises licence holder is David Lonsdale, who transferred onto the premises 
licence in November 2015. The current designated premises supervisor is Robert Madigan who 
was varied onto the licence in November 2014. Similarly, the address Mr Lonsdale states he lives 
on the top floor of 34 Sekforde Street, however on the application he made to transfer, he gave a 
different address and has not made any application to change it.  Note; the Licensing Team 
believe Robert Madigan no longer has any involvement with the premises. An email has been 
sent to David Lonsdale requesting he confirm his postal address and the name of the Designated 
Premises Supervisor.  

3.3 The Licensing Service received 31 representations made by 41 people, including the Licensing 
Authority and Islington’s Trading Standards Department in support of the review application.  
There have also been 67 representations made by 71 people in support of the premises.  

3.4 Papers are attached as follows:- 
Appendix 1: Review application from the Pollution Team 
Appendix 2: current premises licence 
Appendix 3: representations in support of the application for review 
Appendix 4: representations in support of the premises 
Appendix 5: suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

Page 118



4. Planning Implications

4.1 The Planning & Development section have the following comments to make in relation to the 
above review: 

The property is Grade II Listed and is located within the Clerkenwell Green Conservation Area 
(CA1). 

The property is considered to be an A4 Use Class drinking establishment. 

Planning history: 

There are no conditions relating to the opening hours of the public house. 

There are two current enforcement cases open on the site. 

• ENF/2017/0259 - Windows in Woodbridge Elevation contrary to drawing 0237 Rev A of
P2014/3391/LBC

• ENF/2018/0319 - Erection of a kitchen extractor equipment and cowl on rear roof of listed
building

Please note that unauthorised works to a Listed Building is an offence.  The Council is currently 
investigating the possible prosecution for these unauthorised works. 

5 Recommendations 

5.1 To determine the application to review the premises licence under Section 52 of the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

5.2 The Committee must, having regard to the application and any relevant representations, take 
such steps as mentioned in Section 52(4) of the Act (if any) as it considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 

5.3 The steps stated in Sections 52(4) of the Act are as follows: 

a) to modify the conditions of the licence; and for this purpose the conditions of the licence
are modified if any of them are altered, omitted or any new condition is added;

b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;

c) to remove the designated premises supervisor;

d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

e) to revoke the licence;

f) the Committee also have the option to leave the licence in its existing state;

g) the Committee also has the power in relation to steps a) and b) to provide that the
modification and exclusion only has effect for a limited period not exceeding three months.

6 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

6.1 The Council is required to consider this review application in the light of all relevant information, 
and must take such steps as is considers appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. 

Page 119



Background papers: 

The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
Licensing Act 2003 
Secretary of States Guidance 

Final Report Clearance 

Signed by 
Service Director – Public Protection Date 

Received by 
Head of Scrutiny and Democratic Services Date 

Report author: Licensing Service 

Tel: 020 75027 3031 

E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

15/11/18

Page 120

mailto:licensing@islington.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



P
age 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



 

 

PREMISES LICENCE 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

Premises licence 
number LN/4223-091115  Date of original 

grant* 24 November 2005 

*An annual fee associated with this licence is to be paid on the anniversary of the 
original grant date. 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

SEKFORDE ARMS 
34 SEKFORDE STREET 

 

Post town London Post code EC1R 0HA 
Telephone number 020 7253 3251 

 
Where the licence is time limited the dates 
Not Applicable  

 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence  
Ground and First Floors 

• The provision of regulated entertainment by way of: 
The exhibition of films 
The performance of live music 
The playing of recorded music 

• The provision of late night refreshment 

• The sale by retail of alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

• The provision of regulated entertainment for the exhibition of films: 

Friday 
Saturday 

12.00 
12.00 

to 
to 

01.00 
01.00 

 
the following day  
the following day  

• The provision of regulated entertainment for the performance of live music: 
 
Friday 
Saturday 

 
12.00 
12.00 

 
to 
to 

 
01.00 
01.00 

 
the following day  
the following day  

• The provision of regulated entertainment for the playing of recorded music: 
 
Friday 
Saturday 

 
12.00 
12.00 

 
to 
to 

 
01.00 
01.00 

  
the following day  
the following day  

• The provision of regulated entertainment for the performance of dance: 
 
Friday 
Saturday 

 
12.00 
12.00 

 
to 
to 

 
01.00 
01.00 

  
the following day  
the following day  

Page 232



• The provision of late night refreshment:

Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00 
23.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
01.00 
01.00 
00.00 

the following day 
the following day 

• The sale by retail of alcohol:

Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

11.00 
11.00 
11.00 
11.00 
11.00 
11.00 
11.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
00.00 
01.00 
01.00 
00.00 

the following day 
the following day 

Except on: 
New Year’s Eve: 11.00 until the time authorised on the following day 
If there are no permitted hours on the following day, midnight on the 31st December 

Non standard timings: 
The above licensable activities are permitted to 01.00 on the day following New Year’s 
Day, St Patrick’s Day, St George’s Day, Easter Sunday, Easter Monday and Sundays 
and Mondays of Bank Holiday Weekends.   

The opening hours of the premises: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

11.00 
11.00 
11.00 
11.00 
11.00 
11.00 
11.00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00.30 
00.30 
00.30 
00.30 
01.30 
01.30 
00.30 

the following day 
the following day 
the following day 
the following day 
the following day 
the following day 
the following day 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies 
On and off supplies 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence 
Mr David Lonsdale  

 
  

 

 
 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 

Page 233



 
Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
Mr Robert Edward Madigan 

 
 

 
   
 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 

 
 

Islington Council 
Public Protection Division 
222 Upper Street 
London 
N1 1XR  
T: 020 7527 3031 
E: licensing@islington.gov.uk 
 

 

Service Manager (Commercial) 

 
Date of Issue 

 

Page 234

mailto:licensing@islington.gov.uk


 
Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence: 

a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal 
licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by 
a person who holds a personal licence. 

3. All door supervisors shall be licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 

4. The admission of children to the exhibition of a film shall be restricted in accordance 
with the recommendation of a film classification body as defined in the Video 
Recordings Act 1984 or Islington Council acting as the licensing authority where it 
has given notice in section 20(3) of the Licensing Act 2003. 

There are further ‘Mandatory conditions’ applicable to licences authorising the supply of 
alcohol.  A full list of the current mandatory conditions is available from the licensing pages 
on Islington’s web site, www.islington.gov.uk.  This list is subject to change by order of the 
Secretary of State and licensees and other responsible persons are advised to ensure they 
are aware of the latest conditions. 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
1. Unless otherwise specified on this licence no regulated entertainment shall take 

place at the premises with the exception of pre-booked private events limited to 
the provision of music and dancing for pre-invited guests. 

2. This licence is subject to such further conditions as are consistent with any 
restrictions imposed on the use of the premises for the existing licensable 
activities under the licence by virute of the enactments hereinafter set out: 

Children and Young Persons Act 1933 
Sporting Events (Control of Alcohol Etc) Act 1985 

3. Any customer suspected of possessing or using drugs on the premises will be 
immediately removed from the premises by the DPS, barred from entering the 
premises again and shall be reported to the Police. 

5. The premises shall enforce a proof of age scheme, which is approved by the 
Licensing Authority and by the Local Police. 

6. Noise and vibration will not be allowed to emanate from the premises do as to 
cause a nuisance to nearby properties. 

7. Notices by the exits of the premises shall be displayed asking patrons to leave in 
a considerate manner. 

 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
1. The outside seating areas are to be cleared, closed and rendered unusable by 

22.30 every day and patrons not permitted to take food or drinks outside of the 
premises after 22.30 and notices shall be displayed on the premises to that 
effect.  Signs shall also be prominently displayed forbidding the removal or 
movement of tables and chairs.   

2. The licensee shall appoint a noise consultant registered with the Institute of 
Acoustics or Association of Noise Consultants to prepare a scheme of sound 
insulation and noise control measures, which may include the installation of a 
noise limiting device, to prevent persons in the neighbourhood from being 
unreasonably disturbed by noise of music from the premises.  The scheme shall 
be submitted for approval by the Council, and if necessary the approved scheme 
shall be fully implemented to the satisfaction of the Council and the licensee Page 235

http://www.islington.gov.uk/


 
notified in writing accordingly, prior to the premises being used for music and 
dancing. 

Annex 4 – Plans 
Reference Number: YT-078(1) April 2005 
 

Page 236



Licensing Authority Representation: Licensing Act 2003 

Application: The Sekforde Arms, 34 Sekforde Street, London EC1R 0HH 

I am submitting a representation on behalf of the Licensing Authority with respect to the 
application for the Review of the premises licence held in respect of 34 Sekforde Street, 
London EC1R 0HH made by Islington’s Noise Service.   

The application seeks to amend the premises Licence in order to attach a number of conditions 
onto the premises licence following a number of complaints received about noise and anti-
social behaviour.  

The grounds for the representation are: 

The Prevention of Public nuisance  

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

Licensing Policy Considerations 

Licensing Policy 8 Management standards 

Licensing Policy 11 Working together and supporting best practice 

Licensing Policy 14 Alcohol induced crime, disorder and antisocial behaviour 

Licensing Policy 21 Public nuisance  
Licensing Policy 22 Noise associated with Licensable activities  

Licensing Policy 24 Smoking, drinking and eating outside  

Licensing Policy 29 Review of premises licenses 

Licensing History 
The premises have held a licence for the sale of alcohol since at least 2005 when the Justices’ 
On Licence was converted into a premises licence.  At this time, the premises licence was 
also varied.  The current premises licence holder is David Lonsdale, who transferred onto the 
premises licence in November 2015. The current designated premises supervisor is Robert 
Madigan who was varied onto the licence in November 2014.  The premises licence allows 
the following licensable activities;  

• The exhibition of films, the provision of live music, the provision of recorded music and
the performance of dance from on Friday and Saturday from 12:00 until 01:00;

• The provision of Late Night Refreshment Sunday to Thursday from 23:00 until 00:00
and Friday and Saturday from 23:00 until 01:00.

• The On and Off sales of alcohol Sunday to Thursday from 11:00 until 00:00 and Friday
and Saturday from 11:00 until 01:00

Islington’s Licensing Team started receiving complaints about the premises in April this year, 
when residents began to copy Licensing Officer Carol Jones into their correspondence to 
David Lonsdale, the premises licence holder.  The first complaints related to the placement of 
tables and chairs outside the premises, as Mr Lonsdale had placed a number of tables and 
chairs on the public highway and was insisting this was his private land. A copy of the land 
registry documents showed that the premises only owned to the boundary of the public house 
and a small area towards the back of the premises on Sekforde Street. However, Mr Lonsdale 
is still insisting that he owns the public highway and so the matter is still being investigated by 
Islington’s legal team. Pictures and Document attached as Annex 1. 

Rep 1Appendix 3

Page 237



The complaints continued, with residents reporting that they were being disturbed by loud 
music being played at the premises and noise from the amount of customers standing outside 
the premises drinking.  These complaints increased in frequency and in volume as the weather 
became warmer, as can be seen from the reports made by Parkguard and Islington’s Anti-
Social Behaviour Team in the review application.  Licensing Officers also visited the premises 
on a number of occasions and witnessed high volumes of people standing outside the 
premises drinking and blocking the pavement, similarly breaches of the premises licence have 
been witnessed. A copy of these reports and pictures are attached as Annex 2.  From Carol 
Jones report from 5 September, it can be seen that the quiz being held at the premises was 
so loud, that at 21:52 one of their own customers seated outside shouted that the music was 
too loud.  

Following the breaches and reports of noise from the premises, officers invited Mr Lonsdale 
into a meeting of the Licensing Officers Panel. Licensing Officers Panels are held where 
problems have been found during visits to premises and officers try to work with licensees to 
correct the issues, before more formal legal action has to be taken.  The meeting was held on 
2 August 2018 with Mr Lonsdale and his bar manager Harry Smith.  At the meeting, it became 
apparent that Mr Lonsdale did not see the amount of people standing outside the premises as 
being a problem or that there was potential noise breakout from opening the windows on the 
first floor of the premises. However, measures were discussed which could be put in place to 
try to mitigate the issues reported by residents. I attach notes from the meeting as Annex 3.  
And at Annex 4, I attach a copy of the Parkguard and Antisocial Behaviour Team reports from 
call outs to the premises following the Licensing Officers Panel meeting. Officers continued to 
witness problems at the premises. This clearly demonstrates that Mr Lonsdale has not taken 
on board, or taken seriously what was said at the meeting.  

Issues of concern 

The Licensing Authority has grave concerns over Mr Lonsdale’s standards of management  
and whether we can be confident that he is a responsible licensee committed to upholding the 
Licensing Objectives.   

This concern is further compounded by correspondence seen between David Lonsdale and 
some of the residents of Sekforde Street, correspondence he has sent to Islington Council 
and from a meeting held at the premises for residents called in order to discuss their concerns 
in light of the review application.  Copies of David Lonsdale’s correspondence and notes from 
the meeting held at the premises are attached as Annex 4. From the notes it can be seen the 
longest standing member of staff at the premises has only been there since the end of May. 
Similarly, Mr Lonsdale reports that problems in the past have been rectified by sacking 
members of staff.  Obviously, in these cases, if the staff member has been negligent this is 
acceptable. But with the reported frequency of turnover of staff, there appears to be a lack of 
understanding that there could be a fundamental problem, such as lack of training or 
experience. 

In the interactions with Mr Lonsdale, he has failed to offer up any constructive measures which 
could be put in place at the premises to mitigate the disturbance to local resident’s report. Mr 
Lonsdale has continued to maintain that it is his opinion the premises do not cause a problem 
to local residents, despite being in possession of redacted copies of all complaints received 
by Islington Council and copies of the reports from the Parkguard service. The 
correspondence he has entered into gives the impression that his profits are more important 
to him than the wellbeing of his neighbours. Whilst it is understood that to enable premises to 
prosper, they need to make profits to grow, this should never be done at the expense of 
Islington residents.  

The business model Mr Lonsdale is trying to pursue may not be suitable for the area. Sekforde 
Street is primarily residential and mostly quiet. Some of the houses along the stretch opposite 
the premises are one room deep, so when there are large numbers of people standing outside 

Page 238



the premises drinking or music is blaring out of open doors and windows from the premises, 
the sound is clearly heard by residents in their homes.  

If occasional, this may be tolerable, however, as Mr Lonsdale has admitted, it is at least a few 
hours every Friday and a Saturday.  

Mr Lonsdale’s correspondence makes clear that he believes that if residents don’t like living 
next to a pub, that they have enough money to move. Reviewing the correspondence, I note 
that most of the residents do not have the view that they want the pub to close. I quote from 
their correspondence;  

“I’m pleased you have accepted my suggestion of having a tripartite meeting in the near future 
to resolve the licence and noise issues with the pub which have occurred since its opening in 
December. Hopefully we can resolve the issues in an amicable way.” 

“We would be most grateful if you could please visit the pub to discuss a reasonable balance 
between their patrons’ desire to eat/drink outside vs. reasonable expectations of pedestrians 
to walk on the public footpath and reasonable expectations of residents for enjoyment of their 
property.” 

These comments do not indicate that residents want the premises to close, only that they wish 
to co-exist alongside the premises with the least amount of disturbance possible. I point out at 
this juncture that the review application wishes to find a middle ground of conditioning the 
premises licence with sensible conditions which would adequately allow the premises to 
operate, but without causing so many problems to residents in the area. 

However, in his correspondence to Islington Council and the residents and to patrons of the 
Sekforde Arms, it is clear that Mr Lonsdale is purporting that the Council are trying to close 
the premises. A large proportion of the representations received from supporters of the 
premises appear to think that the pub will close if the review is successful, Mr Lonsdale at the 
residents meeting stated that if the review is successful he will have to close the premises. It 
is of concern to the Licensing Team that Mr Lonsdale is misrepresenting the application. 
Similarly, that he has also intimated in his correspondence that it will be residents who will 
bear the costs of his appeal if the review is successful.     

Recommendation 
The Licensing Authority is in full support of the review application made by Anne Brothers 
of the Pollution Team. The Licensing Authority believes with the recommendations made 
in the application for additional conditions to be added to the premises licence the 
incidence of the premises causing a problem for local residents, will be greatly reduced.   

Terrie Lane 

Licensing Manager 30 October 2018 

terrie.lane@islington.gov.uk 

020 7527 3233 

Page 239

mailto:terrie.lane@islington.gov.uk


Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 10:07
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: Re: The Sekforde - Licence Review - Support for Review
Attachments: IMG_0951.JPG; IMG_0950.JPG; IMG_0949.JPG; IMG_0948.JPG; IMG_0947.JPG; IMG_

0946.JPG; IMG_0945.JPG

Dear Licensing 

I refer to the Application for Licence Review of 3 October 2018 by the Noise Pollution Team proposing to set
certain restrictions on the licence for the The Sekforde at 34 Sekforde Street, London EC1 which is owned
by David J Lonsdale. I live around the corner in  where I have lived for 16 years and own
another property on  accessed from  where I lived for 4 years prior to that. 

I wish to add my support for all the objectors to the way the Sekforde has been operated by Mr Lonsdale
since he took over.  I also wish to support the changes proposed by the Noise Pollution team to put some
brake on the ever-increasing nuisance imposed by the Sekforde on what is an almost exclusively residential 
street especially at the point where the Sekforde is actually located (unlike other local pubs which he tries to
use as comparators). 

Whilst I am fortunate not to be affected by the loud noise generated by the Sekforde, the increasingly large 
crowds outside the Sekforde over this summer and the predominantly vertical drinking now established there
mean it does have significant impact on the area with the pavements and roads blocked by bovine crowds
of drinkers, Monday to Friday. The back access to  from  was regularly
filled with drinkers from the Sekforde who left their glasses and bottles behind. 

The pavements on both sides of the Sekforde regularly overflowed with drinkers blocking the roads as well
as the pavements. I attach pictures of the pavement on Sekforde Street outside the pub that clearly show it
is narrow and unsuited to having large numbers of people standing drinking. As is also clear furniture from
the pub extends over 30cm/1 foot onto what is a relatively narrow pavement even without a single person
blocking the way. The A Board appears to have been deliberately placed to provide the maximum obstruction
with no clear direct route along the pavement. 

I noted that Mr Lonsdale asserts that his title extends to the entire pavement outside the Sekforde on
Sekforde Street in which case, if true, he might be entitled to do as he does and continually obstruct the
pavement with his tables and his signage.  However, that would seem to give the lie to his community 
interests given that there are many older residents in Sekforde Street, as well as those in the Mercers on St
James Walk who use Sekforde Street to get to the shops and young mothers with buggies. Why should local
residents be forced to cross the street because he chooses to block the pavement. 

Mr Lonsdale should perhaps keep in mind that in asserting his alleged rights, which have not been proven,
it is open to the community, including the Council that represents the community, to note his literally 
obstructive approach and take a more legalistic approach to the grant and operation of his licence. As a
highly experienced barrister, Mr Lonsdale will be well aware that the exercise of legal rights can cut two
ways. 

Mr Lonsdale admits in his opening remarks that he bought the Sekforde knowing that its business model,
like so many pubs, was a failing one (see paras15/17). Nevertheless, being fully aware of, and
notwithstanding, a loss-making business, he, of his own volition, chose to buy that business. Now Mr 
Lonsdale whines that his business is not viable without all the vertical drinking. That is Mr Lonsdale’s problem
not that of the resident community. He should not seek to impose his business necessity on the residents
who have lived in the area long before his arrival and his licence and its conditions should reflect that. 

Rep 2

Page 283



2

It is also notable that Mr Lonsdale, aware that vertical drinking might be needed for his business model,
chose not to develop the rear of his premises to provide a beer garden or vertical drinking area opposite the 
blank curtain wall of .  Instead Mr Lonsdale chose to develop that area into residential
premises. Now it appears he wishes to have his cake and eat it. 

The self-righteously indignant hubristic attitude displayed by Mr Lonsdale appears to show significant
contempt for his neighbours and for his neighbourhood. He appears to have not questioned himself as to
why a pub that previously did not receive significant complaints has now wound up a substantial number of 
the surrounding residents. He stated in his letter to the local residents including those who had been
complaining: 

“I do not think that most of the complaints have been justified.” 

It shows a quite remarkable lack of tact, let alone any sort of self-reflection or empathy. The complaints about 
the Sekforde were not a personal attack on Mr Lonsdale; the residents had genuine and real concerns and
objections that Mr Lonsdale has refused to recognise properly, let alone accept. Mr Lonsdale continues to 
insist on his own “vision” and dismisses the Council’s proposals as unacceptable. Everybody is wrong, it
would appear, except Mr David James Lonsdale.  

His solutions of allowing people to spill out of the pub and stand around in the street and over the road in 
Woodbridge Street is not acceptable in a predominantly residential area. He has a Premises’ licence not a
public realm licence. If he proves that he owns the pavement as he claims, he should be made to stick to
that alone. 

It is Mr Lonsdale’s final submission that clearly demonstrates his thorough contempt and disdain for his
neighbours and the neighbourhood he seeks to impose his pub upon on his terms: 

“My immediate neighbours and I have chosen to live next to a pub in a wonderful late Georgian street where 
many people would dearly love to live despite the pub or perhaps because of the pub. I think that is a highly
salient fact which should be remembered by them.” 

What Mr Lonsdale should remember but chooses to ignore is that almost all of his neighbours were there 
before he moved in and made the Sekforde an intrusive nuisance. Remembering to respect your neighbours
and your neighbourhood and trying to find a balance with the surrounding residences might be a more
sensible approach to the self-righteous, uncooperativeness and confrontational one Mr Lonsdale appears to
have adopted to date. He wonders why he has received such a hostile response and feels humiliated by a
review of his conditions, perhaps some quiet self-reflection on why he finds himself in this position and 
whether continuing to pursue a strategy and approach that has served him so very badly to date is what he
should be doing. 

It was Mr Lonsdale choice to buy a failing pub; nobody forced him to do so. His bad business choice is not
his neighbours’ fault. Mr Lonsdale should not be allowed to make the residents of Sekforde Street pay for
his own arrogance and greed.  

Finally, for clarity, I would be supportive of allowing the Sekforde to stop being a pub. It seems no longer
appropriate usage in what is to all intents and purposes a residential street, particularly when the pub clientele
seem to want vertical outdoor drinking. A restaurant subject to similar restrictions to those applied to
Grangers would seem a sensible alternative use that would balance Mr Lonsdale’s commercial interests with
a failed pub business model and the needs of residents who should not suffer from outdoor drinking being
imposed on them. 

Yours sincerely 

Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 21:37
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: The Sekforde Arms

Dear Carol, 

I understand the licence for The Sekforde is under review and I write in support of this review. 

I have stayed with  (a friend and work colleague) a number of times this summer and 
autumn at  and have to say I was extremely shocked at the noise which emanated from 
the pub itself and also from guests outside the pub in the street. 

A number of evenings in July and August I came to stay with  to work on cases in London. I am a 
solicitor based in Manchester. One night we were preparing in her back garden, behind the house, and could 
hear every word of the football commentary from the pub's TV.  The pub seemed to have every single 
window and door open. I understand she went over to ask them to turn it down and was met with a curt 
response. This happened again the following week and miraculously as soon as the Council's noise team 
arrived (well just before) sll doors and windows were suddenly closed. 

Another evening in September we were inside house trying to work on papers for an Inquest and were 
disturbed by a pub quiz. We could have answered the questions ourselves it was so loud for us to every 
word. Indoors. With the windows closed.  called the Council, but rather strangely, again; just 
before the noise unit appeared, the doors and windows were closed. I am not sure why they were not closed 
before by pub staff as this did greatly reduce the noise impact. 

Later on that night, at 11.30, I had just drifted off to sleep and was woken by shouting, cackling guests 
drinking beer outside the doors. This went on for half an hour so I emailed the Council to record a 
complaint. I found this behaviour astounding on a week night, and with the window closed.  

The previous pub owners did not allow this noise pollution to take place and I never had any trouble 
sleeping or working whilst staying with  in the past.  It's only been since this new owner has 
appeared with his tables outside full of shouting guests.  I am very reluctant to do so now and I feel very 
sorry for  and neighbours having to put up with that noise and the attitude of the landlord/owner which 
appears to be somewhat rude and arrogant.  

I trust you will take my comments into consideration with the review as I feel this noise impact is 
unnecessary (doors can be closed) and grossly unfair to all surrounding residents who never had a problem 
with the pub with the previous owners.  

Kind regards, 

. 

Rep 3

Page 289



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 14:02
To: Licensing
Subject: Application to Review Sekforde Arms Licence

(I request that my name and address be redacted except for Council personnel and Licensing Sub‐Committee 
members). 

As a local resident, I wish to support the review of the Sekforde Arms license. 

The current pub owner has exhibited utter disdain for this application, for Council personnel and for his neighbours.

In meetings with residents and Council employees he has been argumentative, contemptuous and irrational. 

He shows no interest in supporting Islington’s Licensing Objectives 

He accepts no responsibility for the anti‐social behaviour of some of his customers—this includes excessive noise 
and blocking the pavement, which forces pedestrians to walk in the street. 

The Council’s proposal to limit outside drinking to 20 people is reasonable. 

In addition, I believe outside drinking should end at 22.00 as with other pubs in the area. Outside furniture should be 
disabled at 22.00. 

Tables and chairs and A‐boards should be placed so that two pedestrians or a wheelchair can pass by. 

The door supervisor should be instructed to patrol the outside area to ensure pedestrians are not being forced into 
the streets. 

Finally, the owner Mr. Lonsdale, does not seem fit to be a licensed landlord. 

Rep 4

Page 290



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 20:14
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: The Seckforde - Licence Review

Dear Ms.Jones ‐ 

I would be grateful if you would take this email as my submission to the forthcoming Licensing Review 
Panel considering the future of The Seckforde pub in Clerkenwell. 

I live at  , and as such I am not directly affected by the noise and behaviour 
issues which have led to the review, but I do use the pub occasionally and am a great admirer of the 
restoration of this fine Georgian listed building, which was in a sadly run‐down state when I moved here 
two years ago. I believe that Mr.Lonsdale’s excellent and doubtless very costly restoration has given the 
built neighbourhood a wonderful new asset. 

Broadly speaking I am in favour of the pub being allowed to remain in business, but with added restrictions 
along the lines already proposed by IBC to the Licensee, David Lonsdale. 

I attended last week’s public meeting at the pub and was interested to hear both your own explanation of 
the review process – and the issues which have led to it – and the comments of the meeting as a whole. I 
was struck by the general tone of support for David’s efforts to rejuvenate the pub, create a profitable 
business, and plough the trading profits into his Seckforde Scholarship scheme, which is a remarkably 
altruistic act. 

However sadly I was also struck by David’s apparent reluctance to accept that his commercial success has 
come at an unacceptable cost to his immediate neighbours, and that he cannot continue to run the pub as 
he has done so far. 

I suspect that part of the problem is that David is clearly not an experienced licensee, and that he appears 
to have made very poor staff hiring decisions. Any licensee – or indeed any businessman ‐ who goes 
through four general managers in less than a year is in my view not running his business well. Hopefully 
the current manager is of a higher calibre than his predecessors. 

I have read David’s lengthy submission to the Review Panel, a good proportion of which seems to me to be 
irrelevant to the core issues under consideration. However his document does demonstrate very clearly 
his passion for his Seckforde project, and I hope the Panel will recognise that in the current economic 
environment there are not many people who would put their money where their mouths are to the extent 
that David has done to date. 

I am saddened by David’s apparent reluctance to acknowledge the full extent of the nuisance caused to his 
neighbours by his commercial success. I fear that, as an obviously successful planning lawyer, he feels that 
the law is on his side and thus ultimately he will win his case, doubtless after much expenditure of time 
and money both by himself and IBC. As he knows, I consider that such a doctrinaire and legalistic approach 
to resolving these issues in an equitable fashion is ill‐conceived and may ultimately prove unsuccessful. If 
he is to stay in business and generate profits to support his Scholarships, he needs to find a way of trading 
at a level which reduces materially the nuisance caused to his neighbours. If he won’t make the necessary 

Rep 5

Page 291



2

improvements voluntarily then the IBC as his licensing authority has to do so on behalf of those immediate 
neighbours suffering from the success of the venture. 

I very much hope that the Review will be able to find an appropriate middle ground in discussion with 
David Lonsdale which will enable The Seckforde to remain open. I would be very sorry to see it close. 

Kind regards 

Page 292



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 12:13
To: Licensing
Subject: Representation: The Sekforde

Dear Licensing, 

Please note that I wish to make this representation anonymously. I do not feel comfortable with the licensee 
knowing my name or where I live. 

I live at  St together with my  comprising  Clerkenwell residents. 

Together we discussed The Sekforde, our negative experiences since the pub was reopened by Mr Lonsdale, 
the application made by Islington's Noise Pollution Team to review the licence, the applicant's flyers 
circulated to residents and the residents meeting hosted last week by the licensee. We drafted and agreed the 
below representation together, and are submitting it individually. 

We have lived within  of The Sekforde for 14 years, and during the past 6 years we have a  of 
to the pub from our properties. We frequented the pub on occasion prior to Mr Lonsdale reopening it 

with himself as the premises licence holder. During that time, we happily lived near the pub. On occasion 
we would hear noise from the pub inside my property; mostly animated conversations of patrons who were 
outside. We considered the volume and frequency of the noise to be typical of any residential property in 
proximity to a pub or restaurant. 

This changed abruptly when The Sekforde was reopened with Mr Lonsdale as the operator. Suddenly the 
noise levels increased exponentially and there were crowds of pub customers drinking outside the pub 
(across the street to the west on Sekforde St and across the street to the east on both Sekforde St and 
Woodbridge St).  

Never before had we noticed the pub's customers spilling out into the streets in such a way or such a high 
frequency of ASB. The noise was considerable enough to create a nuisance; a mix of animated 
conversations like before, some louder groups (loud enough for us to hear their conversations), shouting, 
quiz night and loud music.  

Another change was that when we walked in the neighbourhood, especially on a Saturday morning, we now 
regularly found empty beer bottles and glasses littering Woodbridge St. We cleaned much of this ourselves, 
because it was dangerous to leave glass lying around, and reported other incidences via Islington's app. 

As long-term residents of Clerkenwell, we believe that a reasonable number of reasonably sized premises 
are welcome provided they respect their residential neighbours' reasonable needs. This pub under the current
licensee/management does not. It quickly and significantly added to the cumulative impact in an area 
defined as saturated by Islington's licensing policy. The pub regularly disrupts the residential/commercial 
balance in Clerkenwell. 

We, like many of our neighbours with whom we have spoken, are saddened by this change at The Sekforde. 
This is a local pub where many local neighbours gathered (and still do). But such gatherings previously did 
not result in regular and sustained loss of sleep for neighbours or other noise nuisance to residents in the 
pub's proximity.  

The Sekforde also previously did not force pedestrians, buggies and wheelchairs to constantly go into the 
street just to walk past the pub. As shown in the attached photos, you will note that even at a day/time with 

Rep 6

Page 293



2

only 2 outdoor customers, the outdoor furnishings still make it difficult to pass. The space between the no 
entry sign and The Sekforde’s A-board is only just wide enough for a 4 year old to stand. It was not wide 
enough for more than one person to pass at a time, nor for a buggy or wheelchair to pass. Note that this 
photo is representative of the average layout of The Sekforde’s outdoor furnishings. 

IN CONCLUSION 

The Sekforde is surrounded by residential premises in close proximity on all sides. For many years, the pub 
coexisted well with its neighbours (both immediately adjacent/opposite the property and those a few doors 
down). We would like to see pub operations adjusted so it can continue to operate in happy coexistence with 
the neighbourhood.  

Sadly, Mr Lonsdale does not seem interested in trying to work with Islington or his neighbours to find a 
happy medium. His tone is inflammatory in his invitation to the residents meeting (attached), his letter to 
residents prior to the meeting (attached) and his representation submitted as part of the Review application. 
In these written documents and whilst speaking at the residents meeting, Mr Lonsdale's disrespect and scorn 
for his neighbours is on full show.  

He has repeatedly misrepresented residents' views, the process and the facts resulting from his running of 
the pub in the past year. He falsely claims that there is no noise and claims that residents are making a 
coordinated effort to shut him down in order to raise the value of their properties. And in his letter to 
residents prior to the residents meeting, he sets out his clear intention to appeal the Council's decision 
regardless. 

We are grateful to Islington's Noise Pollution Team for filing this application to review The Sekforde's 
licence in an effort to add noise conditions to improve the residential/commercial balance in the area 
surrounding the pub. We agree with the Pollution Team's recommended conditions, but also add the below 
requests. We would be most grateful if the Licensing Sub-Committee would also be minded to consider this. 

- Tables and chairs and A-boards shall be placed in such a way to always provide for enough space for two
pedestrians or a double buggy to pass by
- Any outside drinking should be cleared of customers by 22:00 vs. 22:30, as with other pubs in the area
- Any outside furniture permitted must be taken out of use and disabled by 22:00 vs. 22:30 every night, as
with other pubs in the area
- Conditions about the area for vertical drinking and for customers outside should also take special care to
protect the amenity of residents who live just 10m from The Sekforde on Woodbridge St
- The door supervisor will also patrol the outside area to ensure that at all times there is at least enough
empty public footpath to allow two pedestrians or a double buggy to pass by

We also agree with the Pollution Team's recommendation to seek a suitably qualified and experienced 
person as DPS at this premises. We believe that this, combined with the recommended conditions (which 
are standard for other nearby pubs), would enable the pub to once again coexist with its residential 
neighbours.  

Based on written and personal dealings with Mr Lonsdale and our experience of The Sekforde since it was 
reopened by Mr Lonsdale, we have come to the conclusion that Mr Lonsdale is not a fit and proper person 
to be a licensed landlord. We also conclude that he has no respect for or interest in supporting the Licensing 
Objectives.  

We thank the Licensing Sub-Committee for your time in considering our concerns. 

Sincerely, 

Page 294



Page 295



THE SEKFORDE ARMS 

OPENED 1829 

CLOSING 2019? 

89 COMPLAINTS TO ISLINGTON COUNCIL FROM OUR IMMEDIATE NEIGHBOURS IN 10 MONTHS. 

TOO MUCH NOISE. PAVEMENT TOO CROWDED. CROWDS OUT OF CONTROL CIGARETTE SMOKE 
COMING INTO MY PROPERTY, PLANTS MOVED TO AN UNACCEPTABLE POSITION. 

LICENCE REVIEW 28TH NOVEMBER 2018. 

TELL US WHAT YOU THINK. 

PUBLIC MEETING MONDAY 22ND OCTOBER 2018 6PM AT THE SEKFORDE. 

ALL WELCOME. ALL VIEWS RESPECTED. 

Page 296



34 Sekforde Street 

London EC1 R0HA 

21st October 2018 

Dear Neighbour, 

I fear that some of you will have grown weary of the dispute between me plus my staff at the 
Sekforde and our immediate neighbours who have sent to you the anonymous letter dated 17th 
October 2018. If so I am sorry and read no further. 

I very much hope you and they will come to the public meeting on 22nd October 2018 at 6pm at the 
Sekforde. But some of you will not be able to come and I feel I should answer the anonymous letter. 
I was the only person on Woodbridge and Sekforde street who was not sent a copy. But one of our 
regular customers has given me his copy. I do believe that if any person is going to criticise any one 
in such a public way he or she should at least let him know so he can defend himself. 

A representative of the council is attending the meeting. Everyone will be treated by me and my 
staff with the utmost curtesy and respect. The purpose of the meetings is to allow any one who has 
an interest in the issues raised by the licence review to express an opinion.  

But I want to make my position clear. I do not think that most of the complaints have been justified. 
Many are multiple complaints about “people noise” at the same time on certain evenings. I do not 
accept the claims made that we have repeatedly breached the licence conditions or that the running 
of the pub during Youngs tenancy represented some sort of halcyon era. I employ highly dedicated 
and experienced staff who have I think created something quite wonderful in a very short space of 
time. 

I do not claim there have been no breaches of the licence. I have disciplined the staff for failing to 
get everyone inside by 10.30 pm and failing to turn the tables up by that time. But those breaches 
are rare and have not happened recently. I have an app on my phone linked to our high tech security 
cameras and have been checking religiously every night at 10.30 pm for at least 6 weeks.  

It is true, that the application is made by the pollution team. But it has been made because of the 
complaints. It is my view that those who have complained ought themselves to have made the 
application as they are entitled to do under the 2003 Licensing Act. Any review decision made by the 
licensing committee is subject to an appeal to the magistrates’ court and a possible further appeal to 
the High Court. No changes are enforceable until the appeal process is exhausted. By pressing the 
pollution team into taking this action against me and not taking it themselves, the cost of 
proceedings and risk is completely removed from those who have complained. It is transferred to 
the public or the entire population of Islington. But for whose benefit is the public incurring this risk 
and this cost? It is in my view for the benefit of a very small number of people who have chosen to 
purchase very valuable property next to a pub and now object to the noise necessarily made by a 
busy and successful pub. They do not agree with this view. But that is what I think.  

If the changes to the licence are implemented, the Sekforde cannot survive as a pub. Forget profit 
for my scholarship fund, just to break even, we need to take about £12,000 a week. As trade is so 

Page 297



tilted towards the end of the week, that means taking about £4000 on Friday evenings at least. That 
is the equivalent of selling 800 pints. How is that achievable from just 20 people standing outside? 
No one wants to be inside in the summer and we just could not begin to cover our costs. 

And what is to happen when 16 people are standing outside and a group of five friends arrive? Do 
we agree to serve four and tell one that he must sit inside on his own? 

The pub was hopelessly unprofitable when Youngs was running it. That is why the company 
surrendered its lease with a term date of 2026 to me for nothing. I do not have the buying power or 
experience of Youngs but have made the Sekforde profitable by investing in the premises and the 
people.  

Making fairly heroic assumptions about Christmas trading, I hope to make a profit of just over 
£100,000 in a year all of which is going to provide scholarships for students who need them. Why is 
that considered an unreasonable level of profit when I work for nothing and nearly £3,000,000 was 
invested in the Sekforde? I do not think it is.  

I will appeal any changes to my licence because I consider I have a civic duty to do so. I think the pub 
is worth keeping and the changes proposed will destroy it. I owe it to my seven full time staff, to our 
future scholars, to the people who attend our free public debates and to every Londoner who cares 
about keeping open historic public buildings. And I owe it to my friend Hadi Sarmadi who put so 
much effort into restoring the Sekforde.   

I have no real confidence in the judgment of Islington council’s licensing committee but have 
confidence in the judgment of the magistrates’ and High Court which ultimately will decide this 
dispute.  If I lose, which I may do, the pub will close, and I will of course pay Islington’s legal costs. If I 
win, then Islington (ie all the people of Islington) will pay my legal costs. Neither of those outcomes 
seems desirable to me.  

27% of pubs in London have closed since 2001. One closes every week in this city. Do you really think 
this is what should happen to the Sekforde? 

I attended voluntarily a meeting with Islington’s licensing committee on 2nd August 2018. The 
committee asked me to prevent people from going on to the opposite side of Woodbridge street 
and to employ someone outside on Thursdays and Fridays. Neither was a condition of my licence 
and I myself believe that allowing people to drink just to the left of the solicitors’ offices on 
Woodbridge Street in the Summer is desirable. It limits numbers on Sekforde street and therefore 
noise to the residents of Sekforde Street. I agreed voluntarily to do what the council wanted and 
have done so. But it has not reduced the number or ferocity of complaints. 

Kind regards 

David Lonsdale 

Page 298



22nd	October	2018	

RE:	LICENSE	REVIEW,	THE	SEKFORDE	PUB,	SEKFORDE	STREET	

Dear	Licensing	Team,	

Please	 consider	 this	 letter	 our	 representation	 regarding	 the	 license	 review	of	The	

Sekforde	Pub.		We	wish	to	see	the	proposed	conditions	enforced	under	this	review,	

because	 the	 new	 owner	 of	 these	 premises	 has	 not	 observed	 his	 own	 license	

conditions	 since	 taking	 on	 the	 pub	 nearly	 a	 year	 ago.	 	 This	 has	 led	 to	 significant	

ongoing	 disruption,	 despite	 a	 number	 of	 attempts	 to	 resolve	 the	 issue	 informally,	

and	so	we	wish	to	assert	our	right	to	a	peaceful	existence	on	the	street	by	way	of	this	

review.	

We	would	like	to	stress	that	the	presence	of	the	pub	on	the	street	has	never	been	a	

problem	for	us	before	and	we	previously	considered	the	pub	an	asset	to	this	historic	

street	 and	 to	 the	 conservation	 area.	 	With	 proper	management	we	 see	 no	 reason	

why	this	cannot	be	the	case	again.	

We	live	 	down	from	the	pub	and	have	been	residents	of	the	street	for	nine	

years,	and	residents	in	the	locale	for	more	than	twenty	years,	during	which	time	we	

have	never	made	any	complaint	about	any	commercial	premises	until	now.			

Over	 the	 last	 eight	months	 in	 particular	we	have	 regularly	 endured	 unreasonably	

large	 numbers	 of	 customers	 on	 the	 street,	 drinking	 and	 smoking	 in	 an	 undefined	

area,	making	a	lot	of	noise	until	after	the	pub	should	have	closed.	 	We	have	had	to	

deal	 with	 litter	 and	 broken	 glass	 on	 the	 street	 too	 and	 belligerence	 from	 drunk	

customers	blocking	the	pavement	and	road.			In	warm	weather	all	of	the	windows	in	

Rep 7

Page 299



the	pub	are	opened	on	the	first	floor	and	the	indoor	noise	becomes	uncontained	and	

this	makes	the	overall	roar	even	worse.	

Normally	we	would	 have	 contacted	 the	 publican	 or	 duty	manager	 to	 ask	 them	 to	

restrict	 the	numbers	of	 outside	 customers,	 bringing	 them	 indoors	 at	 a	 reasonable	

hour,	 and	 to	 keep	 windows	 closed.	 	 However,	 we	 have	 not	 done	 this	 ourselves	

because	we	know	 from	our	neighbours,	 that	 they	have	 tried	and	 tried	again	 to	no	

avail.			

We	have	also	heard	how	difficult	it	has	been	to	establish	good	communications	with	

the	duty	manager(s)	of	The	Sekforde,	because	the	staff	turnover	has	been	so	rapid,	

and	 that	 dealings	 with	 the	 owner	 have	 been	 erratic	 and	 unproductive.	 	 Our	

reluctance	 to	 be	 in	 contact	 with	 the	 publican	 has	 only	 been	 compounded	 by	 a	

number	of	intimidating	letters	from	the	pub	owner,	posted	through	our	door,	where	

he	characterizes	the	residents	of	the	street	as	unreasonable.		We	are	afraid	this	kind	

of	 behaviour	 makes	 relations	 between	 neighbours	 and	 the	 pub	 more	 adversarial	

and	so	we	have	been	scared	to	make	contact	ourselves.	

So	we	dearly	hope	 that	your	 intervention	can	 improve	our	situation.	 	We	do	need	

help	here,	and	in	our	opinion	if	your	proposed	license	conditions	are	applied	under	

this	review	and	then	observed,	we	will	be	able	to	restore	some	harmony	to	Sekforde	

Street.		If	numbers	are	restricted	on	the	street	and	customer	behaviour	is	managed,	

and	 the	 pub	 windows	 kept	 shut	 then	 we	 can	 look	 towards	 a	 happy	 co-existance	

again!	

Yours	sincerely,	

Page 300



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 12:12
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: Representation: The Sekforde

Dear Licensing, 

Please note that I wish to make this representation anonymously. I do not feel comfortable with the licensee 
knowing my name or where I live. 

I live at  St together with my  comprising  Clerkenwell residents. 

Together we discussed The Sekforde, our negative experiences since the pub was reopened by Mr Lonsdale, 
the application made by Islington's Noise Pollution Team to review the licence, the applicant's flyers 
circulated to residents and the residents meeting hosted last week by the licensee. We drafted and agreed the 
below representation together, and are submitting it individually. 

We have lived within  of The Sekforde for 14 years, and during the past 6 years we have a  of 
 to the pub from our properties. We frequented the pub on occasion prior to Mr Lonsdale reopening it 

with himself as the premises licence holder. During that time, we happily lived near the pub. On occasion 
we would hear noise from the pub inside my property; mostly animated conversations of patrons who were 
outside. We considered the volume and frequency of the noise to be typical of any residential property in 
proximity to a pub or restaurant. 

This changed abruptly when The Sekforde was reopened with Mr Lonsdale as the operator. Suddenly the 
noise levels increased exponentially and there were crowds of pub customers drinking outside the pub 
(across the street to the west on Sekforde St and across the street to the east on both Sekforde St and 
Woodbridge St).  

Never before had we noticed the pub's customers spilling out into the streets in such a way or such a high 
frequency of ASB. The noise was considerable enough to create a nuisance; a mix of animated 
conversations like before, some louder groups (loud enough for us to hear their conversations), shouting, 
quiz night and loud music.  

Another change was that when we walked in the neighbourhood, especially on a Saturday morning, we now 
regularly found empty beer bottles and glasses littering Woodbridge St. We cleaned much of this ourselves, 
because it was dangerous to leave glass lying around, and reported other incidences via Islington's app. 

As long-term residents of Clerkenwell, we believe that a reasonable number of reasonably sized premises 
are welcome provided they respect their residential neighbours' reasonable needs. This pub under the current
licensee/management does not. It quickly and significantly added to the cumulative impact in an area 
defined as saturated by Islington's licensing policy. The pub regularly disrupts the residential/commercial 
balance in Clerkenwell. 

We, like many of our neighbours with whom we have spoken, are saddened by this change at The Sekforde. 
This is a local pub where many local neighbours gathered (and still do). But such gatherings previously did 
not result in regular and sustained loss of sleep for neighbours or other noise nuisance to residents in the 
pub's proximity.  

The Sekforde also previously did not force pedestrians, buggies and wheelchairs to constantly go into the 
street just to walk past the pub. As shown in the attached photos, you will note that even at a day/time with 

Rep 8

Page 301



2

only 2 outdoor customers, the outdoor furnishings still make it difficult to pass. The space between the no 
entry sign and The Sekforde’s A-board is only just wide enough for a 4 year old to stand. It was not wide 
enough for more than one person to pass at a time, nor for a buggy or wheelchair to pass. Note that this 
photo is representative of the average layout of The Sekforde’s outdoor furnishings. 

IN CONCLUSION 

The Sekforde is surrounded by residential premises in close proximity on all sides. For many years, the pub 
coexisted well with its neighbours (both immediately adjacent/opposite the property and those a few doors 
down). We would like to see pub operations adjusted so it can continue to operate in happy coexistence with 
the neighbourhood.  

Sadly, Mr Lonsdale does not seem interested in trying to work with Islington or his neighbours to find a 
happy medium. His tone is inflammatory in his invitation to the residents meeting (attached), his letter to 
residents prior to the meeting (attached) and his representation submitted as part of the Review application. 
In these written documents and whilst speaking at the residents meeting, Mr Lonsdale's disrespect and scorn 
for his neighbours is on full show.  

He has repeatedly misrepresented residents' views, the process and the facts resulting from his running of 
the pub in the past year. He falsely claims that there is no noise and claims that residents are making a 
coordinated effort to shut him down in order to raise the value of their properties. And in his letter to 
residents prior to the residents meeting, he sets out his clear intention to appeal the Council's decision 
regardless. 

We are grateful to Islington's Noise Pollution Team for filing this application to review The Sekforde's 
licence in an effort to add noise conditions to improve the residential/commercial balance in the area 
surrounding the pub. We agree with the Pollution Team's recommended conditions, but also add the below 
requests. We would be most grateful if the Licensing Sub-Committee would also be minded to consider 
this.  

- Tables and chairs and A-boards shall be placed in such a way to always provide for enough space for two
pedestrians or a double buggy to pass by
- Any outside drinking should be cleared of customers by 22:00 vs. 22:30, as with other pubs in the area
- Any outside furniture permitted must be taken out of use and disabled by 22:00 vs. 22:30 every night, as
with other pubs in the area
- Conditions about the area for vertical drinking and for customers outside should also take special care to
protect the amenity of residents who live just 10m from The Sekforde on Woodbridge St
- The door supervisor will also patrol the outside area to ensure that at all times there is at least enough
empty public footpath to allow two pedestrians or a double buggy to pass by

We also agree with the Pollution Team's recommendation to seek a suitably qualified and experienced 
person as DPS at this premises. We believe that this, combined with the recommended conditions (which 
are standard for other nearby pubs), would enable the pub to once again coexist with its residential 
neighbours.  

Based on written and personal dealings with Mr Lonsdale and our experience of The Sekforde since it was 
reopened by Mr Lonsdale, we have come to the conclusion that Mr Lonsdale is not a fit and proper person 
to be a licensed landlord. We also conclude that he has no respect for or interest in supporting the Licensing 
Objectives.  

We thank the Licensing Sub-Committee for your time in considering our concerns. 

Sincerely, 

Page 302



Page 303



THE SEKFORDE ARMS 

OPENED 1829 

CLOSING 2019? 

89 COMPLAINTS TO ISLINGTON COUNCIL FROM OUR IMMEDIATE NEIGHBOURS IN 10 MONTHS. 

TOO MUCH NOISE. PAVEMENT TOO CROWDED. CROWDS OUT OF CONTROL CIGARETTE SMOKE 
COMING INTO MY PROPERTY, PLANTS MOVED TO AN UNACCEPTABLE POSITION. 

LICENCE REVIEW 28TH NOVEMBER 2018. 

TELL US WHAT YOU THINK. 

PUBLIC MEETING MONDAY 22ND OCTOBER 2018 6PM AT THE SEKFORDE. 

ALL WELCOME. ALL VIEWS RESPECTED. 

Page 304



34 Sekforde Street 

London EC1 R0HA 

21st October 2018 

Dear Neighbour, 

I fear that some of you will have grown weary of the dispute between me plus my staff at the 
Sekforde and our immediate neighbours who have sent to you the anonymous letter dated 17th 
October 2018. If so I am sorry and read no further. 

I very much hope you and they will come to the public meeting on 22nd October 2018 at 6pm at the 
Sekforde. But some of you will not be able to come and I feel I should answer the anonymous letter. 
I was the only person on Woodbridge and Sekforde street who was not sent a copy. But one of our 
regular customers has given me his copy. I do believe that if any person is going to criticise any one 
in such a public way he or she should at least let him know so he can defend himself. 

A representative of the council is attending the meeting. Everyone will be treated by me and my 
staff with the utmost curtesy and respect. The purpose of the meetings is to allow any one who has 
an interest in the issues raised by the licence review to express an opinion.  

But I want to make my position clear. I do not think that most of the complaints have been justified. 
Many are multiple complaints about “people noise” at the same time on certain evenings. I do not 
accept the claims made that we have repeatedly breached the licence conditions or that the running 
of the pub during Youngs tenancy represented some sort of halcyon era. I employ highly dedicated 
and experienced staff who have I think created something quite wonderful in a very short space of 
time. 

I do not claim there have been no breaches of the licence. I have disciplined the staff for failing to 
get everyone inside by 10.30 pm and failing to turn the tables up by that time. But those breaches 
are rare and have not happened recently. I have an app on my phone linked to our high tech security 
cameras and have been checking religiously every night at 10.30 pm for at least 6 weeks.  

It is true, that the application is made by the pollution team. But it has been made because of the 
complaints. It is my view that those who have complained ought themselves to have made the 
application as they are entitled to do under the 2003 Licensing Act. Any review decision made by the 
licensing committee is subject to an appeal to the magistrates’ court and a possible further appeal to 
the High Court. No changes are enforceable until the appeal process is exhausted. By pressing the 
pollution team into taking this action against me and not taking it themselves, the cost of 
proceedings and risk is completely removed from those who have complained. It is transferred to 
the public or the entire population of Islington. But for whose benefit is the public incurring this risk 
and this cost? It is in my view for the benefit of a very small number of people who have chosen to 
purchase very valuable property next to a pub and now object to the noise necessarily made by a 
busy and successful pub. They do not agree with this view. But that is what I think.  

If the changes to the licence are implemented, the Sekforde cannot survive as a pub. Forget profit 
for my scholarship fund, just to break even, we need to take about £12,000 a week. As trade is so 

Page 305



tilted towards the end of the week, that means taking about £4000 on Friday evenings at least. That 
is the equivalent of selling 800 pints. How is that achievable from just 20 people standing outside? 
No one wants to be inside in the summer and we just could not begin to cover our costs. 

And what is to happen when 16 people are standing outside and a group of five friends arrive? Do 
we agree to serve four and tell one that he must sit inside on his own? 

The pub was hopelessly unprofitable when Youngs was running it. That is why the company 
surrendered its lease with a term date of 2026 to me for nothing. I do not have the buying power or 
experience of Youngs but have made the Sekforde profitable by investing in the premises and the 
people.  

Making fairly heroic assumptions about Christmas trading, I hope to make a profit of just over 
£100,000 in a year all of which is going to provide scholarships for students who need them. Why is 
that considered an unreasonable level of profit when I work for nothing and nearly £3,000,000 was 
invested in the Sekforde? I do not think it is.  

I will appeal any changes to my licence because I consider I have a civic duty to do so. I think the pub 
is worth keeping and the changes proposed will destroy it. I owe it to my seven full time staff, to our 
future scholars, to the people who attend our free public debates and to every Londoner who cares 
about keeping open historic public buildings. And I owe it to my friend Hadi Sarmadi who put so 
much effort into restoring the Sekforde.   

I have no real confidence in the judgment of Islington council’s licensing committee but have 
confidence in the judgment of the magistrates’ and High Court which ultimately will decide this 
dispute.  If I lose, which I may do, the pub will close, and I will of course pay Islington’s legal costs. If I 
win, then Islington (ie all the people of Islington) will pay my legal costs. Neither of those outcomes 
seems desirable to me.  

27% of pubs in London have closed since 2001. One closes every week in this city. Do you really think 
this is what should happen to the Sekforde? 

I attended voluntarily a meeting with Islington’s licensing committee on 2nd August 2018. The 
committee asked me to prevent people from going on to the opposite side of Woodbridge street 
and to employ someone outside on Thursdays and Fridays. Neither was a condition of my licence 
and I myself believe that allowing people to drink just to the left of the solicitors’ offices on 
Woodbridge Street in the Summer is desirable. It limits numbers on Sekforde street and therefore 
noise to the residents of Sekforde Street. I agreed voluntarily to do what the council wanted and 
have done so. But it has not reduced the number or ferocity of complaints. 

Kind regards 

David Lonsdale 

Page 306



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 25 October 2018 14:55
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: Sekforde Arms licence review

Dear Ms Jones, 

I understand you are involved in the licence review for the Sekforde Arms. I was not able to go to the 
meeting that the landlord called, as I had a prior commitment. But I am told you will take submissions from 
neighbours who have been affected by the way the pub is currently run. 

My development at backs onto  not far from the corner with Sekforde St 
where the Sekforde Arms is located. 

My own flat does not overlook Woodbridge St. It is part the development that is closer to . There 
is a  and a  between me and the Sekforde Arms. The noise level varies, but on 
Thursday and Friday evenings especially, the voices of patrons standing outside the pub are very clearly 
audible. There are sometimes just so many people. 

The numbers outside the pub at these times affects me particularly in another way: the pavement is 
completely impassable. Sekforde St is often not a safe street. Cars can come down it at speed. Therefore 
having to step into the street at effectively a blind corner is a real risk. Anyone with a pushchair or a 
wheelchair would find navigating the pavement completely impossible.  

I understand that the landlord makes the case that the pub supports charities. I would be interested to learn 
more about that, as I have seen no evidence of charity-related activities when I pass (which I do frequently).

But that is anyway no excuse for poor management of patrons. The building has several floors, which often 
seem to be empty when the street outside is jammed with drinkers. We never had problems with the pub 
before, so I assume a different management strategy is in place. 

I would wholeheartedly support the proposed license restrictions that the Council is considering to abate the 
noise and the difficulty of navigating the pavement for pedestrians like myself. 

Thank you for considering my concerns. I hope they can be directed to those carrying out the review. 

Sincerely, 

Rep 9 

Page 307



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 23 October 2018 12:48
To: Licensing
Subject: Re: The Sekforde Public House

We wish to make a complaint regarding the unbearable noise from the Sekforde, at times there is as many 
as 60 people outside. The pavement is unusable on the Sekforde side and also on the Woodbridge side of 
the street . There has been several incidents of bad behaviour to ourselves and other neighbours (i.e 
drinking on our doorsteps , urinating down into our basements and being very drunk). We attended a 
meeting at the Sekforde last evening, hosted by Mr David Lonsdale and his staff. It was attended by many 
people we all agreed with Mr Lonsdale that our intention was not for the closure of the pub, however, we 
did ask him to place rope barriers outside the pub where the seating is and to have a door person on busy 
nights. Sadly Mr Lonsdale was adamant he would not be doing this as he hated rope barriers. We feel Mr 
Lonsdale will not be amenable to any suggestions to accomadate us unless he can get his wish of using 
Woodbridge Street pavement for his customers. 

Rep 10

Page 308



Rep 11

Page 309



Page 310



Re: Notice of Application for Review of a Premises Licence
The Sekforde Arms
34 Sekforde Street
London EC1R 0HA

16/10/18

Dear Sir/Madam

We are writing with reference to the above Licence Review, as we among the 
 to the Sekforde pub who have been forced to complain to the Out 

of Hours Anti Social Behaviour team over the last 9 months.
When Mr Lonsdale held a public meeting back in 2014 to explain his vision for The 
Sekforde to local residents, we expressed our worries that the pub would become a 
greater nuisance than it was already and were assured that it would not - Mr 
Lonsdale wanted a much better run pub and was planning to live on the first and 
second floors above the bar, so the commercial premises were to be restricted to 
the ground floor and basement, focusing on food rather than drink, thus reducing 
noise.  In a letter to us, Mr Lonsdale was adamant that the 1st floor would be part of 
his private flat (with the whole project being dependent on him having that space).
Subsequently, and without notice to residents, the use of the first floor changed to a 
function room which has been the source of very loud noise and music from parties 
and events held there since it has opened.
We wrote in support of Mr Lonsdale’s original planning application and still consider 
the refurbishment and new extension of the pub a real enhancement to the 
appearance and charm of the street.
Sadly, since re-opening earlier this year, the way the pub has been run has proved 
to be anything but an enhancement to the locality, and has sadly failed to fulfil some 
of it’s licence objectives, such as the prevention of crime and disorder, and 
prevention of public nuisance.  

Examples of this that we have witnessed are:
1- The uncontrolled spread of drinkers beyond the pub’s boundaries, both into the
road outside the pub and across the road onto the “triangle” on Woodbridge Street.  
2- The blocking of pavements, forcing passers-by to walk in the road or cross to the
other side.
3 - Exceptionally loud noise, from crowds drinking outside the pub as well as from
inside when the windows were wide open on ground and first floor, for events such
as World Cup, Mandela Day, and functions.  We are not nimbys or killjoys, but

Rep 12

Page 311



during the hot weather all the pub windows have been open on the first floor and for 
us to be forced to keep all our windows shut so that the pub can open theirs seems 
very unfair.  
4 - Unruly and, frankly, quite intimidating behaviour from customers - 19th April was 
for us exceptionally frightening.  We were taking photos from our windows, as 
advised, to record some of the examples of licence breaches, when the manager 
clearly tagged us and our house as being the root of all the complaints and 
encouraged one of his burley customers to come over and confront us.  When we 
answered the door, he had gone, but I have never felt so frightened and intimidated 
in my own home as I was that night.
Following this incident and several weeks of unchecked noisy disturbance, we 
resorted to having a costly secondary glazing unit installed in the bedroom so we 
could have at least one room in the house to escape the noise.
All we have ever wanted is for the pub to be a well-run establishment that adheres 
to it’s licence restrictions and respects it’s neighbours as well as it’s customers.  
We have lived in the street for 30 years and never before has the pub caused as 
much upset and bad feeling in our community as it has since January 2018, nor has 
it affected the enjoyment of our home in such a negative way.  
We had been thinking of moving from Sekforde Street for some time, but following 
this incident, and the continuing disturbances on Thursday and Friday nights, we 
have felt so unhappy and no longer able to enjoy our home that we have recently 
moved from the area.  I will not say that The Sekforde, as it is currently run, has 
forced us to move home after 30 years in Clerkenwell, but sadly, it has definitely 
influenced and hastened our decision.  

Page 312



29th October 2018 

The Sekforde, Islington Council License Review 
Dear Licensing Board, 

As I have lived  away from ‘The Sekforde’ for the last 38 
years. I wanted to add my voice to this Licence review. 

We rarely experienced problems in the past with noise from the pub. 
Which was always sorted out with a chat to the landlord at the time 
with no problem. 

Unfortunately since it’s refurbishment and re-opening early this year. 
The noise level and anti-social behavior outside The Sekforde have 
become very bad on many occasions.  

Our complaints and concerns to the current landlord have had little 
response.  

I don’t want The Sekforde to close, it’s very much part of the Street but 
the current landlords must take better control of their premises. 

Yours sincerely 

Rep 13

Page 313



Rep 14

Page 314



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 11:10
To: Jones, Carol
Cc:
Subject: Sekforde Pub

Hello Carol,  

By this email, we would like to express (and reiterate) our concerns re the ongoing state of the Sekforde Pub.  

We own   which is literally   to the pub  and have been disturbed on several occasions 
since their reopening last winter. 
We have tried to discuss with the owner on few occasions and offered what we deem are reasonable solutions (e.g. 
no blocking of the pavement, lowering the noise levels inside and outside the pub). Unfortunately, we have seen 
very little desire from the owner and his teams to agree on any of the above. This makes us wonder if they are truly 
looking for a compromise solution.  

We attended the public session organised by the owner few days ago. Again, we were left with the impression to 
face a broken record with no desire to find any remediation solutions.  

We therefore would like to see the council step in this matter and take firm actions here so that the pub can 
continue to function while being more mindful of its surroundings and the local residents.  

Thank you. 

Rep 15

Page 315



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 18:36
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: The Sekforde Pub

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Dear Miss Jones, 

I understand that i can write to you with any concerns I have about the Sekforde, which will be taken into 
consideration as part of the licence review. 

I have lived in   for a number of years. I love the community I live in, which has always been 
vibrant but harmonious. I live at the top end of   away from the pub and have never been 
disturbed by its presence before. I used to frequent the pub occasionally before it closed and have been in there a 
couple of times since it re‐opened. 

I have noticed a change of clientele at the pub. It is a much younger crowd. I have also noticed that there are huge 
numbers of people standing on the street blocking the pavements and the noise generated by these large crowds of 
people is quite extraordinary. I am so glad I do not live closer to the pub because I would not be able to tolerate the 
noise levels.  

I have also noticed for the first time, an increased number of disturbances in my street late at night as intoxicated 
people pass by my house without regard or respect to the neighbourhood. Whilst I cannot say for certain, they are 
coming from the pub, they are coming from that direction and I have only noticed this over the last 6‐7 months. 

The way the pub is managed, if allowed to continue in the same way, will impact upon my life personally. I am 
expecting my first child and I do not want to have to walk on the road with a pram because drinkers are blocking the 
pavements. Equally, I do not want my young baby to be woken at night but noisy customers leaving the pub. 

I really do hope that some degree of control can be exercised over the running of this pub so that that respect is 
shown to the neighbourhood and it returns to being vibrant and harmonious. 

I ask for my views to be considered as part of the review. 

Kind regards 

Rep 16 

Page 316



Rep 17 

Page 317



Page 318



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 12:07
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: Representation regarding The Sekforde

Dear Licensing, 

Please note that I wish my address to be redacted when these documents are made public to anyone other 
than the Licensing Sub-Committee and Islington's Licensing team. I do not feel comfortable with the 
licensee knowing where I live. 

I live at  together with my  comprising  Clerkenwell residents. 

Together we discussed The Sekforde, our negative experiences since the pub was reopened by Mr Lonsdale, 
the application made by Islington's Noise Pollution Team to review the licence, the applicant's flyers 
circulated to residents and the residents meeting hosted last week by the licensee. We drafted and agreed the 
below representation together, and are submitting it individually. 

We have lived within  of The Sekforde for 14 years, and during the past 6 years we have a  of 
 to the pub from our properties. We frequented the pub on occasion prior to Mr Lonsdale reopening it 

with himself as the premises licence holder. During that time, we happily lived near the pub. On occasion 
we would hear noise from the pub inside my property; mostly animated conversations of patrons who were 
outside. We considered the volume and frequency of the noise to be typical of any residential property in 
proximity to a pub or restaurant. 

This changed abruptly when The Sekforde was reopened with Mr Lonsdale as the operator. Suddenly the 
noise levels increased exponentially and there were crowds of pub customers drinking outside the pub 
(across the street to the west on Sekforde St and across the street to the east on both Sekforde St and 
Woodbridge St).  

Never before had we noticed the pub's customers spilling out into the streets in such a way or such a high 
frequency of ASB. The noise was considerable enough to create a nuisance; a mix of animated 
conversations like before, some louder groups (loud enough for us to hear their conversations), shouting, 
quiz night and loud music.  

Another change was that when we walked in the neighbourhood, especially on a Saturday morning, we now 
regularly found empty beer bottles and glasses littering Woodbridge St. We cleaned much of this ourselves, 
because it was dangerous to leave glass lying around, and reported other incidences via Islington's app. 

As long-term residents of Clerkenwell, we believe that a reasonable number of reasonably sized premises 
are welcome provided they respect their residential neighbours' reasonable needs. This pub under the current
licensee/management does not. It quickly and significantly added to the cumulative impact in an area 
defined as saturated by Islington's licensing policy. The pub regularly disrupts the residential/commercial 
balance in Clerkenwell. 

We, like many of our neighbours with whom we have spoken, are saddened by this change at The Sekforde. 
This is a local pub where many local neighbours gathered (and still do). But such gatherings previously did 
not result in regular and sustained loss of sleep for neighbours or other noise nuisance to residents in the 
pub's proximity.  

Rep 18

Page 319



2

The Sekforde also previously did not force pedestrians, buggies and wheelchairs to constantly go into the 
street just to walk past the pub. As shown in the attached photos, you will note that even at a day/time with 
only 2 outdoor customers, the outdoor furnishings still make it difficult to pass. The space between the no 
entry sign and The Sekforde’s A-board is only just wide enough for my 4 year old to stand. It was not wide 
enough for more than one person to pass at a time, nor for a buggy or wheelchair to pass. Note that this 
photo is representative of the average layout of The Sekforde’s outdoor furnishings. 

During the residents meeting last week, Mr Lonsdale began with a speech about the history of the Sekforde, 
his personal family history (mostly replicated in his representation) and his plans for scholarships and 
apprentices. He then shared a series of photos of patrons from other pubs also blocking public footpaths and 
stated, and I quote (because I was so shocked that I immediately wrote it down) "I doesn't see pedestrians 
being forced into the road as something terribly problematic." He also indicated that pedestrians could 
simply ask customers to move - but many people are nervous to do so when there are large, loud, inebriated 
crowds in their way.  

PARAGRAPH 69 

I was shocked to see the comments in paragraph 69 of Mr Lonsdale's representation, wherein he makes a 
series of remarks about me that are false, hurtful, offensive and racist.  

I had attended the meeting after seeing the invitation to residents to "tell us what you think". Instead, Mr 
Lonsdale spent the whole beginning of the meeting with a presentation about his personal family history, the
pub's history and a comparison of pub customers blocking various pavements.  

Your officers, who were present at the meeting, will confirm paragraph 69 is not remotely a fair reflection 
of the meeting. I did speak my mind clearly during the meeting, and occasionally interjected during his 
presentation. Your officer also asked to speak during the presentation, to which Mr Lonsdale replied "I'd 
rather you not [speak now]". Helpfully, your officer spoke regardless in order to clarify the Council's views. 
Having attended dozens of meetings with licensees and prospective licensees, I found Mr Lonsdale's 
behaviour astonishing.  

I have attended numerous licensing meetings - in some cases the meetings were convivial, in some cases 
less so, but I have never seen any applicant behave in this matter. It is conduct unbecoming of anyone 
operating a premises licence. More pertinently, it helps explain why ASB at the pub has become such a 
problem since he took over the premises 

IN CONCLUSION 

The Sekforde is surrounded by residential premises in close proximity on all sides. For many years, the pub 
coexisted well with its neighbours (both immediately adjacent/opposite the property and those a few doors 
down). We would like to see pub operations adjusted so it can continue to operate in happy coexistence with 
the neighbourhood.  

Sadly, Mr Lonsdale does not seem interested in trying to work with Islington or his neighbours to find a 
happy medium. His tone is inflammatory in his invitation to the residents meeting (attached), his letter to 
residents prior to the meeting (attached) and his representation submitted as part of the Review application. 
In these written documents and whilst speaking at the residents meeting, Mr Lonsdale's disrespect and scorn 
for his neighbours is on full show.  

He has repeatedly misrepresented residents' views, the process and the facts resulting from his running of 
the pub in the past year. He falsely claims that there is no noise and claims that residents are making a 
coordinated effort to shut him down in order to raise the value of their properties. And in his letter to 
residents prior to the residents meeting, he sets out his clear intention to appeal the Council's decision 
regardless. 

Page 320



3

We are grateful to Islington's Noise Pollution Team for filing this application to review The Sekforde's 
licence in an effort to add noise conditions to improve the residential/commercial balance in the area 
surrounding the pub. We agree with the Pollution Team's recommended conditions, but also add the below 
requests. We would be most grateful if the Licensing Sub-Committee would also be minded to consider 
this.  

- Tables and chairs and A-boards shall be placed in such a way to always provide for enough space for two
pedestrians or a double buggy to pass by
- Any outside drinking should be cleared of customers by 22:00 vs. 22:30, as with other pubs in the area
- Any outside furniture permitted must be taken out of use and disabled by 22:00 vs. 22:30 every night, as
with other pubs in the area
- Conditions about the area for vertical drinking and for customers outside should also take special care to
protect the amenity of residents who live just 10m from The Sekforde on Woodbridge St
- The door supervisor will also patrol the outside area to ensure that at all times there is at least enough
empty public footpath to allow two pedestrians or a double buggy to pass by

We also agree with the Pollution Team's recommendation to seek a suitably qualified and experienced 
person as DPS at this premises. We believe that this, combined with the recommended conditions (which 
are standard for other nearby pubs), would enable the pub to once again coexist with its residential 
neighbours.  

Based on written and personal dealings with Mr Lonsdale and our experience of The Sekforde since it was 
reopened by Mr Lonsdale, we have come to the conclusion that Mr Lonsdale is not a fit and proper person 
to be a licensed landlord. We also conclude that he has no respect for or interest in supporting the Licensing 
Objectives.  

We thank the Licensing Sub-Committee for your time in considering our concerns. 

Sincerely, 

Page 321



Page 322



THE SEKFORDE ARMS 

OPENED 1829 

CLOSING 2019? 

89 COMPLAINTS TO ISLINGTON COUNCIL FROM OUR IMMEDIATE NEIGHBOURS IN 10 MONTHS. 

TOO MUCH NOISE. PAVEMENT TOO CROWDED. CROWDS OUT OF CONTROL CIGARETTE SMOKE 
COMING INTO MY PROPERTY, PLANTS MOVED TO AN UNACCEPTABLE POSITION. 

LICENCE REVIEW 28TH NOVEMBER 2018. 

TELL US WHAT YOU THINK. 

PUBLIC MEETING MONDAY 22ND OCTOBER 2018 6PM AT THE SEKFORDE. 

ALL WELCOME. ALL VIEWS RESPECTED. 

Page 323



34 Sekforde Street 

London EC1 R0HA 

21st October 2018 

Dear Neighbour, 

I fear that some of you will have grown weary of the dispute between me plus my staff at the 
Sekforde and our immediate neighbours who have sent to you the anonymous letter dated 17th 
October 2018. If so I am sorry and read no further. 

I very much hope you and they will come to the public meeting on 22nd October 2018 at 6pm at the 
Sekforde. But some of you will not be able to come and I feel I should answer the anonymous letter. 
I was the only person on Woodbridge and Sekforde street who was not sent a copy. But one of our 
regular customers has given me his copy. I do believe that if any person is going to criticise any one 
in such a public way he or she should at least let him know so he can defend himself. 

A representative of the council is attending the meeting. Everyone will be treated by me and my 
staff with the utmost curtesy and respect. The purpose of the meetings is to allow any one who has 
an interest in the issues raised by the licence review to express an opinion.  

But I want to make my position clear. I do not think that most of the complaints have been justified. 
Many are multiple complaints about “people noise” at the same time on certain evenings. I do not 
accept the claims made that we have repeatedly breached the licence conditions or that the running 
of the pub during Youngs tenancy represented some sort of halcyon era. I employ highly dedicated 
and experienced staff who have I think created something quite wonderful in a very short space of 
time. 

I do not claim there have been no breaches of the licence. I have disciplined the staff for failing to 
get everyone inside by 10.30 pm and failing to turn the tables up by that time. But those breaches 
are rare and have not happened recently. I have an app on my phone linked to our high tech security 
cameras and have been checking religiously every night at 10.30 pm for at least 6 weeks.  

It is true, that the application is made by the pollution team. But it has been made because of the 
complaints. It is my view that those who have complained ought themselves to have made the 
application as they are entitled to do under the 2003 Licensing Act. Any review decision made by the 
licensing committee is subject to an appeal to the magistrates’ court and a possible further appeal to 
the High Court. No changes are enforceable until the appeal process is exhausted. By pressing the 
pollution team into taking this action against me and not taking it themselves, the cost of 
proceedings and risk is completely removed from those who have complained. It is transferred to 
the public or the entire population of Islington. But for whose benefit is the public incurring this risk 
and this cost? It is in my view for the benefit of a very small number of people who have chosen to 
purchase very valuable property next to a pub and now object to the noise necessarily made by a 
busy and successful pub. They do not agree with this view. But that is what I think.  

If the changes to the licence are implemented, the Sekforde cannot survive as a pub. Forget profit 
for my scholarship fund, just to break even, we need to take about £12,000 a week. As trade is so 

Page 324



tilted towards the end of the week, that means taking about £4000 on Friday evenings at least. That 
is the equivalent of selling 800 pints. How is that achievable from just 20 people standing outside? 
No one wants to be inside in the summer and we just could not begin to cover our costs. 

And what is to happen when 16 people are standing outside and a group of five friends arrive? Do 
we agree to serve four and tell one that he must sit inside on his own? 

The pub was hopelessly unprofitable when Youngs was running it. That is why the company 
surrendered its lease with a term date of 2026 to me for nothing. I do not have the buying power or 
experience of Youngs but have made the Sekforde profitable by investing in the premises and the 
people.  

Making fairly heroic assumptions about Christmas trading, I hope to make a profit of just over 
£100,000 in a year all of which is going to provide scholarships for students who need them. Why is 
that considered an unreasonable level of profit when I work for nothing and nearly £3,000,000 was 
invested in the Sekforde? I do not think it is.  

I will appeal any changes to my licence because I consider I have a civic duty to do so. I think the pub 
is worth keeping and the changes proposed will destroy it. I owe it to my seven full time staff, to our 
future scholars, to the people who attend our free public debates and to every Londoner who cares 
about keeping open historic public buildings. And I owe it to my friend Hadi Sarmadi who put so 
much effort into restoring the Sekforde.   

I have no real confidence in the judgment of Islington council’s licensing committee but have 
confidence in the judgment of the magistrates’ and High Court which ultimately will decide this 
dispute.  If I lose, which I may do, the pub will close, and I will of course pay Islington’s legal costs. If I 
win, then Islington (ie all the people of Islington) will pay my legal costs. Neither of those outcomes 
seems desirable to me.  

27% of pubs in London have closed since 2001. One closes every week in this city. Do you really think 
this is what should happen to the Sekforde? 

I attended voluntarily a meeting with Islington’s licensing committee on 2nd August 2018. The 
committee asked me to prevent people from going on to the opposite side of Woodbridge street 
and to employ someone outside on Thursdays and Fridays. Neither was a condition of my licence 
and I myself believe that allowing people to drink just to the left of the solicitors’ offices on 
Woodbridge Street in the Summer is desirable. It limits numbers on Sekforde street and therefore 
noise to the residents of Sekforde Street. I agreed voluntarily to do what the council wanted and 
have done so. But it has not reduced the number or ferocity of complaints. 

Kind regards 

David Lonsdale 

Page 325



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 18:27
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: license review for Sekforde pub

Dear Ms Jones 

I have seen the notices about the licence review for the Sekforde. I live in  , which is 
often used as a cut through road for people leaving the Sekforde. We have noticed an increased number of 
drunken people walking along our street late at night causing a disturbance. It is a great shame that the 
customers are unable to leave the pub in in a quiet and orderly manner. I have seen the small signs on the 
pub doors asking customers to respect residents but if this is not enforced by the management of the pub, 
which evidently it isn’t, it has no effect. 

I have also noticed the sheer volume of people standing outside drinking blocking the pavements – is this 
actually allowed? There are so many people, that residents are forced to walk in the street. Whilst 
Sekforde Street is not so busy, cars do often pass through at great speed and the road is not that wide. It is 
not safe to expect people to walk in the street to accommodate the drinkers. 

I support the council imposing stricter controls to manage these problems. 

Regards 

Rep 19

Page 326



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 13:00
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde arms pub

Dear Sir/ Madam 
I have been meaning to write my own impact that the Sekforde Arms Pub has had on my family and I hear the dead 
line is 31st October so I thought best to email. I live at number   with my husband and our 

 . We have to say that since it has been taken over by the new owner it has been horrendous to live 
here, especially from Wednesday to Saturday. We have to put up with Hugh crowds talking loudly, screaming 
laughter, and plain arrogant behaviour, which is loud right up to closing time and beyond. 
My husband is a   and regularly does early morning shifts( 4am )which means he has to have a decent and 
early nights rest in order to carry on his work SAFELY that morning, rowdy noise makes that very difficult. There 
seems to be no attempt to have consideration for residents if fact it seems that the noise is encouraged. 
 I know many of my neighbours are suffering greatly as we are ourselves therefore we look forward to action being 
taken by Islington to do what the law implements in situations like noise pollution from Rowdy inconsiderate pubs 
like the Sekforde Arms. 
Kind Regards 

Sent from my iPad 

Rep 20

Page 327



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 12:12
To: Licensing
Subject: Representation: The Sekforde

Dear Licensing, 

Please note that I wish to make this representation anonymously. I do not feel comfortable with the licensee 
knowing my name or where I live. 

I live at  together with my  comprising  Clerkenwell residents. 

Together we discussed The Sekforde, our negative experiences since the pub was reopened by Mr Lonsdale, 
the application made by Islington's Noise Pollution Team to review the licence, the applicant's flyers 
circulated to residents and the residents meeting hosted last week by the licensee. We drafted and agreed the 
below representation together, and are submitting it individually. 

We have lived within  of The Sekforde for 14 years, and during the past 6 years we have a  of 
 to the pub from our properties. We frequented the pub on occasion prior to Mr Lonsdale reopening it 

with himself as the premises licence holder. During that time, we happily lived near the pub. On occasion 
we would hear noise from the pub inside my property; mostly animated conversations of patrons who were 
outside. We considered the volume and frequency of the noise to be typical of any residential property in 
proximity to a pub or restaurant. 

This changed abruptly when The Sekforde was reopened with Mr Lonsdale as the operator. Suddenly the 
noise levels increased exponentially and there were crowds of pub customers drinking outside the pub 
(across the street to the west on Sekforde St and across the street to the east on both Sekforde St and 
Woodbridge St).  

Never before had we noticed the pub's customers spilling out into the streets in such a way or such a high 
frequency of ASB. The noise was considerable enough to create a nuisance; a mix of animated 
conversations like before, some louder groups (loud enough for us to hear their conversations), shouting, 
quiz night and loud music.  

Another change was that when we walked in the neighbourhood, especially on a Saturday morning, we now 
regularly found empty beer bottles and glasses littering Woodbridge St. We cleaned much of this ourselves, 
because it was dangerous to leave glass lying around, and reported other incidences via Islington's app. 

As long-term residents of Clerkenwell, we believe that a reasonable number of reasonably sized premises 
are welcome provided they respect their residential neighbours' reasonable needs. This pub under the current
licensee/management does not. It quickly and significantly added to the cumulative impact in an area 
defined as saturated by Islington's licensing policy. The pub regularly disrupts the residential/commercial 
balance in Clerkenwell. 

We, like many of our neighbours with whom we have spoken, are saddened by this change at The Sekforde. 
This is a local pub where many local neighbours gathered (and still do). But such gatherings previously did 
not result in regular and sustained loss of sleep for neighbours or other noise nuisance to residents in the 
pub's proximity.  

The Sekforde also previously did not force pedestrians, buggies and wheelchairs to constantly go into the 
street just to walk past the pub. As shown in the attached photos, you will note that even at a day/time with 

Rep 21

Page 328



2

only 2 outdoor customers, the outdoor furnishings still make it difficult to pass. The space between the no 
entry sign and The Sekforde’s A-board is only just wide enough for a 4 year old to stand. It was not wide 
enough for more than one person to pass at a time, nor for a buggy or wheelchair to pass. Note that this 
photo is representative of the average layout of The Sekforde’s outdoor furnishings. 

IN CONCLUSION 

The Sekforde is surrounded by residential premises in close proximity on all sides. For many years, the pub 
coexisted well with its neighbours (both immediately adjacent/opposite the property and those a few doors 
down). We would like to see pub operations adjusted so it can continue to operate in happy coexistence with 
the neighbourhood.  

Sadly, Mr Lonsdale does not seem interested in trying to work with Islington or his neighbours to find a 
happy medium. His tone is inflammatory in his invitation to the residents meeting (attached), his letter to 
residents prior to the meeting (attached) and his representation submitted as part of the Review application. 
In these written documents and whilst speaking at the residents meeting, Mr Lonsdale's disrespect and scorn 
for his neighbours is on full show.  

He has repeatedly misrepresented residents' views, the process and the facts resulting from his running of 
the pub in the past year. He falsely claims that there is no noise and claims that residents are making a 
coordinated effort to shut him down in order to raise the value of their properties. And in his letter to 
residents prior to the residents meeting, he sets out his clear intention to appeal the Council's decision 
regardless. 

We are grateful to Islington's Noise Pollution Team for filing this application to review The Sekforde's 
licence in an effort to add noise conditions to improve the residential/commercial balance in the area 
surrounding the pub. We agree with the Pollution Team's recommended conditions, but also add the below 
requests. We would be most grateful if the Licensing Sub-Committee would also be minded to consider this. 

- Tables and chairs and A-boards shall be placed in such a way to always provide for enough space for two
pedestrians or a double buggy to pass by
- Any outside drinking should be cleared of customers by 22:00 vs. 22:30, as with other pubs in the area
- Any outside furniture permitted must be taken out of use and disabled by 22:00 vs. 22:30 every night, as
with other pubs in the area
- Conditions about the area for vertical drinking and for customers outside should also take special care to
protect the amenity of residents who live just 10m from The Sekforde on Woodbridge St
- The door supervisor will also patrol the outside area to ensure that at all times there is at least enough
empty public footpath to allow two pedestrians or a double buggy to pass by

We also agree with the Pollution Team's recommendation to seek a suitably qualified and experienced 
person as DPS at this premises. We believe that this, combined with the recommended conditions (which 
are standard for other nearby pubs), would enable the pub to once again coexist with its residential 
neighbours.  

Based on written and personal dealings with Mr Lonsdale and our experience of The Sekforde since it was 
reopened by Mr Lonsdale, we have come to the conclusion that Mr Lonsdale is not a fit and proper person 
to be a licensed landlord. We also conclude that he has no respect for or interest in supporting the Licensing 
Objectives.  

We thank the Licensing Sub-Committee for your time in considering our concerns. 

Sincerely, 

Page 329



Page 330



THE SEKFORDE ARMS 

OPENED 1829 

CLOSING 2019? 

89 COMPLAINTS TO ISLINGTON COUNCIL FROM OUR IMMEDIATE NEIGHBOURS IN 10 MONTHS. 

TOO MUCH NOISE. PAVEMENT TOO CROWDED. CROWDS OUT OF CONTROL CIGARETTE SMOKE 
COMING INTO MY PROPERTY, PLANTS MOVED TO AN UNACCEPTABLE POSITION. 

LICENCE REVIEW 28TH NOVEMBER 2018. 

TELL US WHAT YOU THINK. 

PUBLIC MEETING MONDAY 22ND OCTOBER 2018 6PM AT THE SEKFORDE. 

ALL WELCOME. ALL VIEWS RESPECTED. 

Page 331



34 Sekforde Street 

London EC1 R0HA 

21st October 2018 

Dear Neighbour, 

I fear that some of you will have grown weary of the dispute between me plus my staff at the 
Sekforde and our immediate neighbours who have sent to you the anonymous letter dated 17th 
October 2018. If so I am sorry and read no further. 

I very much hope you and they will come to the public meeting on 22nd October 2018 at 6pm at the 
Sekforde. But some of you will not be able to come and I feel I should answer the anonymous letter. 
I was the only person on Woodbridge and Sekforde street who was not sent a copy. But one of our 
regular customers has given me his copy. I do believe that if any person is going to criticise any one 
in such a public way he or she should at least let him know so he can defend himself. 

A representative of the council is attending the meeting. Everyone will be treated by me and my 
staff with the utmost curtesy and respect. The purpose of the meetings is to allow any one who has 
an interest in the issues raised by the licence review to express an opinion.  

But I want to make my position clear. I do not think that most of the complaints have been justified. 
Many are multiple complaints about “people noise” at the same time on certain evenings. I do not 
accept the claims made that we have repeatedly breached the licence conditions or that the running 
of the pub during Youngs tenancy represented some sort of halcyon era. I employ highly dedicated 
and experienced staff who have I think created something quite wonderful in a very short space of 
time. 

I do not claim there have been no breaches of the licence. I have disciplined the staff for failing to 
get everyone inside by 10.30 pm and failing to turn the tables up by that time. But those breaches 
are rare and have not happened recently. I have an app on my phone linked to our high tech security 
cameras and have been checking religiously every night at 10.30 pm for at least 6 weeks.  

It is true, that the application is made by the pollution team. But it has been made because of the 
complaints. It is my view that those who have complained ought themselves to have made the 
application as they are entitled to do under the 2003 Licensing Act. Any review decision made by the 
licensing committee is subject to an appeal to the magistrates’ court and a possible further appeal to 
the High Court. No changes are enforceable until the appeal process is exhausted. By pressing the 
pollution team into taking this action against me and not taking it themselves, the cost of 
proceedings and risk is completely removed from those who have complained. It is transferred to 
the public or the entire population of Islington. But for whose benefit is the public incurring this risk 
and this cost? It is in my view for the benefit of a very small number of people who have chosen to 
purchase very valuable property next to a pub and now object to the noise necessarily made by a 
busy and successful pub. They do not agree with this view. But that is what I think.  

If the changes to the licence are implemented, the Sekforde cannot survive as a pub. Forget profit 
for my scholarship fund, just to break even, we need to take about £12,000 a week. As trade is so 

Page 332



tilted towards the end of the week, that means taking about £4000 on Friday evenings at least. That 
is the equivalent of selling 800 pints. How is that achievable from just 20 people standing outside? 
No one wants to be inside in the summer and we just could not begin to cover our costs. 

And what is to happen when 16 people are standing outside and a group of five friends arrive? Do 
we agree to serve four and tell one that he must sit inside on his own? 

The pub was hopelessly unprofitable when Youngs was running it. That is why the company 
surrendered its lease with a term date of 2026 to me for nothing. I do not have the buying power or 
experience of Youngs but have made the Sekforde profitable by investing in the premises and the 
people.  

Making fairly heroic assumptions about Christmas trading, I hope to make a profit of just over 
£100,000 in a year all of which is going to provide scholarships for students who need them. Why is 
that considered an unreasonable level of profit when I work for nothing and nearly £3,000,000 was 
invested in the Sekforde? I do not think it is.  

I will appeal any changes to my licence because I consider I have a civic duty to do so. I think the pub 
is worth keeping and the changes proposed will destroy it. I owe it to my seven full time staff, to our 
future scholars, to the people who attend our free public debates and to every Londoner who cares 
about keeping open historic public buildings. And I owe it to my friend Hadi Sarmadi who put so 
much effort into restoring the Sekforde.   

I have no real confidence in the judgment of Islington council’s licensing committee but have 
confidence in the judgment of the magistrates’ and High Court which ultimately will decide this 
dispute.  If I lose, which I may do, the pub will close, and I will of course pay Islington’s legal costs. If I 
win, then Islington (ie all the people of Islington) will pay my legal costs. Neither of those outcomes 
seems desirable to me.  

27% of pubs in London have closed since 2001. One closes every week in this city. Do you really think 
this is what should happen to the Sekforde? 

I attended voluntarily a meeting with Islington’s licensing committee on 2nd August 2018. The 
committee asked me to prevent people from going on to the opposite side of Woodbridge street 
and to employ someone outside on Thursdays and Fridays. Neither was a condition of my licence 
and I myself believe that allowing people to drink just to the left of the solicitors’ offices on 
Woodbridge Street in the Summer is desirable. It limits numbers on Sekforde street and therefore 
noise to the residents of Sekforde Street. I agreed voluntarily to do what the council wanted and 
have done so. But it has not reduced the number or ferocity of complaints. 

Kind regards 

David Lonsdale 

Page 333



Rep 22

Page 334



Page 335



Licensing Team 

Public Protection Division 

222 Upper Street 

London N1 1XR 

30 October 2018 

Review of the premises licence for The Sekforde 

Dear Sir or Madam, 

I am writing in response to your notice regarding a review of The Sekforde’s premises license. I 

would be grateful if you could take my family’s comments into consideration. 

We have lived in the areas for nearly 16 years, and moved to  in September 2011, 

 along from the pub. We have had 7 very happy years in our home, and now have a 

I work as a  and frequently work from home; while my husband works as a 

 in Wembley. We love living in this peaceful and beautiful conservation area, and 

really value being part of a friendly local neighbourhood and the dynamic Clerkenwell community. 

We are writing to you as our family and home life have been significantly disrupted since The 

Sekforde reopened under new management in December 2017. 

We would like to share our experience with you and voice our support for the conditions 

recommended by the Pollution Team, which we believe will significantly reduce disruption, 

meaning we can go back to enjoying our home and family life.  

Our Experience 

Under the previous landlords, noise from the pub was within reasonable limits (apart from the odd 

busy time at Christmas etc.), the manager was responsive, and we were not significantly disturbed 

by its customers. The pub was frequented by Sekforde Street residents and local workers who 

generally respected the neighbourhood. We only once spoke to the manager about an issue (a 

customer vomited outside our home after a Christmas party), but never had cause to raise a 

complaint against the premises with the Council. 

When the pub reopened in December 2017, there was an immediate impact on our family, both 

inside and outside our home. There was an influx of customers from outside the local area, and the 

noise level and incidences of poor behaviour escalated rapidly. 

We include a detailed list of specific issues at the end of this letter. 

Rep 23

Page 336



2 
 

Interactions with The Sekforde’s management team 

During the first few months of 2018, we tried to contact The Sekforde several times by phone when 

the noise levels were too high. There was no answer and no response to my voice messages. I was 

therefore forced to direct my complaints to the council’s ASB team. 

I eventually spoke to the management in person after an incident when a customer urinated on my 

home (see details in appendix). 

I spoke to Harry, the new manager; Hadi, who introduced himself as the owner’s business partner; 

and Hamza, the chef. Hadi was dismissive of my concerns, sarcastic and rude; he stormed off in the 

middle of our discussion. Harry carefully took note of my concerns and suggestions, specifically: 

• to answer the phone during the evenings: we rang the phone while I was there - it rang only 

twice before going to answerphone, giving staff no time to answer it 

• to respond to answerphone messages: there were 10 unheard messages on their machine 

that day 

• to have more experienced bar managers: the pub was serving very drunk individuals and had 

not dealt with issues well 

• to reduce the number of people outside to reduce noise and smoke levels 

• to put up signs asking customers to keep noise levels down 

Harry gave me his mobile number to address the first two issues; however, I was disappointed to see 

no action was taken on the other areas. This has been the pattern with subsequent feedback and 

requests to Harry via his mobile phone. 

We were therefore relieved when the License Review was announced. The License Review is 

welcome and necessary, as feedback and informal negotiations have had no effect. We hope the 

review will support the Pollution Team’s suggestions and reduce disruption. 

 

Impact on our family and neighbourhood 

The individual issues we have been experiencing vary in impact and frequency; however, as a whole 

they form a continuous stream of nuisance and distressing interactions, which have been impacting 

our family on a daily or weekly basis since December 2017. 

We live in a beautiful conservation area lined with period terraced houses. As such, we have thin 

walls, and do not have the luxury of being able to install double glazing to protect us from noise. It is 

also a densely populated residential street, comprising flats, maisonettes and houses. Multiple 

households have children, and many residents work from home. All of this means that many people 

are being impacted in both their family and work lives, and are unable to avoid the nuisance. 

In addition to the public nuisance, we have also felt distressed by the lack of cooperation from the 

owner, David Lonsdale, and the derogatory remarks he has made about us in various emails and 

letters. These remarks include complete fabrications that have been upsetting to read. For example, 

he has accused my family and neighbours of trying to force him out of business to increase our 

property values. This could not be further from the truth – we value our property as a home for our 

family, and our only concern is being able to live peacefully and raise our son in a safe environment. 

During a recent public meeting at The Sekforde, there was overwhelming agreement from a large 

number of neighbours that the noise levels are too high, and that the pub is not acting on feedback.  

Page 337



3 

Our view on the proposed conditions 

We fully support the conditions proposed by the Pollution Team. As a suite of actions, they would 

dramatically reduce the impact of the pub on our family, and return our quality of life to the levels 

we previously enjoyed for many years. 

The most important conditions for us are: the reduction in ‘vertical drinking’ numbers; the addition 

of a licensed, professional security guard; and the relocation of drinkers from Sekforde Street to 

Woodbridge Street. These factors would dramatically reduce issues from noise, smoking and 

antisocial behaviour. 

We respectfully request that you apply these conditions to the license to protect us and future 

generations in the area; and pursue any challenge to your decision in the courts. 

Our view on the sustainability of The Sekforde under the proposed conditions 

We do not want the pub to close. It’s a part of our community, and we would love to have in place a 

sustainable business that is appropriate to its location on a quiet residential street. 

The owner, David Lonsdale, has been campaigning locally claiming that the proposed conditions will 

put him out of business and mean the pub will have to close permanently. We simply do not believe 

this is the case. 

Firstly, according to Mr. Lonsdale, the pub appears to be making sufficient profit to fund significant 

charitable donations (£66,000 to help local families, and a larger amount to South African 

scholarships). If the pub is making sufficient profits to fund these initiatives, it is unlikely that 

reducing outside drinking will make it unprofitable. It has not been possible to verify this as the pub 

has failed to register its accounts with HMRC for FY18. 

Secondly, if reduced outside drinking does impact the pub’s revenues, then they simply need to look 

at other revenue streams to fill the gap. Improving the food proposition seems the most obvious 

course of action. The area has many successful gastro pubs charging premium prices. 

Thirdly, if David Lonsdale is unable to drive a profit from the site, he is not compelled to close the 

pub permanently – he could simply sell it on to a new owner who is better able to drive a profit; for 

example, an experienced restaurateur. If the pub were to close permanently, it would be a 

significant loss for the area, and down to David Lonsdale’s choices, not the actions of the council or 

his neighbours. 

Thank you for taking our views into consideration. We look forward to hearing the outcome of the 

review. 

Page 338



4 

APPENDIX - List of the specific issues experienced, and management’s response: 

• Noise level from excessive numbers of customers drinking in the street, typically every

Thursday and Friday evening. This disrupts our family time at home, and is particularly

difficult during the summer months when the pub had 60-100+ people drinking on the

pavements and in the road on a daily basis. On most days, the behaviour of individual

drinkers is acceptable, but the combined volume of noise is extremely high, making it

difficult to enjoy family time in our home, , holding a conversation,

eating dinner or watching TV.

I spoke to the current manager (Harry) about limiting the number of outside drinkers, but no

action was taken. The owner, Mr Lonsdale, has repeatedly stated (in emails, letters and

verbally to my neighbours) that he will not consider crowd control measures, such as putting

up rope barriers.

• Cigarette smoke from street drinkers. On busy days, as per above, the smell of cigarette

smoke in our living room is unbearable. We had to keep our windows open during the very

hot summer, meaning the problem was much worse. My

. This smoke is no 

doubt harming his health and causes our family much concern. 

Reducing the number of people in the street, and restricting standing / smoking to 

Woodbridge Street, would immediately resolve this problem. 

• Noise from individual customers or groups. There have been many incidences of groups or

individuals shouting, screaming, screeching or singing, making unacceptable levels of noise.

On one occasion, I contacted the manager via SMS as we were being disturbed by an

extremely loud group of three patrons on a relatively quiet evening. He replied: “not sure

what I can do about that”.

As the manager of the pub, I expected him to speak to the customers and ask them to either

keep the noise level down or move inside. Unfortunately, The Sekforde is taking no action,

either proactively or reactively, to control customers’ behaviour.

• Antisocial behaviour. There have been various instances of unacceptable behaviour; I

include some examples here:

o A customer urinated onto the basement window of my home, scaring my

 who were just getting ready for bed. I challenged him from an 

upstairs window and he ran off into the pub. 

When I walked into the pub to complain (no-one was answering the phone), I found 

a very inexperienced young man in charge of the bar, who then ran upstairs to find 

the manager. While he was away, I was verbally abused and physically intimidated 

by the urinator – who was visibly drunk, and still being served by bar staff. 

The manager “didn’t want to come down” so the young bartender asked me what 

he should do (!). I asked him to bar the man from the pub, and make sure he left the 

premises and neighbourhood immediately. He was ejected, but I saw him wandering 

the streets outside my home until his friends left at around midnight – about an 

Page 339



5 
 

hour later. 

 

In my opinion, the staff on duty were not experienced enough to deal with this 

situation, and they should not have been serving customers who were visibly drunk. 

A doorman or security person would have avoided this incident entirely, but more 

experienced managers are also needed. 

 

o Mass, uncontrolled antisocial behaviour. I returned from holiday in a cab at around 

10:15pm on , with my  and several suitcases in tow. What I 

witnessed that night was the worst instance of antisocial behaviour I have seen at 

The Sekforde. There were scores of people on the pavements and standing in the 

street across Sekforde and Woodbridge Street. The noise level was incredible. One 

large group for 10+ was standing in the middle of the road shouting and pointing at 

my neighbours at ; and some of them were trying to approach the house. I 

asked them to stop harassing my neighbours, and some of the group held their 

friends back. I discovered a few minutes later that these people had climbed onto 

the period lantern outside  and thrown a shoe into it, then abused the owner 

when  opened the door and told them to get down. 

 

I contacted the manager at 10.22pm and asked him to clear the street, but my SMS 

remained unanswered. Harry did clear the street by 10.35pm (a little later than the 

usual routine), but unbelievably, he continued to serve these people drinks inside 

the pub. Some time later, I witnessed two members of the same group still standing 

in the middle of Sekforde Street, pointing up at the first-floor windows at  and 

laughing loudly. And the same group was making noise as they waited for taxis to 

take them home at around midnight. As you can imagine this was extremely 

distressing for me and the owners at  

 

This is the sort of mayhem we need to avoid in future. We are lucky no-one was 

injured on this occasion, but it is only a matter of time before there is a serious 

accident if this uncontrolled behaviour is allowed to continue.  

 

Security personnel and a limit on the number of outside drinkers would have 

avoided this incident.  

 

• Trespass on private property. I regularly find customers drinking, smoking and / or making 

phone calls on my private doorstep. When asked to move, some of these customers have 

been polite, while others have been rude and aggressive. 

 

It is unacceptable to have to deal with aggressive behaviour when simply trying to access our 

own front door on our private property. The pub does nothing to control this. Again, security 

personnel would be able to monitor for and eliminate this behaviour.  

 

• Noise from the function room. The pub holds regular events on the 1st floor, and often 

keeps the windows open on in its function room. Examples of this noise include: 

o Quiz night every Wednesday night, when the quizmaster’s amplified voice can be 

heard up and down the street. 

I raised this with Mr Lonsdale during the first event and he closed the windows; 

Page 340



6 
 

however, the windows were open again shortly after, and for every subsequent quiz 

night. Mr. Lonsdale accepted this series of events during the public meeting. 

 

o During the World Cup, when the volume of noise was at its peak. We asked the 

manager if he could keep the windows closed during matches. He said it was too hot 

to close the windows, so I suggested he investigate renting portable air conditioning 

units. Unfortunately, he didn’t do this; the windows remained open, and the noise 

oppressive.  

 

o During private events. 

One event on 18th July 2018 for The Sekforde’s South African charity included 

extremely loud live drumming and singing. 

 

I was about to join a business call to a US client from my living room when the 

drumming started. But the extraordinary noise level meant I had to delay this 

important call, which had a negative impact on my reputation and business. 

 

I contacted the manager immediately via SMS, asking him to close the windows. He 

replied asking me to give him 15 minutes and that the event would be over soon. 

The singing stopped some time later (c 30 mins). He never closed the windows. 

 

The music was beautiful, and I fully support the cause, but the noise level was 

unacceptable. 

 

On this occasion, The Sekforde could easily have informed neighbours of this event 

in advance to warn us there would be loud drumming and live music – I would then 

have been able to rearrange my call or find a different location. Unfortunately, they 

didn’t inform us in advance, which is indicative of the lack of consideration they 

have for neighbours. 

 

You can view the event here: 

https://www.instagram.com/p/BlYsi5WBx_k/?utm_source=ig_web_button_share_sheet 

 

• Broken glass. I was surprised to find large shards of broken glass on the pavement and kerb 

a few weeks ago, causing a safety hazard to pedestrians and car users. This was in a spot 

where we regularly park our car; our son uses this stretch of road on a daily basis. 

I had heard a glass break the evening before and assumed the pub would clear up the mess, 

but they hadn’t. I knocked on the door of the pub to bring it to their attention at around 

11am. Unbelievably, the manager (Harry) said he was aware of the glass but hadn’t “got 

around to clearing it up”. He said one of his bar staff had been off sick the night before, so 

they hadn’t cleared up in the evening.  

I was concerned that this obvious safety hazard was not cleared as soon as it was spotted by 

the manager, rather than leaving the community and road users at risk. 

 

• Blocking of pavements on Sekforde Street and Woodbridge Street. 

The pavement outside the pub on Sekforde Street is blocked by drinkers several times a 

week, both at lunch times and in the evenings. I understand that the pub is required to keep 

the footpath clear for pedestrians, particularly those with mobility issues (pushchairs, 

Page 341

https://www.instagram.com/p/BlYsi5WBx_k/?utm_source=ig_web_button_share_sheet


7 

wheelchairs etc.), but this is rarely the case. 

Following the panel review, the pub’s staff stopped customers from standing on the 

Woodbridge Street triangle and in the middle of the road, making it somewhat easier to 

pass; however, I am still forced to walk in the road with my  to get home. 

At the recent public meeting at the Sekforde, Mr Lonsdale and his staff claimed that the 

Sekforde Street pavement have been kept clear since the panel meeting in August. This is 

simply not true, and I include a number of photos below as evidence. I have collated these 

from several neighbours. 

The proposal to reduce restrict standing to Woodbridge Street would address this problem, 

if enforced by a security person. 

05 September 2018: 

Page 342



8 
 

07 September 2018, circa 6pm: 

 
 

14 September 2018: 

 

 

Page 343



9 

26 September 2018, drinkers blocking access to private property: 

04 October 2018: 

Page 344



10 

05 October 2018: 

Page 345



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 23:47
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: Sekforde Arms pub review

Dear Ms Jones, 

I have seen the notices about the licence review for the Sekforde. I live on , a street 
which is often used as a cut through road for people leaving the Sekforde. All neighbours have already 
noticed an increased number of drunken people walking along our street late at night causing a disturbance. 
It is a great shame that the customers are unable to leave the pub in in a quiet and orderly manner. I have 
seen the small signs on the pub doors asking customers to respect residents but if this is not enforced by the 
management of the pub, which evidently it isn’t, it has no effect. 

I have also noticed the sheer volume of people standing outside drinking blocking the pavements – is this 
actually allowed? There are so many people, that residents are forced to walk in the street. Whilst Sekforde 
Street is not so busy, cars do often pass through at great speed and the road is not that wide. It is not safe to 
expect people to walk in the street to accommodate the drinkers. 

I support the council imposing stricter controls to manage these problems. 

Regards, 

Rep 24

Page 346



Rep 25

Page 347



1 

Dear Licensing 

Re: Sekforde Licence Review – 34 Sekforde Street London 

It is with a heavy heart that that we feel compelled to make representations in support of 
the licence review but our quality of life has deteriorated to such an extent that we feel no 
alternative but recount our experience under the current mismanagement at the pub. 

When we bought our house, just over four years ago, my husband was very happy about the 
prospect of living so close to a historic community pub. Within a matter of days, he had 
struck up friendships with local regular customers, which remain firm to this day. It was 
great to have a convivial hub where you could drop by and always feel welcome and know 
someone there. We were all extremely disappointed when the pub closed for refurbishment 
as we knew it would be difficult to find a replacement to equal the Sekforde. We would 
have been at the closing party but for the fact we were away on holiday. During the 
refurbishment, the locals migrated to the Horseshoe in Clerkenwell Close following the 
manager from the Sekforde although it did not have the same atmosphere that we had all 
enjoyed at the Sekforde. We were therefore very happy when the pub re-opened for 
business little did we realised at that time what a nuisance it would become. 

We attended the opening party and bumped into old familiar faces. We returned to drinking 
in the pub and were on good terms with the original manager Louis who seemed very 
responsible and sensitive to the local residents. He listened with interest to the concerns 
drawn to his attention as the pub experienced teething difficulties. He expressed 
frustrations about not being permitted to meet the needs to the local residents because his 
hands were tied but promised he would work on the situation.  

During conversations with Louis, he made me aware the pub was looking for a chef and 
waiting staff. A friend of mine,  used to run a restaurant and had a fabulous chef, 
experienced kitchen staff and a very reliable team of waiting staff. The restaurant, which 
had been very popular had closed due to a rent hike and although  was involved in 
another project by this time, I thought he might still have contacts and be able to assist the 
pub. I connected  and Louis. A meeting took place between the two of them. 

 reported back the meeting had been very positive and was waiting to hear back but 
the next report I received, was that Louis had resigned. 

At first, we tried to ignore the noise and anti-social behaviour issues at the pub and put it 
down to teething issues. We continued to use the pub.  

Rep 26 

Page 348



2 

Over time, it materialised that new management, unfortunately, did not have the same 
respect or consideration for the local residents. Calls to the pub late at night asking for 
windows to be shut to contain the noise or for patrons outside to be asked to keep the 
noise down to an acceptable level often went unanswered and when they were answered, 
were met with hostility and aggression. The manager repeatedly asked – what do you 
expect me to do about it? Windows did get shut, which made a difference. Future 
complaints could have been avoided if the management had been proactive and taken the 
precautionary step of closing the windows at a reasonable hour. But this never took place 
and repeatedly calls had to be made. Over time, this became wearing.  

I cannot remember the name of the manager who was rude on the phone but believe it was 
the same gentleman who was captured on camera by the occupants of  When he saw 
a video being taken of the crowds outside the pub blocking the pavement, he started to 
point toward the house. The manager, together with two girls can be seen laughing on the 
video. The manager then elicits the assistance of a well built muscular customer to go and 
knock on the door of  The act was clearly intended to intimidate. Mr Lonsdale 
subsequently sent an email to the licensing team complaining about  staring at 
two girls who were upset. A photo speaks a thousand words – in this case a video – which I 
attach so that these two differing accounts can be weighed up by the licensing committee to 
reach their own conclusions. 

Given the persistent and intolerable levels of noise and the unco-operative stance of the 
management, I started to complain to the council. I was pleased when I heard a new 
manager had arrived (Harry) as I hoped that it would result in a marked improvement of the 
attitude towards neighbours. Sadly, it did not. 

Large crowds blocking the pavement has become a customary scene on a Wednesday, 
Thursday and Friday night. The sheer volume of numbers not only means excessive noise 
which disturbs us but also that pedestrians are forced to walk in the road, which is far from 
safe given the narrow street and cars that pass through often at speed.  

The conversations of the crowds are audible in our sitting room. As part of my job, I often 
have to work late under pressure into the night preparing for the following day. Noise 
disturbs my concentration and therefore I am unable to work with the TV or radio on. Often 
such is the noise levels in my sitting room, it is like I have the tv on. I am regularly disturbed 
and struggle to work and this is having a detrimental effect on my professional life. 

There is no crowd control which means that customers regularly pass to our side of the 
street to use the door step to sit and drink and take a phone call in private such is the level 
of noise the other side of the street outside the pub. Bottles are left on the pavement and 
glasses smash in the street, which could cause serious injury to the paw of a dog. Old 
photographs of the pub show the outdoor area, which is confined to a small area. If people 
were confined to this area, it would significantly reduce the level of noise and restore 
tranquillity to the street. The current licence conditions are pushed to the limit and 
consequently broken with customers only being asked to move inside at or about 10.30. The 
licence condition clearly states the outside seating area shall be cleared and rendered 
unusable by 10.30 every day. After customers are asked to go inside, staff then clear the 

Page 349



3 

area and render it unusable flipping the tables on the side. But groups of customers often 
stand around outside up and beyond closing time smoking and still making considerable 
noise. There are occasions when people are outside drinking. The lack of door management 
also means that merry/drunken customers leave the premises without any consideration for 
the residents residents. These late night disturbances often mean we cannot get to sleep 
when we want to. I attach photos by way of example. 

There have been too many incidents of noise disturbance or anti-social behaviour to 
mention. I am going to limit my representations therefore to four examples. 

1. The pub held a private event in the ballroom. A group of male customers left late at night.
They were being extremely noisy and causing a disturbance in the street. It was clear they
had had too much to drink. My husband opened the door and politely asked them to be
quiet. One of the group squared up to my husband and had to be pulled away by his friends.
The (ex-) manager watched from inside the pub and made no attempt to take control of the
situation.

2. The pub hosted a world cup evening in the ballroom. I appreciate it was the World Cup
and important to football supporters. But I had important work to do for the following day
and was prevented from working from the sheer volume of noise coming from the upstairs
room. The windows were wide open and people were cramped into the room – even sitting
on the window ledges. Unable to work, I visited the pub and asked for the windows to be
closed. Harry came to talk to me – this was the first time I met him. He said he could not
close the window because he needed them open for the comfort of his patrons. I asked him
about my needs to able to work in my own home without being disturbed. After a lengthy
discussion, he agreed to shut the windows and promised that he would invest in some fans
for the next event. He also promised to close the door on Sekforde Street at a reasonable
hour to stop the noise escaping from the pub as people enter and exit. He closed the
window and I returned home. Given the length of time I had been away from the house
trying to persuade him to close the window, my dinner was ready and I went to the garden
to eat dinner but with my laptop to continue working and discuss issues with my work
colleague who was staying with me. The noise level increased again and I noticed the
windows were back open. Again the noise was intolerable but I did not have time to waste
going back and pleading with Harry to shut the windows. I worked with earplugs.

When the next match was on (3rd July), the windows were open again. I went out to escape 
the noise, which I could still hear at the end of Woodbridge Street.  

I did call Harry to my door step to ask him why the windows had been left open and the 
windows not closed at 10pm as he had promised. He said he was sorry and forgot about the 
door. As for the windows, he said they had had over 100 people in the room and so even 
though he had got fans, it was not enough. I told him that created health and safety issues 
and he really ought to think about that. During the course of our discussions, David Lonsdale 
appeared on the other side of the street and kept staring over. Eventually, he crossed the 
street and was on my door step. He was clearly intoxicated. He said in a very aggressive 
tone – “you are not complaining about what went on here tonight are you”. I told him I was 
having a discussion with Harry about broken promises he had made to me. Harry told him to 

Page 350



4 

go back inside the pub. He had to be very firm, saying things like – leave it David, I am 
dealing with it. Eventually David returned to the pub but his manner towards me had been 
threatening and intimidating and I felt very uncomfortable on my own door step.  

After David had left, Harry went on to say a man from the council visited on Friday and said 
that they could make noise and effectively be a nuisance because there were extenuating 
circumstances namely the World Cup. I said I did not care about the World Cup and had the 
right to enjoy my house. Harry then said he was very ‘upset and hurt’ because he could see 
me in the garden after I had told him to close the windows. He said you might not know but 
we can see through the window above your front door. I felt very uneasy to know he had 
been watching me in my own house. I told him that if he had been watching me, he would 
have seen me with my laptop because I was still working albeit eating dinner at the same 
time because I had a lot of work to get through. He said I should have kept my door shut. I 
asked if asked if that is why he opened the window again. He said it was opened because 
people were too hot. 

Another male then arrived on my doorstep. Harry called him Will. He said he was his 
(Harry’s) friend. Will said we had both expressed ourselves and I should give his friend a 
break. Harry desperately tried to get his friend to return to the pub. It resulted in him 
physically pushing him across the street and saying “for fuck’s sake leave this to me”. 

Harry apologised to me for not locking the door but said he forgot. I told him that if it was 
the policy of the pub, all staff should know and then if he is too busy and forgets, someone 
else can implement the policy. He said he had authority and he would tell the guys off for 
not following policy because they should have locked it.  

Harry said, I was intelligent and must have realised it was the World Cup that night. I said I 
did realise but had foolishly thought that he would keep him promise to ensure there were 
fans to keep customers cool and that the windows would be kept shut. He asked what I 
wanted him to do. I said show respect to the neighbours. I explained to him that my 
husband used to drink in the pub every night but we had stopped using the pub because of 
the way it is run and the lack of respect shown to the neighbourhood. I suggested he could 
have put a note through the door to ask neighbour to join the World Cup celebrations or 
apologise in advance for any noise disturbance.  

Harry said that the previous managers had been incompetent but he was now in control. He 
said that he had everyone inside by 10.30 with a couple of minutes to spare. I commented 
that he was not doing me a favour but what was required by the licence. Despite this 
conversation, customers still left the pub at 11.15 shouting goodbye to friends and left 
walking up the street having a conversation at the top of their voices. No attempt was made 
by management to keep the noise level to a minimum by those leaving the pub. People 
were still outside at midnight holding conversations. 

My conversation with Harry revealed his inexperience, lack of understanding of the 
detrimental impact the pub is having upon our lives and his indifference to neighbourhood. 

Page 351



5 

3. On the 11th July, another World Cup event was held in the upstairs room. The noise from
the pub was so loud, I did not need to have the TV on to follow the match. I attach a video in
support. I did not complain because it was a Saturday afternoon, we were doing gardening
and therefore prepared to tolerate the noise. After the match, in the evening however, at
10pm I was trying to work and the noise remained at an intolerable level. I opened the front
door to find a large crowd of customers standing in the road and sitting on the pavement on
the residential side of the street. Will was on our doorstep with a bottle of champagne. See
photos attached. I asked him to move with his friends to the other side of the street
because I was trying to work. A drunken Harry with a drink in hand then appeared on my
door step. He said he was extremely upset because England were out of the World Cup and
he ‘did not give a fuck’ about the licence conditions that night. I asked that he move the
customers back to other side of the street. After I closed the door, I head a female
mimicking me saying “I am trying to work”.

Harry did knock on the door a day or two later to apologise for his conduct but I was on a 
work call so I was unable to speak to him. He returned again later but I was on another call 
and therefore he said he would come back the following day. This was the last time I spoke 
to Harry. His conduct has left me with the impression that he is immature and 
unprofessional. It is a real shame because his attitude is bound to permeate down the ranks 
resulting in staff generally having a lack of respect for the neighbours. 

3. More recently, I found a customer in the process of chaining his bike to our railings. I
asked him politely not to do so. He became abusive and asked me what my problem was
and where I expected him to put his bike. I told him anywhere but our railings. He continued
to be unpleasant but eventually unchained his bike and left to find an alternative solution.

I have seen the persistent campaign run by the pub trying to generate support against the 
licence review. Customers have been told that a few people think the pub is too noisy (a 
claim which apparently is madness) and if the review is successful, the pub will have to 
close. The recent poster used as part of the advertising campaign to generate support for 
the pub illustrates the disdain of management towards the neighbours. I attach a copy for 
reference. The complaints are not trivial but significant and with merit. The mismanagement 
really is impacting upon our quality of life. Rob who ran the pub before the refurbishment 
was mature, experienced and professional.  He made customers feel welcome but would 
exercise control if he felt customers were misbehaving. I am confident that if he were still 
running the pub, we would not be experiencing the problems we are now. None of the 
neighbours want to see the pub closed just properly managed by experienced licensees with 
the skillset and ability to address noise and anti-social behaviour. I have seen Mr Lonsdales 
claims that more restrictive conditions would result in the pub being unprofitable, it would 
have to close and staff would loose their jobs. I noticed in a recent newspaper article 
(attached) that Mr Lonsdale has increased the number of scholarships he is offering from 5 
at £10,000 to 9 with one award for a PhD at £25,000. This would suggest that the pub is 
making significant profits. If Mr Lonsdale wants to fulfil a philanthropic mission that is a 
matter for him, it should not be at the expense of his neighbours. 

Page 352



6 

As I finishing these representations, it is 11.45pm and I can hear people in the street having 
a conservation at the top of their voice. Every word can be heard in our sitting room. The 
nuisance continues…. I asked the customers if they could talk a bit quieter. There were 
polite, apologised and said they would. This demonstrates how easy it is to control the noise 
with proper management. 

For all the reasons set out above, we strongly support the licence review. 

Kind regards 

Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



From: 

Sent: 01 November 2018 00:02 

To: Jones, Carol <Carol.Jones@islington.gov.uk> 

Subject: Popular pub raises bar by serving up scholarships | Camden New Journal 

http://camdennewjournal.com/article/popular-pub-raises-bar-by-serving-up-scholarships 

Popular pub raises bar by serving up 
scholarships 
Clerkenwell local that reopened in 2016 offers funding for nine 
young people who have ideas to change the world 

Students who have previously received Sekforde Arms scholarships 

A PUB with a philanthropic mission is using profits from pulling pints to fund 

another round of scholarships for students facing hardship. 

David Lonsdale, who bought Clerkenwell local the Sekforde Arms after it closed in 

2015, is offering nine scholarships to young people who have ideas to change the 

world and want to further their education. This includes the offer of one £25,000 

scholarship to help fund a PhD. Applications will open on November 1. 

Mr Lonsdale said: “We are looking to fund a PhD to do with sustainability. A lot of 

research needs to be done on plastics in the ocean and what could practically be done 

to stop it. The rest of the money is for brilliant students who can be doing anything. 

We had over 300 applications last year and could only help five. This year we hope 

we are able to do more.” 

Among the students who benefited last year was , a classical 

soprano singer who . 

The pub reopened in December 2016 after Mr Lonsdale spent three years renovating 

it. The first floor has a 19th-century ballroom where lectures and debates are held. 

Mr Lonsdale, who lives above the pub, said: “People come here because they know 

we use money for scholarships and they like that. It’s one of reasons they come, as 

well as it being a good pub.” 

Page 361

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/2fEyC4RGkHl8n2OfOtdUY?domain=camdennewjournal.com


1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 27 October 2018 18:19
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: SEKFORDE ARMS

Dear Carol, 

RE SEKFORDE ARMS LICENSE REVIEW 

I am writing with reference to the above review which I believe is due to take place at the end of November. 

Having been a resident at  for 33 years until late September 2018 I was very much involved with the issues relating to the reopening of the 
pub. 

My wife, , has already written to you with her representation regarding the pub but in the light of recent correspondence from David Lonsdale I feel 
the need to correct some of his allegations. 

In his representation to the committee dated 24/10/18 his point below refers to me directly as shown: 

1. I am aware that a few of my immediate neighbours wish the pub to close. One neighbour, , told me as much over a cup of 
tea in his house at  in 2014. He believed his home would be more valuable if there were no pub on Sekforde Street. He and his 
partner  have now sold and left Sekforde street. I am pleased to say that we parted on good terms. 

As you can see from the following extract from an email sent by David Lonsdale to myself and other neighbours on 9/4/2014 the above statement is 
completely untrue  

“Following the public meeting, I have not (yet) received further comments on the planning proposal other than from  at number  whom I 
met at their house. They were most kind and supportive. They admired the architecture of . They have experienced some considerable problems 
with noise in the summer and their hope is that a restored pub in different control could improve the situation in the future. I expect that to be the case.” 

In another email on 19/4/18 to myself and other neighbours from David Lonsdale I was accused of secretly filming his customers as per the extract below 

“And on the subject of being personal, we have just observed  hiding behind his window with a camera filming our well behaved guests 
enjoying themselves outside. He has been doing this all afternoon and two young women have just complained to me about it. I do not find it acceptable that 
they should be made to feel uncomfortable in this way” 

I feel this to be a serious allegation against me that I was acting in some inappropriate way. There is a short video which  has shown to you which 
shows a very different situation. The two young women are laughing along with the manager and finding the whole episode highly entertaining. I think this is 
powerful evidence to show how the truth can be distorted. 
My wife has already referred to this incident in her representation. 

I hope to be able to attend the hearing at the end of November. 

Regards 

Rep 27

Page 362



Mobile –
23rd  October 2018 

Dear Sir/Madam 

The Sekforde Arms – Islington Council Licence Review 

We are writing with our representations to the Council in relation to the licence review of the Sekforde 
Arms. 

We have lived at   for the last nine years and have been resident in 
the Clerkenwell area since 1999. The pub for decades has enjoyed a relatively liberal licence with few 
restrictions. As the closest neighbour, this caused us very little issues when the pub was properly managed 
by experienced landlords. On the odd occasion we had to say something about, for example, music levels our 
complaint was promptly acted upon by the staff and the landlords in a friendly cooperative manner. We 
never had cause to complain to the ASB team. Unfortunately, since re-opening, the pub has breached the 
licence on numerous occasions, allowed anti-social behaviour to occur and has exploited the lack of licence 
conditions imposed.  

We welcomed the renovation of the pub and do not want to see it close. However, following its re-opening 
in December 2017, our lives have been adversely affected by the poor running of the pub. We have 
witnessed and reported numerous licence breaches and horrendous noise levels/anti-social behaviour from 
customers inside and outside of the pub. The summer months were particularly bad with large numbers of 
customers (100 +) being allowed to block the pavements and roads in Sekforde and Woodbridge Street, with 
people blocking and standing in and around our doorway drinking and smoking. This isn’t just a summer 
phenomenon though and this behaviour has continued through the autumn. 

We have also noticed that since its renovation, the noise coming through the  into our home is much 
higher. We were concerned that a great deal of the old wall and interior insulation was being removed by Mr 
Lonsdale with no replacement or thought to sound insulation. We did mention we could hear the radio being 
played when the builders were renovating the property and asked that he consider sound insulation 
measures but he ignored this request. The lack of insulation is so bad we can now hear people talking, 
walking up the stairs and the chairs/tables scraping along the wood floors. Thursdays and Fridays are 
particularly bad and made worse by the music levels being increased. The pub holds a pub quiz every 
Wednesday and the amplified sound is very loud. When the windows are open you can hear the questions 
being asked. We have had to install secondary glazing to our bedroom windows at considerable cost, so at 
least that room is quieter, but the cost of doing so to all the windows at the front, as well as sound insulation 
on the whole wall adjoining the pub, would be prohibitive. 

We also have noticed noise and food smell issues with the kitchen extractor fan and other machinery that 
has been fixed to  and  to our windows. The extractor/machinery is on 24/7. Mr 
Lonsdale has been served with a separate planning notice in relation to this equipment as it appears he did 
not obtain planning permission for the equipment to a Grade II listed property in a conservation area. He has 
not turned off the machinery and it is still running 24/7 despite Mr Lonsdale admitting this was a terrible 
waste of energy and not environmentally friendly. 

Rep 28 

Page 363



We have approached Mr Lonsdale, the current manager Harry Smith and previous managers on numerous 
occasions and made suggestions about how to reduce the noise levels and overcrowding. Examples are: 

• Closing the windows – we have been told that it gets too hot and we should close our windows
instead. There have been incidents when the ASB team has arrived, the windows are closed and then
immediately re-opened when the ASB team leaves;

• Put up barriers or ropes to better control the crowds  - Mr Lonsdale rejected this idea as he thought
the pub would look like a nightclub. His reasoning is laughable particularly given so may pubs in the
area adopt similar crowd control measure;

• Tables and chairs – Mr Lonsdale claims to own the pavement on Sekforde Street and therefore
believes he doesn’t need a furniture licence. Whatever the legal situation, we did ask Mr Lonsdale to
speak to the street furniture team before buying any outside tables to discuss numbers/position of
the tables. He went ahead anyway without consultation. The tables purchased are very large for
such a narrow pavement and have made the situation much worse in terms of the pavement and
street being blocked with customers;

• Crowd control – Mr Lonsdale has already had to appear before a licence panel meeting earlier this
year due to the volume of complaints. He agreed to have doormen on Thursday and Friday to better
control the crowds and to stop customers from blocking the pavements. Despite agreeing to this, Mr
Lonsdale has failed to employ a dedicated doorman and instead put up small signs at the windows
asking people not to block the pavement or road. Unsurprisingly this has little effect and customers
continue to block the pavements and the volume of people remains uncontrolled. Mr Lonsdale
claims that it isn’t an inconvenience for people to step out into the road and appears unconcerned
about people pushing prams or walking with children or people in wheel chairs or with other
mobility issues.

We attended the public meeting organised by Mr Lonsdale on 22nd October which was well attended by local 
residents. A great many of the residents had similar complaints to us and suggested similar ways in which to 
resolve/mitigate the issues. However, in our view, Mr Lonsdale was not particularly receptive to the issues 
being raised and had no constructive suggestions to make of his own to reach resolution with his neighbours. 

We fully support the licence conditions which have been recommended by the Council. They are reasonable 
conditions and ones which are imposed on the majority of pubs and restaurants in the area. We understand 
Mr Lonsdale’s key concern relates to the recommended condition that only 20 people are allowed outside 
for vertical drinking. He claims this will make his business unviable and will bring about the closure of his 
pub. We dispute this particularly given the fact that he has business space on three large floors. A great 
many of the pubs in the area have restrictions imposed upon them with regards to the number of outside 
drinkers and the area in which they can drink.  These businesses have been in the area for years and are still 
thriving. We think these numbers are fair and are reflective of the very quiet, residential nature of the street. 
However, we do see there may be a compromise to allow a slightly larger number of people to drink outside 
but this would need to be achieved by designating a specific area for drinking with ropes/barriers and strict 
control of customers encroaching on non-designated spaces. Mr Lonsdale suggested roping off an area of 
Woodbridge Street opposite the pub. This might be workable but our concern would be that he takes this 
area and then does nothing to stop customers drinking on all the other surrounding pavements and 
roadways thereby exacerbating not reducing the noise and over-crowding issues. 

We would also particularly support the recommended licence condition that stops tables being placed 
directly next to . However, the area freed up would need to be out of bounds for customer use 
otherwise the situation will be made worse for us if people are allowed to stand in the area. 

Page 364



We would also be happy for an acoustic sound assessment to made in our property (particularly given the 
change we have witnessed in noise levels in our home) but we would like this to be independent and not 
controlled by Mr Lonsdale. The testing period should be over a reasonable period of time and carried on a 
sample of nights. 

Mr Lonsdale was also concerned that closing the Sekforde Street side door would represent a fire risk. We 
are not experts and nor is he, so again we think an independent assessment should be made.  At the same 
time, the first floor should be assessed for fire risk as we were very concerned by the large number of 
customers allowed in that room for football screenings with the room so full at times customers were sitting 
on the open window ledges. 

We also believe that any restrictions on the licence need to be formalised, since Mr Lonsdale has already 
shown that voluntary agreements are often ignored (there is no dedicated doorman on Thursday and Friday 
nights as promised to the council panel meeting, and he has also said to the neighbours that he will get his 
customers in by 10pm, which has also never happened). We can also illustrate this with examples from his 
correspondence with neighbours when securing planning for the pub, regarding the first floor function room. 
He first stated that “The lease I have at present expressly prohibits any use of the first floor for anything 
other than residential use… to have a pub on three levels would mean it would have to be much busier to 
produce the revenue to pay the higher rent the larger space would command. I am not sure that would be 
welcome”, which was sent to us on 9th April 2014. Then on 3rd May 2016 he sent an email stating that he 
would allow “the first floor to be used from time to time for private and public meetings”. This is obviously 
not now the case, and the space is used frequently for many events such as the weekly pub quiz, and 
showing the World Cup matches, as well as we believe for general overspill from the ground floor. The 
website also advertises this space for parties and other events. 

We do hope that the licence review process can help us and our neighbours restore quiet enjoyment of our 
homes again. We are disappointed that we couldn’t resolve this issue with Mr Lonsdale directly but as we 
have demonstrated above and, as was evident during the public meeting, we need formal intervention from 
the Council and imposition of licence restrictions to help restore the previously good co-existence between 
the pub and residents in the street. 

Kind Regards 

Page 365



1

Jones, Carol

From: Smedley, Louise
Sent: 05 October 2018 15:26
To: Licensing
Subject: RE: Premises Licence Review: Sekforde Arms, 34 Sekforde Street, Islington, London, 

EC1R 0HA.

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Good Afternoon, 

Trading Standards would like to make a representation for this one please. Challenge 25 does not appear to be 
addressed within the existing conditions. We would therefore like get the Challenge 25 condition added on to the 
licence if possible. 

Thanks. 

Regards,  

Louise Smedley 
Senior Trading Standards Officer 
Trading Standards  
Islington Council 
222 Upper Street 
London  
N1 1XR 
Tel: 0207 527 2235 
Mobile: 07803 576465 
Email: Louise.Smedley@islington.gov.uk 
Secure email: Louise.Smedley@islington.gcsx.gov.uk 

Alternative contact: 
Trading Standards Duty Officer: 0207 527 4028 
Trading.Standards@islington.gov.uk 

Website: www.islington.gov.uk/tradingstandards 

From: Lewis, Eleanor  
Sent: 03 October 2018 10:56 
To: 

Cc: Lane, Terrie ; Montanez‐Dodson, Monty ; Ford, Andrew ; Jones, Carol  
Subject: Premises Licence Review: Sekforde Arms, 34 Sekforde Street, Islington, London, EC1R 0HA. 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

We have received the attached application for a Premises Licence (Review):  

Rep 29

Page 366



2

Licence Holder: Mr David Lonsdale, Leeds Court, 58, 201 St John Street, Islington, London, EC1V 
4LZ. 

Premises Name: Sekforde Arms, 

Address: 34 Sekforde Street, Islington, London, EC1R 0HA. 

Application received: 03/10/2018 

Last date for representations: 31/10/2018 

Reference: WK/180032807 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s): 

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The prevention of public nuisance

Regards, 

Technical Support Officer 
Licensing Team 
Public Protection Division 
Environment & Regeneration 
Islington Council 
3rd Floor, 222 Upper Street, London, N1 1XR 
Tel: 020 7527 3031 

e-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

website: www.islington.gov.uk 

The information contained in this E-Mail may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000. Unless the information is legally exempt from disclosure, the confidentiality 
of this E-Mail and your reply cannot be guaranteed.  

The information in this message is confidential and may be legally privileged. It is intended solely 
for the addressee. Access to this message by any other person is not permitted. If you are not the 
intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken or omitted to be taken 
in reliance on it, is prohibited and may be unlawful. 

Please help save resources by not printing this e-mail if you can avoid it, and by using recycled paper. 

Page 367



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 00:14
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: The Sekforde Arms Licence Review

 30 October 2018 

Dear Licensing, 

Review of the premises licence for The Sekforde Arms 

 In response to your notice concerning your intention to review the premises licence for The Sekforde Arms, I writing 
to request that you take the following comments into consideration. 

 I have lived with my family   The Sekforde Arms since 2003. 
My   husband lived  the Sekforde Arms from 1990 to 2006. 
Two of my three daughters were born in our home   and all three have lived in Sekforde Street all 
their lives.  Until the Sekforde Arms re‐opened in December 2017, we, as a family, never had any cause to complain 
concerning the conduct of the management, the behavior of the clientele or noise levels at the Sekforde Arms. 
Indeed the pub had an established position within the local community and the relationship between the publicans 
and the residents of the street was positive. 

 Since December 2017, myself, and my family have experienced stressful interactions with the clientele of the 
Sekforde Arms and found the management ineffectual and unwilling to take action. 

Anti Social Behaviour 

 In all the time that my husband and myself have been residents of Sekforde Street, we had never experienced 
criminal damage to or vandalism of my property.  This all changed on the night of Friday 27 July.  I was going upstairs 
when I heard a lot of noise on my doorstep.  I opened the door to find 5 men right in front of me on my doorstep 
with one climbing the railings to put a shoe inside the lamp that is over the front door 12 ft off the ground, others 
were standing in the street shouting and encouraging the event. 

 I was so frightened.  I requested that they should leave my doorstep, this was greeted with mirth and one of the 
party was filming the vandalism stated that they did not think anyone was in the house. 
Fortunately my eldest daughter repeated the request that they should leave my doorstep and when they did not, 
she went over to the pub. 
The response of the manager (Harry Smith), was to state ‘what do you expect me to do it about it.’  The group finally 
retreated to the middle of the road and I rang for the Police.  This took time as I was so shaken that it was difficult to 
use my mobile phone (due to the side effects of my past chemotherapy treatment).  My daughter watched as Harry 
Smith emerged and took the group back into the pub and continued to serve them.  The very same people still 

Rep 30

Page 368



2

frequent the Sekforde Arms and are continually seated at the benches watching the house.  As a widow this is 
extremely frightening. 

Lack of control of Clientele 

Drinkers frequently crossing the street to use my front door step as a phone booth whilst having a drink in hand, 
clientele of the Sekforde Arms using my railings as a bicycle park rather than the official bicycle rails on Wood bridge 
street, the depositing of empty glasses on my front door step have at regular intervals occurred. 

Noise levels 

Noise levels have been such that during the hot summer I have been unable to have any of the windows in the front 
of the house open. The noise is at a consistent loud level when an event is underway at The Sekforde, whether it be 
on the first floor with all the windows open or on the ground floor with the use of microphones.  Any approach to 
control by the staff is erratic and loud noise erupts in bursts through out the evening.  Late night 10:00 onwards, 
groups who prefer to stand outside or drinkers who come outside to smoke become consistently louder.  Those 
leaving the Sekforde Arms later do not heed the rather small notices (erratically displayed) concerning noise levels 
and it is apparent that no member of staff takes the responsibility to ensure quieter exiting and dispersement of the 
clientele. 

The quiz night on Wednesday night has employed a quiz master who enjoys the use of a microphone.  At times the 
questions – particularly the music round may be answered whilst sitting in my kitchen with the window shut.  I do 
not wish to hear the groans as the teams do not get a question.  This is most intrusive and disruptive to family life. 

Thursday and Friday nights are particularly busy and the level of noise from the drinkers who choose to stand 
outside is very intrusive. 

Blocking of the pavement 

Thursday and Friday are trading nights particularly busy for the Sekforde Arms.  The clientele are not managed and 
frequently block the pavements and move further down the street – or even across the street.  This is not managed 
at all by the staff at the Sekforde Arms. 
Residents have to resort to pushing through the crowds or indeed walking in an increasingly busy road as Sekforde 
Street is used as a shortcut to by‐pass the traffic lights at the junction of Clerkenwell Road and St John Street. 

Paragraph 38 

 I was surprised to read the comments in paragraph 38 of Mr Lonsdale’s representation where he reports that I had 
called the ASB team at 
22:40 and that the report was unsubstantiated.  There is no date attached to complaint, and so I am unable to clarify 
further but wish to state that I have never made a report to the ASB team that was unjustified. 

Paragraph 44 

Page 369



3

 I was surprised to read the statement that the shoe arrived in the lantern of my house through accuracy of throwing 
by a young woman. 
This is a misrepresentation of the event. 

The Proposed conditions 

 My family and I are grateful to Islington’s Noise Pollution Team for filing this application to review The Sekforde 
Arms licence in an effort to add noise conditions to improve the residential/commercial balance in the area 
surrounding the pub. 

 We fully support the conditions proposed.  In addition we would request that the Licensing Sub Committee would 
also consider that any outside drinking should be cleared of customers by 22:00 rather than 22:30.  This would then 
standardize the condition in line with the other pubs in the area.  The outside furniture would also be required to be 
taken out of use and disabled by 22:00 rather than 22:30 as with other pubs in the area. 

With regard to the placement of the tables and chairs and A boards, they should be placed in such a way as to allow 
two pedestrians to pass by thus stopping the necessity to walk in the road. 

 We thank the Licensing sub committee for your time in considering our concerns. 

 Yours sincerely 

Page 370



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 20:43
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: The Sekforde public House

Dear Carol 

I write concerning the review of the licence of the Sekforde.  

I attended the recent meeting held at the Sekforde and spoke on one or two occasions. Unfortunately, I 
was interrupted by Mr Londsdale, so I express my views to you.  

I have lived in Sekforde Street for  30 years. I have seen many changes in local pubs in the area, some 
good and some not so good.  

I have experienced issues with the Peasant,  which were,  in the most addressed without resistance. It is a 
matter of courtesy and respect for local residents to take note of concerns that are raised.  

I can't say this is the case for Mr Londsdale. I find him arrogant and patronising. He's only concern is 
making money and his own reputation and he is full of his own self importance. We had a lecture on the 
history of the Sekforde, and even his own family portfolio (yawn). This has no relevance to the local 
community,  and the issues that have led to this review of the licence.  

As I stated in the meeting, I have absolutely no objection to a public house in Sekforde Street. The 
refurbishment of the building is impressive and fits well with the beautiful and traditional street. However, 
this is spoilt by the lack of control, and attention to the behaviour of the patrons. I live at the  of the 
street, and have on many evenings had to walk outside to see where all the noise is coming from. I walk 

 to the park regularly, and my route to and from work is past the pub. I have passed many times and 
have seen people sitting on the 1st floor window sills, loud music and screeching, very drunk patrons 
shouting,  and overspill into the road. 

Whilst I agree that it would be a challenge to place a restriction of 20 people outside in the summer, I see 
no reason why there cannot be regulated control. This is not for his bar staff to do, but a person to 
be  employed for this purpose only.  

I have been in many pubs where this is the norm and am surprised why Mr Londsdale finds this suggestion 
so offensive. He indicated that it portrays a negative image. I don't agree. It sends out a message to 
patrons that the establishment takes very seriously its  responsibility to not only the health and safety  of its 
patrons, but also to local residents.  

The Sekforde is located in a residential street. The street has a mixture of private owners,   council and 
private tenants. I for one was not invited to the opening of the Sekforde when it was taken on by Mr 
Londsdale. Neither was my neighbour. Apprently over 200 people attended the opening,  so we were 
informed in the meeting. It does feel as if the the target clients are not local residents. The fact that so 
many issues and complaints have arisen will further distance the local residents. Mr Londsdale really 
needs to put his pride to one side and listen to the frustrations of those residents affected the most.  

I do hope that Mr Londsdale will be a gentleman, swallow his pride and be a bit more neighbourly. 

Kind regards 

Rep 31

Page 371



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 12:46
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi, 

I have recently learned that you are reviewing the licensing of The Sekforde pub in Clerkenwell and would 
like to voice my vehement opposition to the complaints leading to these reviews.  

My experience of the Sekforde is of a quiet, respectful clientele who do not go to the pub to binge drink, 
but to enjoy its warm and homely setting and its great service. The pub hosts many nights which I feel are 
important to the cultural enrichment of an area which is otherwise lacking somewhat, and I find it very 
hard to believe that these claims regarding noise have much substance. The Sekforde is socially conscious, 
it provides a platform for entertainment which would otherwise struggle to find a platform, and 
encourages intellectual and creative prowess which is invaluable to the community. It would be a 
devastating loss to the community were it to be closed. 

Yours faithfully, 

Rep 32Appendix 4

Page 372



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 10:04
To: Licensing
Subject: A note in favour of the Sekforde Arms

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Sir or Madam, 

I write to you in the context of the dispute about the pub The Sekforde Arms on 34 Sekforde Street. I have 
read that there has been a great deal of debate and complaints about this pub, and I wanted to write to you in 
defence of the pub to prevent its possible forced closing. My name is  and I am one of 
the Sekforde Trust scholars - one of the students who about a year ago - received a scholarship funded by 
the Sekforde Trust, to pursue my Masters in Anthropology. David Lonsdale, the owner of the pub and 
founder of the trust, upon consideration of my written work and personal encounter, granted me money 
without which my masters degree would have been very difficult to pursue for me. The money granted to 
Sekforde Trust scholars in the future will come directly from the earnings of the pub, meaning that this 
place, is an economically (and to a great extent, environmentally) self-sustainable organisation that enables 
further education to those who otherwise would struggle greatly. Closing the pub would therefore implicitly 
bring to an end a fantastic mechanism of furthering education for those who would otherwise struggle.  

Furthermore, since its opening, I have been to this pub many times, and have found it a wonderful 
environment. The people frequenting the pub seem to me to come from a large array of different 
backgrounds, meaning that this establishment presents a center for discussion and meeting. Furthermore, the 
pub has deliberately set out to be a center for conversation and debate, inviting speakers with an in-depth 
knowledge of what they are presenting, to share opinions and present questions, so as to further 
conversation. This, I believe, is not something to be ignored in a time where differences of opinion are 
increasingly splitting people down lines of socio-economic origin, and obliterating conversation and 
cooperation.  

It would be a great loss for the borough of Islington to see the Sekforde Arms shutting, as it is an 
establishment that in its direct actions and its environment furthers conversation, and education in many 
senses of the term. I hope that you will take these points into consideration when making a decision about 
how to proceed in the debates surrounding this pub. 

Yours Sincerely, 

Rep 33

Page 373



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 14:12
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde pub license renew

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

To Whom it may concern,  

I have recently heard of the license being under review for The Sekforde pub. I would like to register my support for 
the renewing of their license. 

I regularly frequent the pub, whether it be for their wonderful pub quizzes or for a causal drink with my colleagues 
after work. I believe it would be a great loss to the area if it were to close‐ there isn’t a pub quite like it in 
surrounding parts.  

It is also worth noting that all staff that work there have been nothing short of fantastic. 

Kind Regards,  

Rep 34

Page 374



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 16:02
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde Pub

To the Licensing at Islington council.  

I,   am writing this email in the devastating news that I hear The Sekforde Pub is having a review of its 
licence due to a number of complaints from local residents.  
I live a few roads away and can understand the frustration from people who live nearby noisy establishments.  
The block I live in, is opposite some  , that every few minutes I hear a   against a 
metal fence and I have a   under my block which has constant deliveries. (I live on  ). With this, I 
can’t do much about. But given that I live in central London, Zone 1, I appreciate that it will be noisy from time to 
time.  
Much like the local neighbours who live beside a pub in zone 1. They need to appreciate that the pub will generate 
noise from customers. Albeit that the noise can be controlled by the pub to a better degree. The pub culture is in 
British hearts and the closing of the much beloved Sekforde Pub is heart breaking.  

Myself and my partner often go there on a weekend, when it is very quiet and few people reside inside.  
We have both expressed our love of the refurbishment and wish to use the pub and rooms as a wedding venue (for 
when the time comes in a year or two).  

The Sekforde recently help a meeting evening for people to show their support. I was unable to attend as I was out 
of the country.  

This email is my protest.  
I am deeply saddened by the news of a licence review of such a fine pub, when for so long it sat empty and unused. 

I again re‐iterate the neighbours living beside a pub in central London. If someone desires a quieter life, might I 
suggest they move elsewhere, not the glorious and charming pub that is The Sekforde.  

Please keep me updated on any news regarding the forthcomings of the Sekforde Pub and licensing review.  

Yours sincerely  

Sent from my iPhone 

Rep 35

Page 375



From: 
Sent: 11 October 2018 17:49 
To: 
Subject: Re; The Sekforde  

Hi  ,  

Many thanks for your letter through my door, I live at number  . I fully rate the pub and 
all that it has done for the community‐ This summer was lovely coming to the pub and have made friends 
with a few of the bar staff. 

Rep 36 

Page 376



2

I dont mind the noise and think it looks better than it did before with its revamp! 
I would not mind being part of the review/writing something accordingly, and my vote will be to keep it 
just as it is as it is wonderful! 

Best wishes, 

‐‐ 

The linked image cannot be displayed.  The file may have been moved, renamed, or deleted. Verify that the link points to the correct file and location.

Page 377



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 17:38
To: Licensing
Subject: ENF/2018/319 - SEKFORDE ARMS, 34 SEKFORDE STREET, EC1R 0HA - THE LICENCE 

REVIEW OF THE SEKFORD ARMS ON 28TH NOVEMBER 2018

Dear Licencing committee 

RE: ENF/2018/319 ‐ SEKFORDE ARMS, 34 SEKFORDE STREET, EC1R 0HA 

Wonderfully refurbished pub with traditional style as well really good food that is reasonably 
priced. 
Not noisy and and well run by the staff. 

Regards 

Rep 37 

Page 378



Formal Statement in Support of the Sekforde Arms Pub, WC1 

Islington Council Licensing Review
222 Upper St, London N1 1XR 

Islington Council 

To whom it may concern, 

This is a formal statement in support of the Sekforde Arms Pub EC1. My name is  I’m a long term 

resident of Islington, a recipient of the Sekforde Scholarship, and current Masters student at City University. 

I received my scholarship from David Londsdale and the Sekforde House Trust in December 2017. Since then I have 

attended the pub on numerous occasions for events and as a customer. Having worked extensively in the pub industry 

for the last eight years I am confident that I can accurately provide evidence concerning the pub management, social 

impact, economic and environmental sustainability of the establishment.  

The staff and manager at the Sekforde are incredibly attentive and passionate with their duties, and David’s current 

team are friendly and professional in the way they operate. In comparison to other local pubs that I have worked and 

drank in the immediate local area, I can say honestly that they perform as well, if not better in regards to these 

points. For instance, on one occasion that I attended the pub one member of staff, after having received a complaint 

about food from the restaurant, said customers concerns were addressed immediately, in a prompt and attentive 

manner. From my understanding, the Sekforde staff, all good people, go over and above what is required of 

customers service.  

With regards to the running of the pub, there is, in my experience, a friendly and amicable atmosphere, which the 

management have worked very hard to create. There have been no instances of violence at the pub and despite the 

area being a known hotspot for snatch and grabs and general theft, the Sekforde is a safe and welcoming place for 

community members to gather. Various events, debates and discussion are organised at the Sekforde - always with 

a strong, positive social aspect and open for all to attend.  

The green credentials that the pub now boasts are also a rarity among business developments in London – and where 

the Borough claims to support ‘green’ business and initiatives, they have a vested interest in ensuring that the 

environmental and economic integrity of the pub is maintained. On this basis, I would strongly urge the Council to 

reconsider any sanctions or measures that jeopardise the economic, environmental and socially progressive elements 

of the Sekforde Arms. Not only would they be damaging to the pub as a business, but they would be objectively and 

measurably damaging to the local community, economy and the environment. 

Lastly, the Sekforde House Trust and the Scholarship Program is a life-changing award that supports struggling 

students in reaching their full potential. Where society and circumstance have led to less than ‘ideal’ circumstances 

for reaching one’s full academic talent, David Lonsdale has created a sustainable project that seeks to redress this 

imbalance. Having experienced the positives and negatives of Islington Council – from the point of view of a young 

person, a resident, a student and a professional, I can whole-heartedly say that a huge mistake would be made in 

damaging and attacking a community establishment that is and increasingly continues to contribute positively to 

local society.   

Sincerely, 

 Long Time Islington Resident 

Rep 38

Page 379



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 28 October 2018 18:36
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: The Sekforde pub

Dear Carol, 

I am writing to you as a resident of  , regarding The Sekforde (Arms) pub. 

The pub has caused me and my partner zero nuisance in terms of noise or anti‐social behaviour. 

What it has provided is: 
   ‐ a social hub for the street; 
   ‐ a source of light vibrancy in an area where there is relatively little to do on the weekend; 
   ‐ a nice place to eat and drink meals with family; 
   ‐ an upmarket alternative to some of the rougher pubs in the area; and 
   ‐ a source of light and eyes at night for the residents at my building, making the street seem safer. 

I urge you not to revoke the licence of The Sekforde, the safety and enjoyment of the residents of Sekforde Street is 
at stake. 

Yours sincerely, 

Rep 39

Page 380



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 10:23
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde pub - 34 Sekforde St, Clerkenwell, London EC1R 0HA

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

To whom it may concern, 

I, along with my work colleagues as members of the local community are concerned that there is a risk the Sekforde 
pub’s licence could be revoked, which we would object to. 

The Sekforde (previously Sekforde Arms) has been our local pub for many years, long before the recent 
refurbishment. It was popular then and I’m very pleased that it is still popular now. 

I fully support the pub to be retained as a pub, it is a valuable asset to the community area and essential to retain 
the balance of placemaking in the area for those who live and work nearby. 

Kind regards, 

Rep 40

Page 381



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 10:33
To: Licensing
Subject: ENF/2018/319 - SEKFORDE ARMS, 34 SEKFORDE STREET, EC1R 0HA  - THE 

LICENCE REVIEW OF THE SEKFORD ARMS ON 28TH NOVEMBER 2018

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Licencing committee 

RE: ENF/2018/319 ‐ SEKFORDE ARMS, 34 SEKFORDE STREET, EC1R 0HA 

I write to you as the principal and founding architect of   responsible for the full refurbishment 
and extension of The Sekforde 
It fills me with great sadness that this pub which has been in existence since 1829 built by John Bewley and is now 
subjected to this unreasonable level of scrutiny  
John Bewley not only built it but owned it, lived in it and ran it as a pub, much as David Lonsdale does today. 
In April of this year the Sekforde won two prestigious awards from The Royal Institute of British Architects ‐ One was 
for outstanding architecture the other was for sustainability. 

The neighbourhood has changed and the pub has been adapted to cater for this change 
People who move into a neighbourhood where a pub exists should not in my view have the right to close it 
particularly when it is providing such a valuable service to bot the working and residential community 
Pubs are an important neighbourhood and civic facility – too many have been lost in London through poor 
management and lack of investment  
The Sekforde does not suffer from either of those items. 

In a recent civic trust committee visit The Sekforde was applauded by the chair as being one of the most civic 
projects he had visited  
I have received many emails and kind remarks form those that live and work nearby all of whom seem now to enjoy 
the pub so much more than before it was refurbished 
In the past it had been known as a ‘man’s boozer’ it is now an all‐inclusive and very popular quiet neighbourhood 
pub  
It is a Great pub and is on the RIBA register of great British buildings to visit 2018  

I personally have given guided tours by popular demand as so many people are interested to see such an exemplary 
piece of pub work  
It is our first ever pub refurbishment and one we are very proud of ‐ as a practice we work on many grade 2 and 
grade 1 listed buildings  
We were hired because of our expertise in this field and all modern appliances have been discretely incorporated 
within the fabric of a traditionally constructed building  

This is a remarkable feat and brings the pub into the 21st century for use for another 100 years  
We have created two great new rooms the ballroom on the first floor for functions and lectures and the basement 
room a miserable beer cellar  
New toilets have been provided in the basement which a vast improvement on those previously offered 

A wonderful modern kitchen provides good and healthy food for the benefit of all  
The history of the pub and its fabric represents a Great story, one which the present owner is very proud of and 
operates in a very personable manner  

Rep 41

Page 382



2

David Lonsdale is a sensitive and thoughtful man who has always responded quickly and immediately to any issues 
that may have arisen from the pub or indeed nearby it  

In point of fact David resides at the pub and so has a very personal interest in every aspect of the pub and its 
successful contribution to the neighbourhood 
The pub is simply not noisy, but well enjoyed an responsibly managed, the pub is extremely well run by Harry the 
manager.  
Each time I have visited there have not been any complaints and the pub seems pleasant and quietly enjoyed. 

A new guest house has been built on the on Woodbridge street – this has proven extremely popular with tourists 
staying regularly  
As far as I know there have never been complaints made by those visitors as they know and appreciate the 
circumstances in which they stay  
The pub was closed for the first time since it was opened in 1829 for the construction works  
This may have made some residents, perhaps also new residents more aware of the general hubbub of a pub  
But this does not justify closure or unreasonable changes being imposed upon reopening  

I feel this review is simply not justified, and seems to have been generated by a minority view which may or may not 
be articulate, and their views do not take into account the thoughts and feelings of the vast majority ‐ who are so 
pleased and happy with the pub now restored. 
I think this review is a wicked and cruel imposition on a responsible member of the community who did not have to 
renovate and improve the pub but did so as he thought fit  
David Lonsdale should be applauded by the council and supported in his efforts to make a valuable community 
resource  

An apology is owed for this disgraceful torture of David Lonsdale imposed by a minority group. 

Yours sincerely, 

Page 383



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 17:10
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde Arms review
Attachments: 2018-10-25 15.02.09.jpg

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

We are neighbours of the Sekforde, the pub on the junction of Sekforde Street and Woodbridge Street, EC1R which, 
we understand, is having its licence reviewed. We are both in our sixties, and have lived in the area for nine years. 

We sincerely hope that the Sekforde's licence WILL be renewed, and that a minimal number of, if any, restrictions, 
will be placed on it. 

We are not regulars of the pub, but have probably been customers on about ten occasions since it reopened. We 
were glad to see that, after the closing of the old Sekforde Arms, its replacement was not a gastro‐pub, or an outlet 
which was part of a chain, or indeed unaffordable housing. Instead, the new owner, David Lonsdale, lovingly 
restored the old building into an eco‐friendly building, in keeping both with the area and with the previous Sekforde 
Arms. For most of the week it is a quiet local pub, offering good beer, nice food, quiet conversation and , moreover, 
a place where women feel safe thanks, partly, to the sprucing up of the place, the absence of both noisy music and 
men propping up the bar evening after evening‐‐ and the civilising presence of the quietly gregarious owner, David 
Lonsdale, together with his equally polite and friendly staff. 

We understand that some residents have raised objections and wish the pub's licence not to continue or to be 
renewed with onerous conditions which would probably cause it to go out of business, and be replaced goodness 
knows what. We live at the end of   nearest to the pub, and can honestly say that we have never 
been disturbed by noise or anti‐social behaviour. On a Thursday or Friday evening, when we understand that most 
of the incidents causing complaints are alleged to have occurred, it is true that the pub is busy. For example, 
customers drink on the large pavement space on Woodbridge Street, but on no occasion when we have walked past 
the pub on summer evenings on Thursday or Friday have we felt in any way inconvenienced or harassed; the 
customers have made room for us and all has been friendly. 

We have not been aware of the incidents described by Sekforde Street residents, but have no reason to doubt that 
they happened; the owner assures us that they were immediately dealt with and the culprits not allowed back into 
the pub. 
In order for such a pub to survive, it needs the business of Thursday and Friday evenings. The quiet conditions 
operating for the vast majority of time would not be possible were it not for these two evenings, as the pub would 
simply have to close. Indeed, during the prolonged good weather that we have all enjoyed this year, there has been 
more noise from garden parties, barbecues, etc, than from the pub. People staggering home from nights out (not 
from the Sekforde) at 11, 12, 1, 2 o'clock at night, have made far more noise than any from the Sekforde. Just walk 
past any local pub on busy nights to know what noise is like‐ eg The Crown on Clerkenwell Green 

When we moved in, the Sekforde Arms was quite lively, and occasionally noisy, but in its final years as it declined 
there was no noise, principally because there were very few customers. Indeed it was unusual to see it open at 
weekends. We would prefer a pub which was quiet for most of the time (and to repeat, as far as we are concerned, 
we are not disturbed in the busy times) than no pub at all, which is at least an attempt to engender a community 
spirit and get people out from evenings spent watching various electronic devises.  

Rep 42

Page 384



2

It may be that a notice such as the one (attached) outside the Island Queen pub, in Noel Road, Islington, might be 
necessary. Noel Road is, in my view, quieter than Sekforde Street, and has a school immediately opposite, but their 
licence has presumable been renewed. 

We hope that you will see fit to renew the Sekforde's licence and ensure that a local amenity is able to operate as its 
owner intends, as part of the community and contributing to the ambiance of a lovely area. 

Page 385



Page 386



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 28 October 2018 16:10
To: Licensing
Subject: In support of the Sekforde.

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Good afternoon. 

It has come to my attention that the license for the Sekforde (previously known as the Sekforde 
Arms) is under review. 

I am therefore writing to strongly support this wonderful pub that has become such a brilliant 
community asset within only months of reopening. 

The Sekforde has been beautifully restored into both a wonderful evocation of Clerkenwell's 
past and also what should be an important place for the area's future. It is a proper old 
fashioned back-street pub. Atmospheric, but not too busy and certainly not noisy. 

I have met the owner Harry on occasion (it's great that he is such a visible and welcoming 
presence) and I think he's doing a great job of running the place. 

If anything were to happen to threaten the license of this wonderful pub, it would be an 
absolute travesty, not just for the local community of Clerkenwell or even Islington but for 
London as a whole. 

Sincerely, 

Rep 43

Page 387



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 09:22
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde Arms pub

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi there, 

I have heard that the license for the Sekforde Arms pub in Clerkenwell is being reviewed. I would like to 
show my support to the pub. It is a great pub with an even greater story! It would be a real shame if the 
license was revoked. 

Kind regards, 

Rep 44

Page 388



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 11:24
To: Licensing

31 October 2018. 
Licensing Department. 
London Borough of Islington. 
SEKFORDE ARMS, SEKFORDE STREET, EC1R 0HA. 
Dear Sirs, 
For over forty years I have campaigned for the protection and correct repair and creative reuse of London’s rich stock of 
historic buildings. I have served on the Executive Committee of the Georgian Group, on the Architectural Panel of the 
National Trust and am a founder Trustee of the Spitalfields Historic Buildings Trust. 
Over thirty years ago I worked with historian Mark Girouard on a definitive publication entitled the Victorian Pub. Since 
then I have taken a keen interest in this most convivial and fascinating building type, not just as a user but also as a 
historian and conservationist. The architectural and social history of London’s pubs is rich and complex and, as is well‐
known, during the last decade, the pub has – for various reasons – become an endangered species with many good and 
early examples closing, generally for conversion to other uses. 
So you can image my delight when the Sekforde Arms – a relatively early example – was well repaired and, it seemed, 
guaranteed a safe future as a London pub in the finest tradition of the institution, offering not only good drink and food 
and a friendly atmosphere but also a series of stimulating events. The management if the pub evidently intended to 
nourish not just the senses but also to stimulate the mind through a programme of talks calculated to make a 
contribution to some of the more important debates of the times.  
So you can image my dismay when I was told that the Sekforde Arms –only just reborn in such spectacular manner – 
might be forced to close following objections to its existence from a small number of neighbours. I am not informed in any 
detail about the nature of the complaints so do not propose to respond to them. I assume most have to do with noise. 
Pubs are, of course, by their nature as convivial places social gathering, generally more noisy than private houses. But in 
my experience of using the Sekforde Arms it is far less noisy than many London pubs set among terraces in largely 
domestic use. So I am baffled by the true nature of the complaint. All I can observe is that there has been a public house 
on the site (indeed in the existing building) for around 190 years, it has loyally served the local and London community for 
much of that time and continues to do so. Surely now, when so many fine London pubs are closing, the renaissance of a 
pub should be celebrated – and the institution protected – rather than being harassed.  
Public houses are an immensely important part of London’s history and its life and it is our duty as Londoners to protect 
those that survive and to encourage all that want to maintain them as going‐concert and who want to bring dormant 
examples back to life. A little extra street noise in the evening hours has not bothered most Londoners in the past and is 
surely not too heavy a price to pay for the preservation of one of London’s great living institution. If an individual does not 
agree then surely one has to wonder why that individual decided to live near a pub and observe that if such a neighbour 
finds a pub intolerable then surely the thoughtful and elegant action is to move rather than –in seemingly selfish manner 
– attempt to destroy and institution appreciated by many.
So, in conclusion, I fully support the continuing existence of the Sekforde Arms and object to the actions of those who
want to suppress it.
Yours sincerely.

Rep 45 

Page 389



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 13:39
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde Arms, Clerkenwell

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

To Whom it May Concern 

I understand that the licensing for the above premises is under review. 

Having visited the pub on a number of occasions I’d like to state my support for the venue to remain in operation. 
Having been beautifully restored, following years of neglect, it is now a wonderful community hub, attracting visitors 
from the local neighbourhood and beyond.  

Our communities are losing places to meet, including traditional pubs, at an alarming rate and this loss is damaging 
to our social heritage and community infrastructure.  

The Sekforde Arms is a well run, sustainably operated community venue and there is no justifiable reason for its 
licence to be reviewed. 

Kind regards, 

Rep 46 

Page 390



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 09:43
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde - licence review

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Sirs,  

I have heard the news that Sekforde is facing some noise complaints and because of this I am writing to you. 

This is a much loved pub, myself and my work colleagues frequently go there for things that we seldom find in other 
such pubs. The history, the friendly atmosphere and David Lonsdale's involvement with the cultural community. The 
pub has been there for more than 170 years, and it seems recently has become even more successful and as a result 
of this, more people want to enjoy it - it would be a great loss to the community to see this pub closing.  

I only hope that my thoughts are taken into consideration during the licence review for Sekforde.  

Best regards,  

Rep 47 

Page 391



Rep 48 

Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 13:34
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Sir 

I am writing following on from learning that the licence for The Sekforde is up for review. The building is a 
fantastic restoration of a beautiful building back to its original purpose. It would be a enormous shame for 
their licence to be removed. When we were there the noise was contained within the pub. I write in support 
of The Sekforde retaining is licence 

The linked image cannot be displayed.  The file may have been moved, renamed, or deleted. Verify that the link points to the correct file and location.

Rep 49

Page 395



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 19:20
To: Licensing
Subject: Support for the Sekforde Arms

FAO licence review committee of the Sekforde Arms, Islington 

Statement from  , recipient of Sekforde Scholarship 2017:  

Dear Sirs, I am writing to express my support for the Sekforde Arms in Islington, and my 
shock and the proposed licensing restrictions.  

Whilst studying Classical Singing and Music at City University, just around the corner from 
the Sekforde, I confess I never ventured down Sekforde Street until I saw a newspaper 
cutting in November 2017 for The Sekforde Trust, and that they were offering 5 
scholarships for people living in Islington, or studying at UCL. 

Having moved to London to study, the first two years of my degree, were to put it bluntly, 
the most difficult time of my life. My first year, it seemed as if I was working all the time, 
just to bring in enough money to cover my rent, and bills. My grades suffered, as I was 
physically and emotionally exhausted, and moreover, financial worries were constantly at 
the forefront of my mind. Anyone who has studied singing or knows anything about opera 
singing specifically, will know that it is impossible to sing an aria of any kind, when you are 
not getting enough sleep, and your mental health is suffering.  

At this time, I was also given a place at the 2017 Glyndebourne Academy, and whilst my 
focus should have been on that incredible opportunity, I was often emailing trusts and 
foundations well in the night, whist I was at Glyndebourne Opera House for the course.  

I was awarded the maximum amount of student loans from the Welsh Government due to 
my Mother's low income, but nothing can prepare you, for the shock of London housing 
prices; I moved three times during my 4 years in London, as my landlords would always 
increase the rent when the contract was up for renewal, and in my final 18 months living in 
Islington, the first 8 I was either breaking even before food and travel costs or constantly 
overdrawn.  

I remember visiting The Sekforde for my interview for the Sekforde Scholarship, it was a 
building site at the time, and there was snow on the ground. There were several other 
candidates waiting, and we were all curious as to what was going on at the pub... 

I never expected to be awarded the scholarship, but it was one of the best moments of my 
life when David called me to tell me the news. I still remember it as if it were yesterday, 
being in Caledonian Road Post Office and abandoning all my letters and welling up with the 
sheer joy, relief and gratitude outside on the pavement. 

Rep 50

Page 396



2

The scholarship, truly, saved me. It meant I had my final 6 months of rent and bills covered, 
food costs covered, and could dedicate those 6 months of my degree, to my education and 
what I came to London for in the first place, my singing. I subsequently achieved a first in 
my degree, and graduated this July. I am now studying a postgraduate Diploma at the Royal 
Welsh College of Music and Drama, and achieving a place here, and gaining my First, are 
two of my greatest achievements. 

David asked me to sing something at the opening night of the pub, (when the scholars 
would also receive their award,) and when I walked in I could not believe what the 
architects and builders had achieved. The pub was completely transformed, and looked 
absolutely beautiful. It is a real gem, and credit to the area.  

Having opened in December 2018, I cannot express my shock that local residents are 
complaining about The Sekforde, and 'noise' that it has brought to the area. As I understand 
it, it has been open since 1829, and only two years in that time was closed for 
refurbishment. What David and the others involved in re‐developing The Sekforde have 
done, is nothing other than extraordinary, not only for us scholars, but they have created 
employment for scores of people through the redevelopment, and those now working at 
the pub.  

Whilst I empathise with the residents if there is a noise issue, the pub has also always been 
there apart from the two year closure when it was being refurbished, therefore the 
residents would have known, it would re‐open as a working pub/restaurant, which will 
inevitably have the sound of customers coming and going, and people talking outside on 
occasion.  

I remember sitting outside the Sekforde having Sunday Lunch in June this year, and 
thinking, 'gosh imagine being lucky enough to live in one of these houses, somewhere as 
beautiful as Sekforde Street'. I can only dream of living in such a property, with a beautiful 
pub/restaurant on my doorstep in central London, that can only ever be a dream for me. As 
it is, I have returned to south wales to study due to the cost of living, and I ask the residents 
to really think, and consider what consequences their demands will have on the pub, its 
income, and subsequently, the staff that work there and potential future scholars such as 
myself.  

The scholarship changed my life, and the news of potential licence restrictions could not 
have shocked me more. The pub, is only an asset to the area, and the fact that these 
proposed restrictions could mean closure of the pub, is devastating, and completely 
unnecessary.  

David has only good intentions, he is an astonishing man, who has supported other 
struggling students such as myself, and if the pub were to close due to loss of earnings due 
to these licensing restrictions, causing not only the loss of jobs for those working there, it 
would mean he wouldn’t be able to create Sekforde Scholarships again, which could help 
change someones life, as it has mine. I would ask the council to really consider before 
imposing these licensing restrictions. Having lived in Islington, I think this case says more 
about the complainants, than the situation at the pub. Living near a pub you expect some 
noise, and in central London, a street with a pub that was silent would be frankly, odd.  

Page 397



3

I am happy to discuss this further via phone if anyone would like to, but I hope you 
understand why I feel so strongly in regards to the Sekforde, as a recipient of the Sekforde 
Scholarship. It changes lives. 

Yours sincerely,  

Page 398



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 16:27
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde Arms Pub

I want to express my support for the Sekforde Arms Pub and renewal of its present licence. I feel it is a 
tremendous shame that the pub could be sanctioned for being successful. It is not a noisy or aggressive pub 
like many of the pubs in the area. A small pub in a historic building can only survive if it can accommodate 
a large numer of clients on busy days in clement weather.  
It is a peaceful pub that has a huge social and environmental impact that is very inspiring. it's a fundamental 
part of the area and helps to build a strong sense of community amongst the majority of residents. It's an 
establishment that brings the community together rather than divides it.  
When residents settled around it, they will have done so in response to the charm of the area, much 
contributed to by this business. Please retain this charm and the uniqueness of the London streetscene there. 
It is desperately difficult to run a financially viable business of this type in London now. 

Please do contribute to helping such businesses fluorish. We will desperately miss them later if they are lost.

Rep 51

Page 399



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 12:07
To: Licensing
Subject: Fw: The Sekforde

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

To whomever this may conern, 

I am writing in support of The Sekforde pub on Sekforde street. It is my favourite pub and I drink there 
regularly. It has a wonderful atmosphere and brings a real sense of community to the area. The décor and 
service is impeccable and it's a lovely place to drink. 

It's a shame that there have been noise complaints as I do not consider it to be a loud pub. In fact the 
reason I go there is to deliberately have a quiet drink, away from the more raucous corporate pubs in 
central London. It's so nice to have an independent community pub rather than those horrible Greene 
Man and Nicholson franchises. The Sekforde clientele are always respectful and polite and it seems to 
mainly bring in a lovely crowd of local city workers. Perhaps the recent warm weather has encouraged 
people to drink outside a bit more? Otherwise I would say it is a lovely pub for a drink or two with friends 
and is a real highlight of the area.  

Many thanks, 

Rep 52

Page 400



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 13:39
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde Pub

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Sir or Madam, 

My name is   and I am both a regular patron and a previous employee of the Sekforde Pub. 

I am emailing to express my support for the Sekforde Pub in light of the upcoming licence review.  

I believe The Sekforde Pub is a great force for good and an establishment that should be held in pride by the 
Borough of Islington. The Sekforde Pub should be treated favourably in the upcoming licence review for the 
following three reasons: 

1. I do not think the complaints against the Sekforde Pub are warranted. During my time at the pub I have never
considered the noise to be excessively loud or worthy of complaint. Furthermore, I do not agree that the pavement
has ever been too crowded for someone to walk along. At times, pedestrians may have needed to say 'excuse me' to
the customers of the Sekforde in order to get past, but this is hardly an inconvenience worth complaining about.

I believe the neighbours of the pub have got used to living next to a silent pub whilst the Sekforde was being 
redeveloped over a period of two/three years prior to December 2017. Now that the Sekforde has re‐opened and 
customers are back and enjoying the pub, I believe it has come as a surprise to the neighbours that the pub is alive 
once again.  

2. I believe a change to the licence of The Sekforde would seriously threaten its survival and thus risk a halt to the
life changing impact that the pub is having for many people. So far, 5 university scholarships of £10,000 have been
provided to students in the Islington area to help them study at university. This year a further 10 scholarships of
£10,000 and another for £25,000 will be given out to prospective students in need of financial support.

Not only does The Sekforde serve to provide scholarships to people in financial need but it also provides great 
support to its employees. Employees of the pub earn at least £11.50 per hour (well above minimum wage for 
London) and are given the option of free accommodation. I am someone who has benefitted from both these things 
and it has allowed me to live and study in London. 

3. The Sekforde Pub is a great role model for other establishments in London. Not only does it donate all of its
profits to university scholarships and support its staff with generous wages and free accommodation; it is also an
eco‐friendly pub that derives much of its energy from the groundwater and has a ban on plastics, and it also hosts
regular debates and talks on important contemporary issues that are free and open to all.

To conclude, I believe that if ever there has been a pub worth protecting it is The Sekforde. The Sekforde is a a great 
jewel in Islington’s crown and is simply a victim of unwarranted complaints.  

Many thanks for your time, 

. 

Rep 53

Page 401



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 16:45
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde Pub

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear whom this may concern, 

I have lived in Islington my whole life. I enjoy everything about the borough. It is he best place to live in London. 

I have recently heard there has been complaints about The Sekforde pub in Clerkenwell. I am shocked as this is such 
a lovely pub. It really is a great social hub for the local community I would be devastated to see it close. Please do 
what you can to stop this happening. 

Kind regards 

Rep 54

Page 402



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 09:31
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Islington, 

I am writing in support of the Sekforde pub on Woodbridge St and Sekforde Street. Its a great pub that is 
well run and not unduly noisy. Any noise created is simply the general noise of a thriving pub that has been 
established for nearly 200 years. 

Review of its licence simply isnt justified. 

Rep 55 

Page 403



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 16:48
To: Licensing
Cc:
Subject: Sekforde Arms Clerkenwell

I am writing to support the Licensing of the Sekforde Arms in Clerkenwell. Young entrepreneurs are endeavouring to 
restore and run this pub for the local community. The present suggested restrictions will not make it viable – 
another empty unused property and young entrepreneurs hopes dashed. 

Rep 56 

Page 404



My name is , I am a member of the team at the Sekforde. I started working here 
since May after I had finished my undergraduate university degree. I am now attending city university 
down the street for my post-graduate course and i continue to work in this pub. I currently live in  

, just  from the pub and have also lived above the pub in David’s spare bedroom 
when I first started living here. 

I have worked since I was 14, in off-licence, and have worked in multiple disciplines and jobs since. I 
started working in the catering industry since I was 17, I have worked at multiple venues ranging from 
my local pub, in Kingston-upon Thames, to royal ascot. In my entire time working in this industry, I 
have never come across a more beautiful, elegant and welcoming place. My first impression of this 
pub made me consider how much passion was devoted into making this building, what amazing 
attention to detail, and more importantly…I hope I get this job! During my job interview I was told of 
the rich history this pub holds and what this street holds. How the name Sekforde, which has been 
preserved in various incarnations of this building, comes from a man named Thomas Sekforde, a well 
renowned philanthropist how had intentions to do more than just be a civil servant. David has brought 
back this philanthropy by making the Sekforde more than just a pub for the reason I shall now state. 

I mentioned I am currently studying at city university, the entire circumstances of which I would be 
attended my course are entirely up to the Sekforde. As you may all realise university is not cheap as it 
once was in 2010. My intention over the summer was to raise enough money whereby I would be able 
to partly afford my university fees so could attend my course. I aimed to study outside the central 
London area, as fees were less, and the living costs were much less. Moreover, I have a commitment 
to my single mother who suffers from osteoporosis, the money I earned during the summer helped 
me look after her. I feared the future of what I would have to deal with juggling, a long commute, 
university, and the prospect of finding another job and looking after my mother once my time at the 
Sekforde was over. I feel it is safe to say David had no intention of allowing such a burden to fall on 
me or anyone who would be in such a situation. He offered me the accommodation in St. James court 
and the ability to keep working at the pub if I wished to study at city instead. I graciously accepted this 
offer and though juggling these commitments is still a heavy task, I am relived of much unnecessary 
stress and worry and have a great hope for what will be able to achieve once I have finished my studies. 

However, if restrictions were to be imposed on the Sekforde, I worry all these worries would return 
with greater consequences. My accommodation is provided to me because the profits of the pub make 
it so. These restrictions would cause the pub not to create enough money to support my 
accommodation resulting in my eviction. If I was to be evicted I would have up to give up my position 
on my course as the costs of commuting would be to great and quite possibly my position at the 
Sekforde as it would mean arriving back home on the night bus at 4.00am. However, neither compares 
to the immediate problem of telling my ill mother that I lost my job and my opportunity at university 
because The Sekforde can no longer aid me. 

I would now like to explain something more specific regarding the residents of this area that concerns 
the Saturday night of the 22/10/18. On that day we had a group of 72 people celebrating a book 
opening which commenced roughly at 6.00pm, the group intended to end this event at 9.00 and 
vacate at the very latest 11.00pm. The group were a treat to host and consisted of families with well-
behaved children, elders and talented performers. At approximately 8.00pm, on a Saturday evening 
whilst me and my colleague were attempting to serve the group upstairs and maintain the functioning 
of the ground floor pub. We were startled when someone started to violently bang on the windows 
on our pub. At which point a woman entered the pub with such wrath and spoke in the most ruling 
manner yelling these exact words ‘you call this f*cking acceptable, all of you!’. This I believe was 
intended not just to me and my colleague but all the patrons of this pub. This woman then proceeded 

Rep 57 

Page 405



to slam the door, the whole time not evening entering the pub. The reason why I can recall these 
words verbatim, was because I was under such shock, dismay and truly threatened in which those 
words were said to me. I was shaking. At which point I went to see whether upstairs was being to 
rowdy. Though I all I saw were 72 people enjoying themselves in a conformed manner. I went 
downstairs to continue working. At which point the same woman shouted again at me say ‘still…still’ 
at which point I said to her, I’m very sorry, will see what I can do. At which point I ran upstairs with 
haste to explain David what I have just told you. He them accompanied me outside and instructed me 
to close the windows which I then did right away. That night I went home feeling discontent with my 
job at the Sekforde. I was informed later that this woman was an immediate neighbour of the pub. 

If there is a problem I am more than happy to try and fix that problem, but this should be done in a 
respected manner and articulated to me properly. There is never a need for swearing in any 
circumstance. I once received a noise complaint in the month of September, and a woman very politely 
asked us to keep the noise down, saying ‘I would like to have some peace just for once’. I immediately 
did everything in my power to try and reduce the noise of the pub, closing windows, and asked some 
noisy patrons who were not apparent to my knowledge prior to this phone call, to quieten down. This 
was all done because of civil conduct. In my knowledge, the team at The Sekforde has never used such 
vulgar language or threatening manner in any discourse with our neighbours to articulate a point or 
explanation. So why is it fair that The Sekforde, and more personally I, should have this be thrown at. 
It was unacceptable. 

Finally, I would like to express my own views about the case of noise coming from the pub. I mentioned 
I previously lived, once I first started working here in May, I lived in David’s spare bedroom with a 
friend and colleague, who some of you might know went to greats lengths to aid the relations between 
the Sekforde and our neighbours. I lived upstairs during multiple events when this floor was being 
used, and during the world cup. The time I spent in my room would be preparation to my studies for 
September, were sometimes I would stay up late to study and sometimes would sleep early to wake 
up the next day early, so I could study. In both scenarios I had no problem with the noise coming from 
outside or downstairs. Even when it was audible in my room, it was not such that it bothered my ability 
to study or sleep, as it would always settle. I should mention, that I was not brought up in a bustling 
urban environment, and that I am used to the quietness of the suburbs of London. Moreover, I slept 
right at the locus of the noise, any closer and would be at the bar itself.  

I hope what I have addressed informative. As the longest standing member of staff, I have seen this 
pub go through many changes, and I believe these changes have added more to the community and 
the greater good. As perhaps one of the newest residents of the neighbourhood, I hope to see this 
pub as not a point of conflict but as a harmonious part of the community.    

Page 406



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 12:23
To: Licensing
Subject: 34 Sekforde Street

Dear Licencing committee 

I am writing in opposition to the license review of the Sekforde Arms, 
34 Sekforde Street, EC1R 0HA 

My involvement has been as the Project manager and Structural Engineer of the whole development and 
restoration of the Sekforde. 

David Lonsdale is an old friend of mine and we have carried out several construction projects across London in the 
last 10 years. 

The Sekforde was the most inspiring project that I have ever been involved in. Not only because of the structural, 
architectural and sustainability challenges of the construction period but also for the post construction plans that we 
intend to pursue. 

Creating something special that is more than a pub was the driving force for me. I had no ambition to make financial 
gain from this project and David spent a fortune for the same purposes. 

My intensive to spent two and half years to develop The Sekforde was to build a place that can be a house of good 
changes locally and globally. And also to build a permanent living space for my business partner David Lonsdale. 

We have two main agendas: community and sustainability. 

To pursue these we have formed two fora: 

1) The Sekforde House Trust to promote education locally and globally;

2) The Sekforde Society to act as a think tank to support
sustainable globalisation.

Winning the RIBA Sustainability award and Architectural award was a great start for us. Being shortlisted for Civic 
Trust Award is another proof of recognition of a house that is attractive to the people who love architecture and 
active communities. 

The recent success of the pub is attracting many of the best students of all ages. It seems a shame if changes to the 
license will end all that has been achieved and can be achieved. 

I really believe the claims that have been made that the Seaford’s customers do not respect the neighbours are 
false. They fully understand the sensitivity of the neighbours and always patrolling around the pub on the busy 
nights to make sure nobody block the street or misbehave. Also the noise made by the customers on Fridays are not 
more than any other pub. 

Any restriction that affects the success of the pub is unfair in my view. It is a pub that promotes intellectual 
discussion and debate of the highest calibre and many neighbours have already built a good relationship with the 
house. 

Rep 58 

Page 407



My name is  I am the manager of the Sekforde pub and I am writing with my 
comments regarding the review of the licence. 

I appreciate there is a lot at stake for the residents of this street, and I understand the 
concerns they have and I have seen how upset they have been at certain times. I am also obviously 
hugely affected by the outcome of this review because it would affect my job and the jobs of all of 
my staff who I am extremely protective of.  

I would firstly like to say that the noise levels from this pub during are licenced hours are not 
unreasonable, and that there are very few times during our trading hours in which some of the 
residents believe they are reasonable. The popularity of the pub has grown since I began working 
here, which was one of my aims when I started. Most of the time, particularly when I started 
working here we have been, relative to any pub I have ever worked in, extremely quiet, sometimes 
with only one or two groups outside. During these times I have received complaints from my 
neighbours because they are unhappy with people talking loudly, sometimes with people laughing, 
once whilst someone was crying. Some of these complaints I have received whilst there have been 
less than 10 people outside in the afternoon. 

They might say this is because the patrons of this pub are sometimes louder than patrons of 
other pubs, but I can safely say, that for any venue I have ever worked in, in London or 
internationally, I believe we have the most well behaved I have come across. We have two extremely 
regrettable incidences of bad behaviour of customers that I am aware of. One is during my first week 
working here when a man urinated onto a neighbour’s property, and the other when a patron put a 
shoe in the lantern of a neighbour. In both cases, the friends of the patrons involved profusely 
apologised to the neighbours involved immediately and made attempts to formally apologise in 
proceeding days. Neither caused any sort of damage and both were followed up by myself and David 
with genuine concern and with practical changes to make sure it doesn’t happen again.  

The reason why I mention this is because I do not believe that some of our neighbours will 
ever be happy with the noise levels for as long as this remains a pub, because whether It is 50 people 
outside, or 10 people outside, the council and I still receive complaints. I have had to negotiate very 
difficult conversations with the neighbours about these issues, I have listened to their concerns and I 
very willing to make changes to make everyone’s life on the street easier. Practical changes I have 
made won’t appear on the councils records, but there have been many occasions where I have 
received complaints and stopped the noise immediately. I have brought patrons in earlier than our 
licence permits us, I have closed windows during summer to the detriment of staff and customers 
because neighbours have told me to. I have turned down music, I have locked certain doors, I have 
enquired about bikes locked to their property but this hasn’t been enough for them. 

It is clear that at any certain date, all of the neighbours decided to re-direct their complaints 
to the council, which is within their right and I understand that. Their reasoning of doing so is to 
create enough complaints to close the pub. I have also reached out to neighbours in person to find 
out how they were feeling about disturbances from the pub. The neighbour in question refused to 
tell me about specific incidences. She has however sworn at my staff and my patrons at various 
times during this period, which is genuinely really upsetting. We began a quiz on Wednesday nights 
that has grown in popularity in the area. I only found out that our neighbour with whom we share a 
wall has been disturbed by it, she has let this disturbance go on for weeks without letting us know 
she is affected by it. If she had let me know I would have just moved the quiz into the downstairs so 
she would not be affected at all, but instead she kept it a secret. The only reasoning, I can think of is 
because she is emotionally invested enough in the licence of this pub, to put the tranquillity of her 

Rep 59

Page 408



home second, or that she is not as affected as she appears on the review. After receiving the 
complaints, the quiz now takes place downstairs or upstairs without the use of a microphone. I can 
only hope this will make it better, I will never know for sure however, because neither she nor the 
council will inform me. 

I have had a chance to look through the complaints, and again I want to reiterate that I am 
empathetic towards them, I think sometimes there are times we should have been more vigilant, 
but many times the language used does not reflect the events. 

My first week I was working here there was an incident that I mentioned above with a 
patron from the pub urinating on a house two doors down. I was not in the pub at the time but we 
had our supervisor working that night, who had previously been manager of the pub and was acting 
mananger that evening. Every pub and bar I have ever worked in, we have had a manager and a 
supervisor to manage the pub, so her concerns about lack of management are a little uninformed. I 
have watched back the footage from that evening, although there is no sound, you can say the 
neighbour talking to the man in question. It is hard to say to how intimidated she was, but I can say 
there is footage of our manager on duty comforting her and clearly apologising, which is a little 
different from what was in the complaint. Also not mentioned, maybe because it happened the next 
day, was what we did to resolve the issue. One of the members of staff went over the clean the 
window in question and invited her round for a Sunday roast. Unfortunately, she was out at the time 
we had arranged for the cleaning, our staff member came out several times during that day and 
eventually in the evening he made sure the area was sorted. She never came for her Sunday roast 
but mentioned in the meeting that we do not respond to her complaints. 

Summer was a very busy and very hot time. There was a great buzz around the country 
because England had their best World Cup campaign in 18 years. I hear stories of people dancing in 
the street in 1966 when they won, I think if we had have won we would have received many more 
complaints. I understand during that time we received complaints about the noise of the 
commentary, but I was told by someone from the council that during those times it was reasonable 
for neighbours during the hours the games were on. I apologise if this was incorrect information and 
I also regret not noting the time, date and who I was speaking to verify this.  

The second occasion of patrons misbehaving which I have mentioned before is regrettable 
and was truly really upsetting. Not just because of the criticism I faced from my neighbours, but also 
because of how it made our neighbour feel. Since then and because of feedback from the council 
and our neighbours we have someone outside monitoring the crowd to make sure it doesn’t happen 
again. Since then there have been almost no complaints about people drinking on the other side of 
Sekforde street, and no complaints about people directly outside people’s doors. 

Now there are many complaints about where people are standing in the area around the 
pub. I have heard from neighbours that many years ago patrons would go across Woodbridge street 
and occupy that area to catch a little bit of the evening sun. The council have informed us that we 
should only have people in the immediate vicinity of the pub, which is what we have done since our 
meeting at the beginning of August. Since that meeting we have regular visits from council officers 
on patrol. They have given me good feedback about how we have been doing, and how we have 
been controlling the crowds. Because of this feedback, and because those visits were becoming 
more infrequent, and because there were less people outside than there had been, and because I 
was not receiving any complaints from neighbours I was sure we would have very few complaints, 
instead in September we had as many complaints as July.  

Page 409



I listened very closely to what the residents had to say at our meeting, I wish I could have 
said more but many of those in favour of the review of our licence had left before I had the chance 
to speak. I think they acknowledged the difficulty of the drinking habits of our customers, in that 
most of the business comes in two short periods on Thursday and Friday evenings. One neighbour 
pointed out that women in modern times make more noise than they did 30-40 years ago. I am not 
old enough to know if that is true, perhaps, because of a number of positive changes in society that 
have happened in that period, it is true. For me this has always reflected the route of the problem 
since I started, which is that the usual behaviour and normal noise of people in the pub causes a 
nuisance to our neighbours because we are being compared to a pub from a different era. In 
comparison with the pub before, and in years gone by at most pubs, there would be fewer 
customers who drink more often, customers would spend far less time outside and women, about 
whom many of the complaints are angled at, were apparently more quiet. Of course I am not saying 
that drinking habits have changed that dramatically within 2 years, but our predecessors were still 
running on an old business model for a pub, a business model which hadn’t made them money in 
decades.  

Apologies for the length of this letter, but I do have a lot to say to defend myself and this 
business and I am extremely passionate about it, both because it is my job and because I love the 
pub. Some of the changes proposed would be so costly and impractical we would not be able to 
survive in an incredibly competitive market. I will continue to work hard to rebuild the relationship 
with our neighbours, maintain the good relationship I have with the council, continue to protect the 
safety of our patrons and improve on the impact those patrons have on our street. Please, please, 
do everything in your power to keep this wonderful pub open.  

Kind Regards, 

Page 410



Rep 60

Page 411



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 18:38
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde .

Dear Sir/Madam , 
        My name is  , I am an artist with over 35 years experience working in public buildings and 

interiors ~ everywhere from 10 Downing Street to the Tower of London and beyond In the last two years I have 
worked with David Lonsdale and Architect   on the Sekforde Arms pub I undertook to paint the the 
exterior using traditional wood graining methods , and within the building I painted frescoes that mirrored the 
history of the building and its relationship with Sekforde Hall I painted ceilings and interiors in a way that I believe 
would add to the experience of this beautiful building. 
Many neighbours spoke to me while I undertook the painting this time last year and expressed their admiration for 
the work that was being done and the care that was being taken in making something that really would add to the 
neighbourhood and community ; the restaurant as well as the bar I think it is now very unfortunate that, in a way 
the very success of this project is being held against it . 
I have eaten and drank many times at the Sekforde and apart from the jubilation at England’s unexpected World 
Cup success I have never experienced undue noise or behaviour. 
 I would ask you look favourably on this wonderful pub which I think  will integrate perfectly with the neighbourhood 
it wants to serve , Yours sincerely,  

Sent from my iPhone 

Rep 61

Page 412



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 18:40
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi, 

I’m writing to express my support of The Sekforde. I have been very surprised to learn that some local 
residents do not support this wonderful pub, as it is most certainly my favourite pub in the area. I’ve never 
found it to be rowdy and find myself there frequently when looking for a quiet drink with my friends and 
colleagues.  

Unlike so many pubs in central London, The Sekforde, as one of the few truly independent pubs, has a kind, 
inviting atmosphere with many fun events, tasteful decor, good beer and a some very interesting 
environmentally friendly technologies that no other pub I know uses.  

It would be a real shame to lose this great pub. 

Yours, 

Rep 62

Page 413



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 10:54
To: Licensing
Subject: Licence review - The Sekforde, 34 Sekforde Street, EC1R 0HA

Dear Licencing Committee, 

I am writing in support of The Sekforde and am against the review of its license. As a customer at the pub 
and having attended a number of talks and lectures, I believe that the pub is a huge asset to the 
immediate and wider area. My experience is that The Sekforde is it friendly, welcoming and professionally 
run pub.  

I believe that the review of its licence is not justified and risks losing a valuable asset that the community 
has recently gained.  

Kind Regards, 

Rep 63

Page 414



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 09:50
To: Licensing
Subject: ENF/2018/319 - SEKFORDE ARMS, 34 SEKFORDE STREET, EC1R 0HA

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Licensing Team, 

I was horrified to learn The Sekford Arms licence is under review. 

Personally I have attended the complimentary lectures held at the premises, which I found to be highly 
received and very well attended. 
Mr Lonsdale had done a wonderful thing for the community by reinstating a pub, spending, what looks like 
an enormous amount of his own money. 
I live in Hackney and would welcome a local pub, like The Sekforde Arms, to bring the community 
together.  

Kind regards 

Rep 64

Page 415



To the Licensing Sub-Committee, London Borough of Islington 

26 October 2018 

Dear Sir/Madam 

Sekforde Arms – David Lonsdale 

I am writing in support of David Lonsdale’s licence and use of the Sekforde Arms in Clerkenwell. 

I have known David for 35 years, starting from when we were law students together. Working 
passionately to revitalise the Sekforde Arms, so that it is an asset to its community and a base for his 
Sekforde Scholars charity, is typical of his approach. 

I have visited the Sekforde Arms on various occasions, particularly over this last summer, and it has 
always seemed just what you would expect for London pub. In fact, most of the times I have been there, it 
has been on the quiet side and certainly much quieter than other pubs I have walked past in the general 
area. 

Amongst other things, the pub is now a beautiful location for private events. We held a celebration for my 
daughter’s engagement there this summer. This was for family and friends and included three sets of 
grandparents and various aunts and uncles, all of whom travelled in from outside London. Some of the 
grandparents stayed and brought custom to local hotels and cafes. When we left the celebration at around 
11pm, we did not think it was particularly noisy outside. 

Yours faithfully, 

Rep 65

Page 416



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 01 November 2018 16:37
To: Licensing
Subject: Re: The Sekforde - licensing review

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Dear Carol, 

I my home address is 

Kind regards, 

On Thu, 1 Nov 2018, 16:34 Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk wrote: 

Dear ,  

I refer to your email below and confirm that I will need your full postal address to enable me to accept your 
representation as a valid representation to the application for review.  

With regards,  

Carol  

From: 
Sent: 31 October 2018 09:17 
To: Licensing <Licensing@islington.gov.uk> 
Subject: The Sekforde - licensing review 

Dear Sir or Madam, 

I saw notices at the Sekforde pub in Clerkenwell about a potential review of the pubs licence.  

I hope I am not too late to add my view. I regularly meet friends and drink in The Sekforde and I would be 
so disappointed if the license were removed. It's a gorgeous little pub with a clienteke of professional 
people - mostly 30 yr and 40yr olds- like myself. I have many friends who work nearby and for us it's a 
quiet place to meet up compared to other local pubs and bars. 

I am surprised there are issues with noise. Theres always been a pub there and ive been going there over a 
year and never found it particularly noisy. In fact theres a team of staff who i have seen make a huge effort 
to keep noise inside and ask people to respect neighbours.  

I'm shocked in these circolumstances that you'd consider reviewing the license. I hope you do not! 

Yours faithfully, 

Rep 66 

Page 417



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 20:29
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde Arms pub licensing dispute

Hello, 
Me and my family are neighbours of the historic pub and have lived here for more than 30 years. We were 
happy when Mr Lonsdale took over and refurbished the pub, and have no noise or any other problems at any 
time whatsoever.  
I strongly beleive the pub should remain and would be devastated if it could not continue. I have met the 
owner and he is personable, friendly and passionate about the pub and the area and certainly does not want 
to disturb anyone at any time. myself, my mother  and the other occupant of our home 

 would all like to support Mr Lonsdale and block the restrictions on his licence. I might add I have 
never heard any complaints by the dozen or more neighbours I speak to regularly about this at any time. If 
this was an issue I am sure we would have been spoken with by those affected. 
Thanks very much 

Rep 67 

Page 418



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 09:13
To:
Cc:

sekforde.street.residents@gmail.com
Subject: Re: Sekforde Arms

Dear , 

Thank you for your kind message. I regret to say that the proposed restrictions on the licence would make 
it impossible to operate profitably and the Sekforde would have to close. 

The threat arises from repeated complaints about noise and customers blocking the pavement outside the 
Sekforde. It is these complaints that have led to the review. The people complaining are some, but by no 
means all, of my immediate neighbours.  

All I want is for people who come to the pub and who live or work nearby nearby to say what they think. 

The email address for the review is licensing@islington.gov.uk. The deadline is today. The other email 
address is one that has been set up by the people complaining to allow local people a chance to share 
views. 

Kind regards 

From: 
Sent: 31 October 2018 08:11 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: Sekforde Arms  

Rep 68 

Page 419



2

Dear  , 
This is just to express my concern that the future of your wonderful pub may be jeopardy. Please either forward this 
email on to the relevant people/body or let me have their details.  
I have cced   in because I know he would agree that this threat to close our “local” is not in the community’s best 
interest and may wish to add his own comments. 
Thanks, 

 and regulated 

Page 420



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 13:20
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hello, 

I am emailing, as it has come to my attention that the Sekforde pub is at risk of losing its licence following 
complaints of noise from the neighbours. 

This building has always been a public house and the recent refurbishments have given it a new lease of life to 
preserve and enhance it for the future. As a Conservation Architect, I believe that maintaining function is important 
to the historic value of a building and for it to no longer be a public house would be a significant loss.  

I have visited the pub since the refurbishment and it was not noisy at all. It was being really well run by an 
enthusiastic owner who seemed really passionate about the place. The historic public house is clearly in good hands 
and am very disappointed to hear that the licence is under review. 

Kind Regards, 

Rep 69 

Page 421



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 02 November 2018 02:25
To: Licensing
Subject: Re: The Sekforde license review

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

good evening, 

its 

Thanks, 

From: Licensing  
Sent: Thursday, November 1, 2018 4:18:36 PM 
To: 
Subject: RE: The Sekforde license review  
Dear ,  
I refer to your email below and confirm that I will need your full postal address to enable me to accept your 
representation as a valid representation to the application for review.  
With regards,  
Carol  

From: 
Sent: 31 October 2018 23:45 
To: Licensing  
Subject: The Sekforde license review 
To whom this may concern,  
I am an employee of the sekforde and would liked to put across my viewpoint of the licensing review. I 
have worked here for 4 months and in that time I have never found the pub to be excessively noisy or 
disruptive to the community. I find this to be the most quiet pub i've worked in over 10 years so I am 
surprised at the allegations made against us. I realise my job is on the line if the noise exceeds the 
acceptable limit so have worked hard to make sure this is not the case. It appears to me more of a tit for tat 
situation and this shouldn't be grounds to strip a license from a pub that supports a charity and has won 
many awards. I'm very proud to work here and know the majority of our neighbours and they feel similarly. 
Please consider my input during the review. 
Many thanks for your time,  

This e-mail is intended for the addressee only. If you have received it in error, please contact the sender and 
delete the material from your computer. Please be aware that information in this email may be confidential, 
legally privileged and/or copyright protected.  

Rep 70

Page 422



1st 

Respondent/licensee 

Dated: 24/10/2018 

IN THE MATTER OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 

AND THE LICENCE REVIEW OF THE SEKFORDE ARMS ON 28TH NOVEMBER 2018 

REPRESENTATIONS MADE BY 

I, , of  will say as follows: 

Introduction 

1. I am the  and  the Sekforde Arms. I live in the 
the licensed premises and have done since December 2017. 

2. I make this statement in opposition to the licensing committee making any substantial
alterations to my current licence pursuant to an application made on 2nd October 2018 by
Ms Brothers on behalf of “Pollution Team”. The content of this statement is true. I have
prepared a formal statement because the facts which have given rise to Ms Brothers’
application are in dispute.  It will be necessary for the licensing sub-committee or the
magistrates’ court on any appeal to determine disputed questions of fact.

Point of law

3. It is not clear to me that “Pollution Team” is entitled to make this application under the
Licensing Act 2003. It does not appear to be an entity that has any legal personality and does
not appear to be within any of the “responsible authorities” listed in section 13 of the Act
which are entitled to make such applications. I invite the licensing sub-committee to
determine as a preliminary issue whether a valid application has been made and whether it
has any lawful authority to consider it. My statement is subject to the licensing sub-
committee determining that the application has been validly made.

Rep 71

Page 423



Competing interests 

4. I apologise in advance for the length of this statement. But this is an important application.
Were the committee to make the alterations to the licence proposed by Ms Brothers then
the pub would become hopelessly unprofitable and I would be forced to close it almost
immediately. I think that would be grossly unfair to me, to my wonderful staff who would
lose jobs which they greatly value, to our hundreds of customers, to the young people who
stand to benefit from the scholarships our profits make possible, to the people who attend
our free public debates and to all residents of London who care about the preservation and
continued public use of historical buildings.

5. I am aware that a few of my immediate neighbours wish the pub to close. One neighbour,
, told me as much over a cup of tea in his house at  in 

2014. He believed his home would be more valuable if there were no pub on Sekforde 
Street. He and his partner  have now sold and left Sekforde street. I am pleased to 
say that we parted on good terms. 

6. I also draw attention to the notes of a complaint made to the noise control team (before I
became licensee of the pub) on 14/11/14. “About four different local residents approached
us and explained about (sic) that just two rich residents of the area try (sic) to close the pub
but they are not happy about losing their historical pub.”

7. I do not in fairness think that most of my remaining immediate neighbours are primarily
concerned about the value of their houses. To some extent, I see the outcome of this
application as the determination of a dispute about competing interests. I think some of my
immediate neighbours demand a degree of tranquillity, at all hours, which I think is not
compatible with the interest that my employees, customers and I have in keeping going a
busy and successful pub in Clerkenwell. It may well be that the sub-committee or the
magistrates court decides that their interests should prevail. But I think that would be a
shame.

The Sekforde Arms

8. The Sekforde Arms was built in 1829 by John Bewley. It was the first property to be built on
what is now Sekforde Street. A sewage plan of 1830 shows it standing alone. John Bewley
not only built it but owned it, lived in it and ran it as a pub. It is worth noting that the cellars
run right along the entire pavement on Sekforde Street. John Bewley could not have built
these cellars unless he owned the land on which they were built.

9. Between 1829 and June 2015 it was continuously open. Many London pubs closed during
the Blitz but the Sekforde remained open. Although there is no historical evidence that
Charles Dickens ever drank in it, I suspect he did. He had a bank account at the Finsbury and
City Bank of Savings which magnificent Renaissance palazzo style building is just 50 meters
away. Similarly, Lenin and Stalin may well have visited it on their trip to London in 1905.
They stayed in the area. It is certain that in the 1980s, members of the Pink Floyd band were
regular customers. But many thousands of people have over the decades enjoyed
themselves and put the world to rights at the Sekforde.

Page 424



10. When Sekforde street was first built it was a mixture of residential and commercial
buildings. The property immediately adjoining the pub  was used by a
silver smith right up until 2007 when it was sold at public auction. I was in fact the under
bidder and remember the work shop very well. It has only been a private residence since
2010 when it was purchased by my immediate neighbours  and 

. I do not think it is any secret that they have been the most prominent amongst 
my immediate neighbours who have complained. But for 140 years the immediate 
neighbour of the Sekforde was a silver smith’s shop, and I suspect that the noise the pub 
generated was of no concern to the occupant of that shop. I think a court in determining 
whether activities in the pub constitute in law a nuisance to occupants of 
would regard this historical context as important.  

11. I first became familiar with the Sekforde Arms in 1993 when I moved to the Barbican. In
2001, I moved to a house on Northampton Square which is just 200 meters away where I
lived until 2007. I would visit it occasional during that period although I did, to be entirely
frank, regard it as a bit of a rough old boozer and I preferred the Peasant and what was then
the Well on St John’s street. (The Well is now a Simmons pub and it has been totally ruined
as a pub by changes to its licensing conditions requiring two bouncers at the door and the
ghastly cattle pens outside.)

12. In April 2005 the freehold of the Sekforde was sold at public auction subject to a lease in
favour of Youngs the large drinks company. I purchased it with two friends.

13. By 2013, my friends wanted to sell and in 2014 I agreed to buy them out. We agreed terms
and I acquired the whole freehold with Youngs remaining my tenant. Its lease was due to
expire in 2026.

14. During the period when Youngs was my tenant, I received complaints about noise and
overcrowding of the pavements from neighbours. I always referred the complaints to
Youngs and asked the company to address them. I think in those days people contacted me
or Youngs rather than contacting the local authority. There are several videos on You tube
which give an idea of the sort of pub the Sekforde was when Youngs was the lessee.

15. During one of many conversations with Youngs its representative told me that the pub was
losing money and the company really had no interest in trying to keep it going.

16. I could see why that was the case. It was quite a small pub and it had wholly inadequate
facilities. The toilets were awful and there was a tiny funny shaped old kitchen with a flue in
the yard outside which produced strong cooking oil smells. Although it was a very attractive
building, it was in a very poor state of repair. It was also frequently infested with mice.

17. I believed that if the pub were restored and the side return and basement developed it
could continue. It needed to offer much better facilities. Moreover, I liked the idea of living
above a pub. I thought it would be fun. In consequence, I agreed to the surrender of the
lease with Youngs for no payment at all and obtained planning and listed building consent to
restore and develop the pub. Youngs would of course not have surrendered its lease for
nothing if it was running a profitable business.

Page 425



18. I held a public meeting at the pub in 2014. I told the local residents of my plans. Some were
very sceptical about me and my motives. However, it was clear that the pub was much
loved, and the great majority wanted it to remain a pub.

19. I took possession from Youngs in July 2015 and the restored and developed pub re-opened
in December 2017. Two people on Sekforde street told me that they were rather annoyed
not to get an invitation to the opening night and thought that was rude and exclusive. But
we only had room for 200 guests and by the time we had invited all the people connected
with the building project and their families, the five scholars and their families and our local
MP and her family, we just could not accommodate any one else. I did invite my immediate
neighbours who I had got to know a little. I am glad that  who lives at

 came. 

20. For reasons that I shall explain below, I think the pub should be allowed to continue. But I
want to mention two good things that came out of the restoration and development work
itself.

21. The first is that, thanks to my friend and architect Chris Dyson, my friend and project
manager Hadi Sarmadi and the wonderful construction workers of our company, in April of
this year the Sekforde won two prestigious awards from The Royal Institute of British
Architects. One was for outstanding architecture the other was for sustainability. The
sustainability award was partly for the extremely advanced water source heat pump and
exchange which reduces our heating and cooling bills to one seventh of what they would
otherwise be, and partly because the judges thought that through our scholarships and
public talks we were offering something of value to the community. I think it should mean
something to Islington itself that the building was the only one in London in 2018 that won
two awards from RIBA.

22. I should also make clear that there has been nothing whatsoever done by Mr Sarmadi to the
Sekforde during the restoration and development that has increased transmission of sound
to any other property and there is no factual or scientific basis to suggest otherwise. If that is
disputed, then there should be proper evidence produced to support the claim. I do not
think Ms Brothers should have repeated in her statement the false and unsubstantiated
claims by  and  that somehow changes to the plaster have affected the
sound insulation properties. Moreover, the pub was uncarpeted before and it remains
uncarpeted. The previous chairs did not have felt pads. Our chairs do in response to a
complaint made by  within three weeks of our opening.

23. Mr Sarmadi and I have given a talk to Islington’s sustainability unit and its employees in that
unit have come to the pub to see what we have done. They were extremely pleasant people
and were very complimentary about the achievement. Islington is in fact one of the London
boroughs that is taking seriously climate change and our collective responsibility to reduce
dramatically carbon emissions.

24. The second good thing arises from more macabre circumstances. In the summer of last year,
as I walked into Sekforde Street on a hot afternoon, I thought I saw a mattress falling from
the window of a house. I looked up and realised that it was not a mattress, rather it was the

Page 426



naked body of a man in his early twenties. He was impaled on the railings with a spike 
plunging about six inches into his backside. His head was directed into the lightwell below 
and he was screaming for help. I ran over and tried to hold him and to prevent him from 
falling. The suit I was wearing was sprayed with blood and human faeces. I grabbed his arm 
but soon I realised that I could not stop him from falling. I seemed to have lost all strength 
and I was slowly losing hold of him. Everyone else in the street just seemed to freeze with 
shock. In the distance, I could see my construction workers on the scaffolding of the 
Sekforde. I yelled at them to come and help. Two of them leaped from the scaffolding and 
ran up the street. They arrived with seconds to spare. They sensibly pushed me out of their 
way and together, using all their formidable strength. lifted the young man off the spike. In 
one moment, two Eastern European construction workers, Roman and Victor, saved a life 
and I am very proud of what they did whilst helping restore the Sekforde. 

25. We have received many kind words of congratulations and thanks from many people with
respect to the awards and the saving of a life. It is a matter of regret and interest to me that
none of my immediate neighbours who have complained so often and so vociferously has
ever made the slightest reference to the awards and the heroic actions of two of my
employees of my construction company. In fact, I am not aware of their acknowledging any
social or other benefit that the pub brings to many people.

The value of the Sekforde

26. I think all pubs of this kind are valuable. There are few places where people can meet and
relax and make new friends in the evening. Even today a sizable number of people meet in
pubs and form lifelong relationships. I think they help social cohesion. I think it is a shame
that 27% of pubs have closed in London since 2001 and a far higher percentage of small
pubs. Today London continues to lose one pub a week.

27. I remember one occasion at the Sekforde in the summer. A very elderly lovely lady came
into the pub who had lived on Sekforde Street before the war. By the end of the evening she
was surrounded by a group of young men in their twenties who were laughing uproariously
at her tales of mischief. She looked completely thrilled. It was an evening that attracted
complaints.

28. I think the Sekforde is worth retaining for three particular reasons: First, it is owned and
occupied by an individual just as it was in 1829. I think there are very few pubs left like that
today. It was a very common model in the 19th century. But most pubs today are owned by
huge chains. They have a generic quality whereas I think the Sekforde is unique.

29. Secondly, the Sekforde hosts free public debates and lectures in the ballroom on the first
floor, on issues of importance. So far, His Honour Judge Martyn Zeidman QC has given a
lecture on the Criminal Justice system, Mr Dan Cruickshank has given a lecture on Palmyra in
Syria, and Sir Robert Boyd has given a lecture on Medicine in 2050.  I have been too
exhausted and depressed to arrange any further debates and lectures but will do this when
this application is finally determined.

30. Thirdly, all the Sekforde profits go to provide scholarships primarily for Islington students.
These scholarships are important to me. I think often of my (completely teetotal!)

Page 427



grandmother Kathleen Lonsdale. She was the youngest of ten children born in 1903 in 
Ireland in dire poverty. Her father abandoned the family in 1910 leaving Kathleen’s mother 
Jessie with no means of support. Four children died. Jessie sold all their meagre possessions 
and moved to the East End of London where she and her six surviving children lived in three 
rented rooms with a male lodger. My grand mother was the only one of the six surviving 
children who went to school. The other five had to work. They sold jam on Brick Lane. At 
sixteen, in 1919, my grandmother Kathleen won a scholarship of £120 a year to go to UCL 
and without that there would be no way she could have continued with her education. 
Kathleen turned out to be a very brilliant scientist. (Shame none of her genes were inherited 
by me.) She has a connection to Islington because she was sentenced to a month in 
Holloway Prison in 1942 “with hard labour”. I think many students today are really struggling 
and need help. We had 317 applications for five £10,000 scholarships last year. Thanks to 
the work of my staff at the Sekforde, this year we can offer over £100,000 in scholarships.  
However, I think the pub can offer more than money to provide scholarships. My staff and I 
can offer a welcoming and supportive place where our scholars can meet each other and 
form their own academic community over time.  

31. One of the things I like most about my staff, is that they understand that they are working
for a cause not just a business and this gives them great motivation.

The complaints by my immediate neighbours

32. I want to make one thing clear at the beginning. I have not been, and never will be, anything
other than friendly and polite to all my immediate neighbours who have complained about
me or the way in which the pub has been run. They remain welcome at the Sekforde and I
am happy to talk to them at any time. But I think my immediate neighbours have collectively
orchestrated a highly co-ordinated and articulate campaign which is rather unfriendly and
unneighbourly to me to my staff and to our customers. It is the complaints that have led to
the review and it is the review which may result in the pub closing.

33. It is very humiliating for me to be subject to a review in this way when we have been trading
for less than a year. The notices that the Applicant has placed outside appear to describe a
situation of crime and disorder that I simply do not recognise. Ironically, there has been a
marked increase in our turnover since they went up which I take to be a show of community
support.

34. Just a few days ago, I received a letter from Islington council threatening to commence a
criminal prosecution against me for locating a flue for the kitchen in the “wrong” place on
the roof of the new build and asking me to stop using it immediately.  This has been caused
by  and  making a complaint without ever raising this new issue with
me my architect or my project manager at any time. They only noticed the position of the
flue in September of this year. We do not accept that the flue is in the wrong place. It is in
the only place it can be, and it complies with all building regulations. No possible harm has
arisen to any one from the position of the flue which was previously at ground floor level.
This further complaint seems to me like the opening of a new front. Without a flue the
kitchen cannot operate, and the basement cannot be lawfully ventilated. Closure of the pub
would be achieved by an alternative route.

Page 428



35. There are three general observations I should like to make. Firstly, with the exception of the
owners of the adjoining property,  and , none of my immediate
neighbours has ever sought to complain to me personally before complaining to the council.
They all know that I am the owner and in the best possible position to respond. Recently
they sent an anonymous letter dated 17th October 2017 to everyone on Sekforde and
Woodbridge Street, but it was not delivered to me. The letter seemed to me to be extremely
hostile and personal. I have a good manager, Mr Harry Smith in whom I have great
confidence. I do not want to be involved in the day to day running of the pub. But if any one
thought Harry was not performing his duties properly I would expect them to come to me
before going to the council.

36. Secondly, I can honestly say that I have not myself been disturbed by noise. It is true, on
busy evenings and especially on Thursday and Friday evenings I can hear crowds outside in
the summer and I can often hear noise from within the pub. But the noise is what I would
describe as the noise of a busy pub and it does not prevent the enjoyment of my home. I
would not choose to live above a pub if it did. Our customers are local people who behave in
much the same way as the customers of our nearest competitor the Crown Tavern (which of
course has far more outside on a typical summer’s evening). Part of Chris Dyson’s brilliant
design involved the construction of an additional two-bedroom maisonette on Woodbridge
Street. We have had many guests staying in this maisonette and not one has ever mentioned
any noise from the pub.

37. Thirdly some of the complaints seem to me rather exaggerated and obsessive. Take a series
of five (highly co-ordinated) complaints made on 14/6/18 in 26 minutes between 22.02pm
and 22.28pm.

“14/6/18 22. 02 Again, customers from the Sekforde blocking pavement and street, and our
property entrance. Many people outside making noise with little evidence of staff trying to
get people in by 10.30.”

(It is not obvious to me why my staff should have been trying to get people back into the
pub at 10.02pm After all our guests are not required to be back in the pub until 10.30 pm)

“14/6/18 22.06 Yet another night of uncontrolled crowds and escalating noise from the
Sekforde pub in Sekforde Street.

14/6/18 22.09 People all over the street and very loud noise level.

14/6/18 22.25 Noise and loud inconsiderate behaviour at the Sekforde Arms Customers
across the pavement and roads, the windows of the upper floor open and the noise is
intolerable. No control exerted by the Landlord or his manager and no attempt to
acknowledge that the local community do not wish to hear all the noise as if it is a party in
their own home.

14/6/18 22.28. Intolerable level of noise from customers outside the Sekforde drinking on
the pavement/ public highway. Sounds like they are in my bedroom and cannot sleep. Have
to be up early tomorrow and need sleep. Please help.”

Page 429



38. Islington’s noise team was however on this night fortunately close by. This is their report: 

“called all comp(laintnts) at 22.40 pm. Visited 22.40 (in other words telephone call made 

from patrol car from outside the premises). We only saw three people sitting outside, a few 

other groups came out but were ushered away by the management. Tables all stood on side 

and out of use. When I spoke to complainant at number XX (Sekforde Street) (s)he said there 

was (sic) large numbers outside but this was clearly not the case as we were on site. No noise 
issues witnessed. No unreasonable behaviour.”

39. Another example: On 29/8/18 20.09. “The pub quiz has started again we can hear every 

question in our sitting room because a microphone is being used – question 1 name of 
people in a new programme. We are now on question 6. Trying to work and being disturbed.”

40. Islington’s noise team reported as follows:

“Called Complainant at 2050. Complainant states that intermittent noise from the pub which 

is currently hosting a quiz night is causing her a disturbance. A visit was agreed. Arrived at 

21.40. An assessment was made in the living room area. Whilst conversing with C she 

showed us photos taken at 21.33. These photos showed two plant pots with plants that 

stood about 5 feet tall. The plant pots were on the curb of the pavement. C stated that she 

feels she was spotted taking photos and noticed that shortly after the plants had moved 

back against the wall of the pub and also that the front doors to the pub had been closed. As 

a result of the doors being closed she states that the noise is no longer a disturbance.”

41. None of us has the faintest idea who moved the plants (olive trees) to the pavement curb 

and then moved them back. But it seems to me rather obsessive to take a photo and then 

complain about this to the council. And it is a mystery to me why if the problem with the quiz 
arose from a door being left open as the lady concerned claimed, she did not simply ask the 
staff to close the door rather than pre-occupy herself with the taking of photographs of plant 
pots to show to the council’s officers.

42. A third example:  On 14/9/18 at 23.10 a complainant states “The Sekforde street is too loud, 
after 23 pm with people outside with drinks.” The noise patrol recorded two minutes later 

“14/9/18 23.12 “Vste at 23.12 a number of patrons inside bar, but doors and windows to
(sic) shut. No customers hanging outside. No nuisance witnessed.”.

43. At least on these occasions, the complaints cannot be reconciled with the reports made by 

the noise team.

Incidents of anti-social behaviour

44. I acknowledge that on two occasions customers behaved badly on leaving the pub. One 

student urinated on the window of  Sekforde Street which is some meters away from the 

pub. One young woman threw a shoe in the air and it landed in
external lantern at . My staff did not anticipate that either of these 

customers would do this after leaving the pub. They happened at a time when the staff were 

Page 430



extremely busy in a matter of less than 90 seconds. On both occasions Harry Smith and I 
apologised for what had happened and offered to provide a free Sunday roast. But these 
offers were politely declined.  My nephew Tom cleaned up the urine. Contrary to what was 
asserted in the letter of 17th October 2018, neither of these individuals returned to the pub 
to be served with more drinks.  

45. It is not clear to me whether any of the proposed changes to the licence conditions would
have prevented these incidents. I do not think a door man would have been able to stop a
puerile student unzipping his trousers and urinating on a window some 25 meters from the
main entrance to the pub.

46. In the noise team’s report there is a reference from one of Islington’s noise officers to my
being “arrogant” and denying that the shoe incident had occurred. This claim is categorically
false and reflects poorly on the officer making the report.  I did not say anything that was
arrogant, and I only found out about the shoe incident the following day. I did not and would
not for one moment have ever denied  account of what happened. The shoe was
in the lantern at the time and left there for many days, so if I had indeed disputed the claim
as falsely suggested in the report, the member of the noise team making the report would
simply have shown the shoe to me. , although I know she has complained about the
pub, is a gentle and charming lady and the disgraceful behaviour of the young woman and
her party is a matter of the utmost regret to me.

47. As it happens the young woman and her party were very ashamed of what happened, and I
received a letter from the group to say so.

48. I do not think these incidents are typical. We have served many thousands of customers and
we know of no other incidents such as these.

Breach of the licence conditions

49. There have been a very few occasions when all our customers have not been made to come
inside with their drinks before 10.30 pm and the tables have not been placed on their sides.

50. I have given all the staff the most severe warning about this and have an app on my mobile
that enable me to check. I have been doing this religiously and there have been no recent
breaches.

Noise Music

51. Music is used in pubs to create atmosphere. But I do not myself like or tolerate loud music.
To me the level of music should enable ordinary conversation to take place. I think the level
of our music is in general very similar to or lower than other pubs in the area. Harry tells me
we tend to lose customer on Friday after about 9pm because the younger ones tend to
move on to pubs and clubs where there is much louder music than would be acceptable to
me.

Page 431



52. All the buildings in our section of Sekforde Street are listed and it is impossible to place
secondary glazing on the windows. In addition, we do on hot evenings need to keep the
windows open to ensure the rooms are properly ventilated especially when they contain
large numbers of customers.

People noise

53. Most of the complaints have been about people noise and not music. However, I do not
think our customers are any louder than the customers of The Crown Tavern, the Peasant or
Simmonds Pub. Why should they be? Without wanting to sound snobbish (and I drink at all
the local pubs apart from the ruined Simmons pub) I think we clearly have a rather more
respectable and more educated crowd than all our competitors. When Youngs was running
the pub, the focus of the pub’s entertainment was a dart board which I think did attract a
predominantly heavy beer drinking male boisterous crowd which I wanted to discourage. On
the evening of some of the complaints, we have been hosting receptions for retired school
teachers, lawyers, doctors, architects or accountants. To my certain knowledge, these
groups have been astonished that their noise has attracted all these complaints. It is
fortunate that dinner proposed for 28 judges of the Crown Court did not in the end take
place as I have no idea what complaints would have ensued.

54. I maintain that the noise is acceptable for a pub of its kind. It generates the same level of
noise experienced during the period of the Youngs tenancy. I have absolutely no doubt, that
if a sound expert were to measure properly the noise from the Sekforde and the noise from
the neighbouring pubs on Thursdays and Fridays, there would be no material difference. I
offer to instruct a joint independent expert to make this assessment.

Blocking the pavements 

55. With almost the same vigour, my immediate neighbours have complained about the
blocking of the pavements. Whilst I completely understand that noise may be a genuine
issue for some of them, this really is a rather contrived complaint.

56. Except the pubs on main thorough fares, all the local pubs to some extent block the
pavements on Thursday and Friday evenings. To illustrate this point, I asked my friend Hadi
Sarmadi to take some photographs of our nearest competitors at around 6 pm on 19th

October 2018. Of course, the effect would be far more pronounced in June or July than in
October.

57. Sekforde Street has exceptionally little traffic and, as it is a wide street, with pavements on
both sides, I do not think any blocking of the pavement on the Sekforde side has ever caused
any practical difficulty to anyone. Stepping on to a quiet road for a few strides is absolutely
nothing – the equivalent of getting into a car parked on the street. Even when we have
virtually no people on Sekforde Street, pedestrians tend to walk on the road or the opposite
pavement.

58. To my mind, it was a good idea none the less to have fewer people on Sekforde street. It was
for this reason that we encouraged customers to go to the opposite side of Woodbridge

Page 432



Street where there is a large paved area and we could monitor them very easily from inside 
the pub.  They were then well away from all residences. However, I was asked to attend a 
meeting at the council on 2nd August 2018, and Ms Jones said that people had complained, 
and she thought that we ought not to have them there. I just could not see the rhyme or 
reason behind the demand. We have however kept our customers from going to the 
opposite side of Woodbridge Street although there is nothing in our licence that prohibits us 
from having customers over there.  

59. I should like the sub-committee to consider carefully whether my proposal is acceptable. I
think it would help a lot – especially in the summer.

Proposals made by the noise team and immediate neighbours

60. I do not feel that the licence conditions should be altered materially. I believe the Sekforde is
a well-run and delightful pub. I believe my staff are kind diligent and responsible young men
and women.  I think they can be trusted to gauge what level of sound from music is
acceptable at different times in the full knowledge that I myself loath loud music.

61. I think the proposal to limit people outside to 20 is just outrageous. I will try not to bore
anyone with the economics of running a pub, but trade is heavily tilted to Thursday and
Friday evenings and on those evenings heavily tilted to the period 6 pm to 9 pm. On Fridays
we need to be taking about £5,000 to achieve the modest level of profits that I should like to
have for the scholarships.

62. To just break even we have to take around £4,000 on Fridays. That is the equivalent of
selling 800 pints. In the summer everyone wants to stand outside. Even if those 20 drank 4
pints each at £5 a pint our takings would be £400. Even if one trebles that sum for food and
drink served at the tables, we would still be hopelessly short of meeting our costs.

63. If we said to our customers “you have to stay inside if you want to drink”, they would just
head around the corner to the Crown Tavern where several hundred drink outside in the
summer. There is in fact a new residential building being erected next to the Crown and
certainly those residents will find the noise of the Crown much greater that the noise from
the Sekforde.

64. If the number permitted were 20 and we had 16 drinking outside and 5 friends arrived
together, is it proposed that we send one of the 5 away? Or ask him to drink inside in a
corner on his own?  And when we have reached 20, are we expected to have to someone
monitor to make sure a friend does not join an existing group and take the number to a
prohibited 21? I think this would become impossible.

65. The people who make noise from talking and laughing whilst they are enjoying themselves
outside are either local people or people who work for all the amazing small businesses that
have helped make Clerkenwell so vibrant and successful. Many residents of Sekforde street
and Woodbridge Street are regular guests at the pub.

Page 433



Meeting on 22nd October 2018 

66. On 22nd October 2018, I invited everyone interested to a public meeting in the ballroom at
the Sekforde. This was attended by Ms Carol Jones and Mr Andrew Ford from Islington
council. It was very good of them to come after normal working hours.

67. Ms Jones explained the review hearing and suggested that this had arisen because of the
complaints. She also suggested that we had failed to heed the warning that was given at the
meeting in August. I must say I thought this latter claim seemed rather unfair. At the
meeting in August we were asked to stop people going across the road to Woodbridge
Street and to have a door man or woman on duty outside on Thursday and Friday evenings
to prevent anti- social behaviour and prevent the pavement being blocked. This is exactly
what we have done. But it did not stop the complaints.

68. I also presented a series of photographs to show that the customers of many pubs in the
immediate vicinity were substantially blocking the pavements on Friday 19th October at 6 pm
in a manner which the Sekforde was not. I do not know of any proposal to limit the number
outside these pubs. Were this to happen, then I suspect they would start also to lose money
and would eventually close.

69. Over all, I was very disappointed with the meeting. It was dominated at the beginning by an
  lady. I have never met this lady before and she does

not in fact live anywhere near the pub and I now know 
.  She may not have appreciated but 

.  I think she set the tone for what could have been a much
better evening. I thought there was a great deal of personal hostility and bad manners
displayed towards me which I did not expect after I had invited people into my home for
friendly consultation. I was accused of being unapproachable. The whole point of the
meeting was so that people could approach me with any practical suggestion as to what I
could do to reduce noise consistent with keeping the pub open. I was there to listen and
respond.

70. I was also disappointed that many of the people on Sekforde and Woodbridge street who
had told me that they thought the pub was wonderful did not say anything or did not attend
the meeting. But I can also understand that the atmosphere was so unpleasant that it was
rather difficult for them. I did not hear of any coherent or practical suggestion as to how we
could limit noise made by customers consistent with the pub remaining viable as a business.

71. I would say however, that everyone said that they wanted the pub to remain open and no
one objected to the suggestion that I made which was to allow customers to congregate on
the opposite side of Woodbrdge Street thereby reducing crowding and noise on Sekforde
street.

Comments on the pollution team’s proposals

72. I turn now to comment in detail on each of the pollution team’s proposals.

Page 434



Doors and windows to the premises shall be closed by 20.00 pm every evening and shall 
be closed at all time if any events such as quiz comedy nights or conference are held at the 
premises. 

Comment: I do not regard this as acceptable at all. It is essential that at least some of the 
windows are open to allow cooling and ventilation. At a private re-union of old school 
friends and our teachers in June this year there was no music being played in the ball room 
but a lady from  complained of the noise from our conversations and 
asked me to close the windows. I did this. At the meeting on 22nd October 2018 she 
complained that we had re-opened them two hours later. That was true. But that is because 
one former school mistress in her eighties had fainted because of the heat and build up of 
carbon-dioxide in the room. A medical doctor was in attendance and it was he who re-
opened the windows. I do not think we would ever get listed building consent to install air 
conditioning units all of which would require external pipe work. But air-conditioning units 
are hugely unfriendly to the environment because they consume a great deal of energy.  

It would be hypocritical and contrary to the sustainability values that we and the local 
authority are trying to promote to do so. Besides, on some evenings the ballroom forms part 
of my own home. It surely is acceptable for me to have my own windows open when it is 
only me my family and friends using the room.  

I would however accept a condition that the two windows on Sekforde Street in the 
ballroom be closed by 20.00 pm when in public use. The two windows at the bay front of the 
building would then remain open to allow some cooling and ventilation.  

The use of doors to the Sekforde Street shall cease at 21.00 every night and notices shall 
be displayed to that effect. 

Comment: I would be opposed to this. I think having two doors is important in case of an 
emergency such as a fire where the pub may become very quickly full of smoke and people 
need to escape quickly. I fear after the London Bridge attacks that there is a very remote 
possibility that someone might object to the content of our debates and stage some sort of 
attack. If an attacker were to enter one entrance, then people can escape through the other. 
The debates we plan may be controversial and so may be some of our guests.  

I would however accept locking the door to Sekforde Street if the sub-committee thought 
that the risk I have described was worth taking to secure reduced noise on Sekforde Street. 
But this should surely be at 22.30 when people are no longer permitted outside. 

Prominent clear and legible notice must be displayed at all exits requesting the public to 
respect the needs of local residents and to leave the area quietly. 

Comment: Subject to the grammatical correction of “all” to “both”, I agree to this condition. 

Page 435



Tables and chairs may be placed outside subject to the issue of a tables and chairs licence 
from Street Trading. 

Comment: This proposed condition has nothing to do with the complaints about noise or 
pavement blocking. 

I do not accept the sub-committee has any power to impose such a condition as it would 
involve it usurping the function of a court to determine disputes as to legal title to property. 
I maintain that I own the “freehold in fee simple” of the pavement running along Sekforde 
Street and at least part of the pavement running along Woodbridge Street for reasons that I 
have set out in correspondence with the local authority. I do not need a licence to place 
tables and chairs on property which I own. The local authority concedes that if indeed I own 
the land then I do not need a table and chairs licence. It has disputed my claim to ownership. 

Since at least 1993 Youngs has placed tables and chairs outside the pub without applying for 
a licence to do so. In April 2005 when I first purchased a share of the freehold there were 
seven tables outside and they are on display in the auction catalogue photograph. No 
evidence has been produced to me that the local authority has ever attempted to charge 
anyone else for a table and chairs licence.  

The local authority has received legal advice from its own lawyer Mr David Daniels which it 
has published and thereby waived the privilege that would ordinarily attach to that advice. I 
agree with Mr Daniel’s advice, and in particular what he says about the effect of section 
263(1) of the Highways Act 1980. If it were the case that the pavement is maintainable at 
public expense (and I have seen no evidence that it is) Mr Daniels correctly says that the 
highway authority would have in law “a fee simple determinable” in “the top two spits” of 
the pavement. Its very limited interest would be sufficient to enable it to discharge its duty 
to maintain the highway. It would not give it any other rights of ownership which are 
enjoyed by me.  

At the public meeting that was held on 22nd October 2018, Ms Jones claimed the local 
authority was disputing my claim to ownership of the pavement. If so, that can only be on 
the basis that it rejects legal advice from its own lawyers.   

If the local authority disagrees with my views as to my claimed title, then it ought to sue for 
declaratory relief or trespass in the county court. I am not encouraging litigation and I think 
in this case it would be especially foolish, but the court is the proper forum for deciding such 
disputes not the licensing sub-committee.  

If I am wrong about my claimed title, then of course I will apply for a licence or remove the 
tables altogether or move them to an area of the property which the court determines I do 
own. 

Tables and chairs shall not be set out on the Sekforde Street frontage beyond the window 
closest to 35 Sekforde Street 

Comment: This is unacceptable for the reasons set out above. The table presently closest to 
35 Sekforde Street is in the same position as shown on the April 2005 photograph. There 

Page 436



was a table in that position when  and  bought their property in the full 
knowledge that any licensee of the pub would wish to continue to place the table in that 
position. 

Any outside drinking area shall be cleared of customers by 22.30 

Comment. This is already a condition. 

Any outside furniture permitted must be taken out of use and disabled by 22.30 every 
night. 

Comment. Save that “permitted” should be removed I would agree to this condition which is 
really the same as the existing condition.  

A maximum of 20 customers may be permitted to stand outside with drinks until 22.30. 
The area of vertical drinking shall be agreed with Street Trading and subject to permission 
being granted and the area for vertical drinking shall not be in Sekforde street 

Comment: This proposed condition is completely unacceptable and outrageous. Even my 
most implacable opponents at the 22nd October 2018 meeting conceded that this was unfair. 
The pub could not possibly survive with such a restriction for reasons that I have set out 
above. By making the condition subject to agreement from Street Trading, it allows “Street 
Trading” power to refuse anything proposed. Why should not the sub-committee resolve 
any issue as to where people may stand?  The frontage on Sekforde street has been used for 
many decades with no restriction on numbers. Before my period of running the pub, 
residents made a complaint that there were 200 people outside. This is in the notes supplied 
to us. We have never had more than about 120. It is an acceptable manageable and 
necessary number typically lasting for about three hours on Fridays in the summer evenings. 
It is far less than the Crown Tavern which will have a similar cost structure to meet.  

If this condition or anything like it were to be imposed, then it is the equivalent of revoking 
the licence and forcing the closure of the pub which every single one of our neighbours has 
said they do not want.  

No customer shall be permitted outside on the Sekforde Street side of the premises after 
22.30 on any night. 

Comment: This is completely unacceptable. It would prevent customers standing outside the 
pub in Sekforde street without drinks whilst smoking even if they were completely silent. 
They would not be able to leave the pub and walk along Sekforde street something which 
any other citizen is entitled to do. Many of our customers have homes on Sekforde street.  

A door supervisor shall be present every Thursdays Fridays and Saturday and any other 
night when an event may be held may be held such as quiz/comedy nights when a large 
attendance is anticipated. 

Page 437



Comment: 

We have had an outside supervisor Ms Lisa Jovanovic every Thursdays and Fridays since our 
August meeting apart from two occasions when she was ill. Saturday is the quietest evening 
of the entire week with often no more than six customers at any one time and certainly 
none is needed on Saturdays. I think it is desirable to have an outside supervisor on 
Thursdays and Fridays and I intend to maintain the existing voluntary arrangement. Large 
attendance is not defined which is unsatisfactory. The claim that is made is that these 
“events” can be heard whilst they are taking place inside. I do not see how having a door 
supervisor would have any impact on the noise generated. I do not think there is any need 
for this prescriptive condition when we have already been doing on relevant nights 
something proposed by the local authority in August.  

The door supervisor will patrol the outside area and will supervise the dispersal of patrons 
and be present until all customers have left the vicinity 

Comment: 

I think this is over prescriptive. Our door supervisor has been doing this but using some 
common sense. Obviously if there are only two academics from the City University left 
finishing a beer on Thursday at midnight pm and no one outside then I think it is acceptable 
for Ms Jovanovic to help clear glasses. 

A limiter shall be installed to restrict all amplified sound to ambient background levels 
including amplified voice 

Comment 

Most of the complaints have arisen from noise made by people when we are very busy. I do 
not like pubs with loud music and my staff know this. I really think they can be trusted to 
gauge responsibly what is acceptable, and I oppose this condition.  

But if a condition about music noise is thought essential, then I think it better actually to 
stipulate an acceptable level of decibels and I think that level should be determined by 
measuring what can in fact be heard in neighbouring properties. The television in the ball 
room can be extremely loud but the sound made is not “amplified” as there is no amplifier. 

I also think it would be better to have a lower acceptable level after 10.30 pm.  

I have raised twice with Ms Jones the possibility of my carrying out tests to establish the real 
level of noise in neighbouring properties. But she has not responded to my emails. Music 
volume is something we can control. I repeat my offer to appoint a joint expert to measure 
noise inside other residences to help determine what should be the maximum volume of all 
music whether amplified or not. 

The sound insulation properties of the premises shall be monitored maintained and 
adapted as necessary to ensure that that amplified sound such as impact sounds within 

Page 438



the premises does not cause nuisance or undue disturbance to occupiers of nearby 
premises 

Comment. 

I am afraid I regard this as rather nebulous. I have no idea what I would actually be expected 
to do. The existing law of tort prevents any one causing a nuisance to another occupier of a 
property. But what constitutes a nuisance is always fact sensitive. I am not sure what the 
distinction is between “nuisance” and “undue disturbance”.  

Noise and odour from any dispersal of cooking smells serving the building shall not cause 
nuisance to the occupants of any property in the vicinity. 

Comment 

The recently installed modern flue is located in the right angle of the triangular new building 
where it should be. Cooking smells are directed away from  and towards 
my own window in the hall of my flat. The pipes against the party walls in fact are not flues. 
They merely suck in fresh air.  

This is a completely unnecessary condition. The existing law of tort prevents any one causing 
a nuisance to another. The old flue at ground floor level produced a great deal of odour. The 
previous problem has been solved by the new commercial kitchen and the modern flue and 
related equipment. In contrast to the previous situation there are now no discernible 
cooking smells. 

There shall be no collection of refuge or consumables between the hours of 21.00 and 10 
and at no time on Sundays or Bank holidays. 

Comment 

This is completely unacceptable. Our waste is collected by the local authority itself and we 
have no control over the time of those collections. Deliveries are made at a time which is 
convenient to the brewery or food delivery company and we have no control over the times. 
The kitchen receives fresh produce every morning at about 7 am at which time the chef 
starts to prepare on busy days. The breweries generally deliver between 8 am and 10 am. I 
am not aware of any complaint or difficulty over the collection of waste or delivery of 
supplies. 

In the event of noise nuisance being established the licensee shall appoint a noise 
consultant registered with the Institute of Accoustics or Association of Noise Consultants 
to prepare a scheme of sound insulation and noise control measure to prevent persons in 
the neighbourhood being unreasonably disturbed by noise from the premises. The survey 
shall also investigations and specify remedies for the structural transmission of sound. The 

Page 439



scheme shall be submitted for approval by the Council, and the scheme fully implemented 
to the satisfaction of the Council and the licensee notified in writing prior to any further 
events at the premises. 

Comment 

I am afraid I regard this proposal as officious bureaucratic unclear and unnecessary. 
According to Ms Brothers, Youngs never complied with a condition in its licence (and now 
my licence) about obtaining a report. You Tube has many videos of the pub during Youngs’ 
time where live music was often played at a volume that would be quite unacceptable to 
me.  

On the insistence of Ms. Brothers, I instructed a company to do what Youngs ought to have 
done years ago and were never criticised for not doing. I was not free to choose my own 
sound engineer I had to select from one of three companies recommended by the local 
authority. The resulting report did not suggest that we needed to make any changes. It was 
all a rather pointless exercise that changed nothing and cost a great deal. It was an example 
of needless infliction of cost on a citizen for no sensible public benefit. The local authority 
may have been hoping that an expert it recommended would propose all manner of 
expensive measures. But he did not and for good reason. They are not needed and/or could 
not be lawfully implemented. There is no need for yet another wasteful report. 

Changes that could improve sound insulation such as secondary glazing would require listed 
building permission, and this would be unlikely to be granted.  

What is meant by “in the event of noise nuisance being established”? Established by whom 
and by what procedure? Nuisance is a tort and courts generally determine whether a tort 
has been committed and by whom it has been committed. The noise that is claimed to have 
affected my immediate neighbours is largely caused by customers using a busy pub as they 
have for many years. I do not believe it constitutes what the law regards as a nuisance.  

Invitation 

73. I should like the Licensing Sub Committee members to come to the Sekforde at a time of
their choosing and witness for themselves what it is like and consider how it compares with
neighbouring pubs. I should like the members to talk to me my staff and our customers.

74. I should like to be able to do something that is practical and consistent with the pub
remaining viable. I think use of part of the Woodbridge Street pavement would help. But all
pubs in Clerkenwell do make noise especially when they are very busy. My immediate
neighbours and I have chosen to live next to a pub in a wonderful late Georgian street where
many people would dearly love to live despite the pub or perhaps because of the pub. I think
that is a highly salient fact which should be remembered by them.

Page 440



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 09:21
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde Arms

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

To whom it may concern, 

I have learned that The newly opened Sekforde Arms is under threat of loosing its license.  

I would like to say that this would be a great tragedy in that this building has historically been a pub for a 
long time and was one of the first buildings built on this street.  
It has provided a new venue drawing locals and new faces alike to the bustling Clerkenwell area. It is a 
great pub with many interesting things happening alongside its great offerings of food and drink. 

Kind regards, 

Rep 72

Page 441



Rep 73

Page 442



Page 443



Page 444



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 14:35
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde Arms

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

I am writing to voice my support of 
The Sekforde Arms  

I really enjoy spending time at the Sekforde especially knowing my money is part used for the good causes  

It’s a unique establishment incredible well run by manager  Harry & his Staff Long May it run !!! 

I have lived in islington more than 30 years as house owner bringing up my two children now men both educated in 
the local schools  

I’m very disappointed  in Islington  Licensing pursuing issues caused by a few disgruntled neighbours that  if 
implemented will have an effect on many  

Rep 74

Page 445



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 19:52
To: Licensing
Subject: Licence Review of The Sekforde Arms

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Good Evening,  

I write to offer my support for The Sekforde Arms.  

I have visited this pub on many occasions before and after the works and was very saddened to hear that it 
is up for licensing review. There was a great fear when the pub was purchased that it would suffer the same faith 
of many others and be lost as a traditional pub for the community‐ for those who work in the area as well as local 
residence. I was delighted to see such effort put into restoring the pub and to hear the passion the owner has for 
the building when attending talks there. I have attended a number of talks by extremely interesting individuals on a 
wide range of topics and have attended on other occasions for a quiz night or just to dine. I have never seen any 
issue of unruly behaviour; excessive noise or evidence of any other issues raised by complaints.  

I dearly hope that this pub license remains unaffected by this process and that it continues as the 
welcoming “local” that I have come to love. 

Regards 

Rep 75

Page 446



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 12:08
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde pub

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi there, 

I was at the Sekforde Arms over the weekend and was informed that they are in danger of losing their license due to 
some noise complaints from neighbours. I think this would be a real loss to the community if this happened. I've 
never thought that the pub was any louder than other pubs in residential areas ‐ indeed with the exception of the 
world cup matches, I've never noticed the pub being loud at all (and I think that a few places were guilty of being 
noisy during the world cup...). In fact, music is kept fairly quiet there and the staff there are very diligent about 
closing the doors after a certain time to minimise sound leaking outside. 

I really think it would be a loss to the community if this pub were forced to close ‐ not only has the pub itself has 
been operational as a public house since the 19th century, but it is a lovely escape from some of the city pubs and 
bars nearby which are definitely too noisy (and expensive) in my opinion. Furthermore, it is now trying to become 
one of the most sustainable pubs in London, with great waste and energy policies which I think should be rewarded 
not punished.  

I hope you take my comments into consideration. 

Best wishes, 

Rep 76

Page 447



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 15:32
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde Arms - Licensing Changes

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Afternoon,  

I am writing in relation to the opposed alterations to the licensing of the Sekforde Arms in Clerkenwell.  

I want to categroically state how fantastic an addition to the local community this pub has been, I used to work in 
the building next door – and now use this as a regular meeting space for friends and family due to the friendly and 
welcoming environment; the wide array of events both cultural and pub typical (their quizzes are great!) and the 
delicious food and drink. Not to mention the overwhelmingly brilliant (and all too rare) fact that this is not funding a 
large corporate, it instead is a locally run business and charity venture, which gives oppourtunity to local students 
who seek to make a positive change to the world and should be supported in doing so, rather than fought and 
admonished.  

A quick glance at their scholarship criteria, and a chance peek at the warmth of the exchanges going on inside, 
would make any proposed changes that could affect the profitbality of such an enterprising and philanthropic 
business, immediately dismissable. This development, an award winning one I might add, brought colour and life to 
an otherwise dull and lifeless part of Clerkenwell and was enormously welcomed by my colleagues and myself as a 
breath of life into the area.  

With the sheer amount of darkness going in the world, I think we need more people like the owners of this pub in 
the world, and less like the people seeking to change the licensing agreement; who would do well to think of the 
vast number of people who benefit and enjoy this pub and the multiplier effect the opportunites its scholarships are 
likley to have on our local area and indeed the global community as a whole.  

I trust you will make the right decision on this!  

Kind regards  

Rep 77

Page 448



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 17:11
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde Pub

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Islington Council, 

It has come to my attention that the Sekforde pub’s licence is under review. I would like to make it known that I 
regularly attend this establishment and have never known it to be particularly noisy in the evenings. In fact the staff 
are very good at making sure that we are all inside later in the evening. This is an important pub in the area and it 
contributes hugely not just to the local area but through it’s charity appeals, intellectual events and progressive 
ideas. I cannot help but think that complaints must come from residents who are new to the area and who have a 
general dislike of living near a pub, rather than because of any true problem with disturbances. We must protect 
well behaved pubs such as the Sekforde in London. 

Regards, 

Rep 78

Page 449



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 10:48
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde Arms, 34 Sekford Street EC1R 0HA - Licence Review

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Dear Licencing Committee, 

I wish to add my support for the renewal of the Licence for the Sekforde Arms.  

There have, and are, far too many pubs struggling – and closing in Britain now so it seems a great pity that this well 
run pub is currently under scrutiny. The building has been refurbished to a very high standard and should be viewed 
as an asset to the area. The owner, manager and staff are well aware of their responsibilities to the neighbouring 
homes and make every effort to be considerate. This is not a noisy pub. 

A pub has been located here for over a 100 years so it would be a travesty if the licence wasn’t approved. It is a 
friendly, inclusive pub, serving great food and providing a warm welcome to all. Just as a community pub should be.

Yours faithfully, 

Rep 79 

Page 450



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 09:27
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hello 

I am writing as I have heard that The Sekforde is under review for its licence.  

I am disappointed that this is the case. The pub has served the local area for near 200 years, and is a vital 
part of the community. The recent restoration has made it into one of the most unique and authentic 
London Georgian pubs, a very rare survivor from this era.  

I am confident that Islington will do the right thing and work with the pub owner to resolve this issue and 
make sure the pub stays open for all to enjoy.  

Regards 

Rep 80

Page 451



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 15:00
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

To whom it may concern, 

I hope this finds you well. 

I’ve hear that the Sekforde has been the subject of a noise complaint which could close it down. 

I think this is absolutely absurd, it is absolutely no noisier than any normal pub and isn’t open particularly late, 
certainly no more so than others in your borough. 

It’s one of my favourite pubs in London and puts on fantastic cultural events supporting local people in the creative 
industries in a way few local businesses do. 

To close it would be a terrible shame ‐ especially as the pub is run as a charitable initiative. 

Best, 

Rep 81

Page 452



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 14:13
To: Licensing
Subject: The sekforde

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

If a pub has been around for 190 years and you move next door to that pub and then you complain about that pub. 
Well, I guess you should be the one under review, not the pub. 

The Sekforde should remain and the pathetic people who complain should be shipped off to a pub free island where 
they can live a happy pub free life. 

Yours sincerely, 

Sent from my iPhone 

Rep 82

Page 453



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 18:57
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde

Dear Sir/Madam, 

It has recently come to our attention that the license for The Sekforde pub has been tabled for review following a 
number of complaints from local residents. It seems that residents have basked in the silence of the area during the 
lengthy closure of the pub and have now been reminded of the building use class.  

I strongly urge Islington Council to continue to support this local business and the hundreds of patrons who enjoy 
this beautiful architecturally prominent building.  

Kind regards, 

Rep 83

Page 454



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 16:26
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde Licence Review

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi there,  

I understand the licence for the Sekforde in Clerkenwell is currently under review. Having been a frequent visitor, I 
ask that you take into account the efforts that landlord David Lonsdale, and his team, have made to create a 
community‐orientated pub. I would also like the licensing body to be aware that on numerous occasions, the 
Sekforde has donated all of its profits to charitable organisations. 

Complaints should, of course, be taken seriously and resolved appropriately. But I feel that too draconian a ruling 
could potentially imperil the pub’s sincere attempts to benefit the local areal; and even its very existence. 

Thanks, 

Rep 84

Page 455



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 31 October 2018 09:33
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde Public House

Dear Sir / Madam, 

I wish to express my support for this local pub and wish to see it continue trading. 

I have been going to this pub ever since I moved to Clerkenwell 20 years ago. It was a sadness to see it closed but 
the re‐opening has seen an astonishing transformation. It has been beautifully and skilfully refurbished and 
restored. This has taken place In an age when independent local public houses have been declining rapidly.  

I am unaware of any excessive noise emanating form the premises. Certainly no more than was always the case ‐ 
just a normal amount of noise you would expect from any respectable public house. Of course they are not noiseless 
but any person in occupation nearby must obviously know that when locating to the vicinity of a public house. 

Should the Sekforde be forced to close because it was no longer economic, it would be a sad loss for the community 
and heritage of the area. 

Yours sincerely, 

Rep 85 

Page 456



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 14:51
To: Licensing
Subject: Licensing Review at the Sekforde

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Sir/Madam, 

I walk past the Sekforde most days and have done so for many years – and did so when the previous pub was 
operating. On occasions I have had a drink in both versions of the pub. I am aware of the licensing review. From my 
own perspective, there has been no change in the summer evenings in the numbers of customers standing outside 
and under the tree on the corner opposite – they have been about the same. On Thursday and Friday evenings in 
the good weather is when this mostly occurs – as it does for every pub. I live in a street which is close to Plaquemine 
Lock and The Lamb – and exactly the same applies.  

I have never thought that the groups of drinkers were rowdy; simply the usual level of talking. When I became 
aware of the complaints, it struck me that the situation was no different now than it was for the previous pub – and 
no different to the other locations in Islington where pubs are on the street corners. 

Yours faithfully, 

Rep 86 

Page 457



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 28 October 2018 22:44
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: The Sekforde - Pub

Good Evening Carol, 

I am writing this e-mail regarding the issue around the pub - The Sekforde on Sekforde Street. I understand 
that some complains have been made about the pub and so I would like to give you my personal opinion on 
it with hope that it will help this case.  

I live in  (Sekforde Street) just by the pub with my wife and daughter for almost 2 years now. 
For the first year that we lived here the pub was still not completed and this street had very little 'life' and 
movement apart from the normal coming in and out of each ones houses. There was actually one time we 
witnessed a woman being robed in the middle of the afternoon in a Saturday just by our door, this street was 
a bit empty and to be honest it lacked something like the Sekforde.  

After Sekforde's opening of course the street has been a bit busier, specially during Friday and Saturday but 
we have absolutely no complain about it, on the contrary we find that the Sekforde has brought a new life to 
this street, making it safer, with a nice atmosphere and the pub itself is a very tasteful and modern one 
which attracts nice people to the neighborhood. As I said before we have  and never we had problems 
with noise coming from the Pub, we actually go there for drinks with friends and relatives all the time and 
we also take our baby there during the day because it is such a civilized place. It would be a shame to see 
this Pub close just after it opened and after bringing so many good things to this street, to be honest we have 
never felt safer specially at night on this street and we never had any robbery problems again since it 
opened. We also had the opportunity to meet the owner and he appears to be a person open to change and 
suggestions, so I am sure that a solution could be found without closing the pub as I really think this pub 
benefits all of the neighborhood for the aforementioned reasons. 

Please let us know if you need any further information and we will be happy to help. 

Kind regards, 

Rep 87

Page 458



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 09:38
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: Sekforde Arms

Dear Miss Jones, 
It would be a shame if the pub in Sekforde Street would close. It’s a decent place and 
indispensible to meet neighbours. I would strongly urge to extend/continue the licence. 

Rep 88 

Page 459



Rep 89

Page 460



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 11:32
To: Jones, Carol
Subject: Sekforde Arms Licence Review

Dear Ms Jones 

I understand that there is a pending review of the licence for The Sekforde public house. 

As a long-term resident of Sekforde Street I must say that I have never been adversely affected by excessive noise, 
crowds or antisocial behaviour associated with the pub.  In my opinion it is an asset to our street - an enjoyable and 
attractive place to eat / drink which is also an historic local landmark. 

If other residents are being disturbed by busy nights (quiz, special events etc) I feel that the employment of a door 
supervisor would be an excellent idea.   

On a different note, I must add that I personally feel safer walking along the street in the evenings when the pub is 
open.  When it was closed the street was too quiet and became a hotspot for moped-crime.   

Yours sincerely 

Rep 90

Page 461



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 17:53
To: Licensing
Subject: The Sekforde: Islington

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

To whom it may concern,  

I am writing to express my support for the Sekforde Arms. I feel it is a tremendous shame that the pub could 
be sanctioned for being succesful. It is not a noisy or aggressive pub like many of the pubs in the area.  

It is a peaceful one that has a huge social and environmental impact that is very inspiring. it's a fundamental 
part of the area and helps to build a strong sense of community amongst the majority of residents. It's an 
establishment that brings the community together rather than divides it.  

Many thanks 

The linked image cannot be displayed.  The file may have been moved, renamed, or deleted. Verify that the link points to the correct file and location.

Rep 91

Page 462



Rep 92

Page 463



Page 464



Rep 93

Page 465



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 29 October 2018 11:58
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde Licensing

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi, 

I am an Islington resident (  and I saw that the Sekforde’s licensing is under threat. I’d like to question 
that decision – it is a lovely pub which I very much enjoy. Furthermore, it is a social enterprise which helps to fund 
scholarships for disadvantaged youth and has won awards for being amongst the most eco‐friendly pubs in London. 
I have also never witnessed any trouble or disturbance there in the form of aggressive or threatening behaviour. I 
just can’t understand why it would be under threat. 

Please let me know if you have any further questions on my experiences at the Sekforde. 

Best, 

Rep 94

Page 466



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 26 October 2018 09:54
To: Licensing
Subject: Sekforde Arms

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Good morning, 
I would just like to lend my support to the Sekforde Arms remaining open. I've think it adds to the character 
of the road and has been a very successful restoration.  
It would be a great shame for the area if it were to close. 
Many thanks, 

--  

Rep 95

Page 467



To	the	Licensing	Sub-Committee,	London	Borough	of	Islington	

27th	October	2018	

Dear	Sir/Madam	

Sekforde	Arms	

I	am	writing	in	support	of	the	Sekforde	Arms	in	Clerkenwell.	I	strongly	oppose	any	alterations	to	the	
current	licence.		

I	regularly	visit	the	pub	with	my	friends	after	work	whose	offices	are	on	the	neighbouring	streets.	The	
pub	is	such	an	asset	to	local	businesses	who	rely	on	it	as	a	place	to	hold	meetings	and	have	drinks	after	
work.	The	pub	has	been	beautifully	renovated,	winning	multiple	RIBA	awards,	demonstrating	the	owner’s	
passion	for	saving	and	contributing	to	the	local	community.	Additionally,	it	contributes	its	profits	to	the	
Sekforde	Scholarship	charity,	further	highlighting	the	brilliant	result	of	this	pub	being	re-opened.			

It	is	such	a	shame	that	a	few	local	residents	look	to	ruin	the	pub	through	licence	variations	that	would	
render	it	an	unviable	business,	inevitably	causing	it	to	close.	I	strongly	feel	the	level	of	complaints	has	
been	borne	from	local	gossip,	with	more	regard	for	personal	property	prices,	than	the	contribution	of	the	
pub	to	the	local	community.	It	is	just	what	you	would	expect	for	London	pub.	In	fact,	most	of	the	time	it	
has	been	on	the	quiet	side	and	certainly	much	quieter	than	other	pubs	I	go	to	in	the	general	area.	

Yours	faithfully,	

Rep 96

Page 468



Ms Carol Jones, 
Alcohol and Entertainment Licenses, 
Islington Council,  
222 Upper St,  
London,  
N1 1XR 

October 28th 2018 

Dear Ms Jones 

I am writing to you regarding the licensing review of The Sekforde, Sekforde St EC1. 
I live  the pub and have lived here for twelve years. In my view The 
Sekforde represents a valuable asset to the street.  
I know there have been some complaints but as both a neighbour to and customer of the 
pub I am personally unaware of any problems.  

• The pub isn’t open late, and the numbers drinking outside look to me much the
same as when it was run by Young’s and are comparable with other pubs in the
area.

• Sekforde Street and the surrounding area is often deserted outside working hours
which can make it feel unsafe. There is no question that having the pub there with
its customers’ and lights makes the area feel safer. Around a year ago, prior to the
pub’s re-opening a woman was violently robbed on Sekforde Street on a Saturday
afternoon in daylight. At the time I felt had the pub been open and with people
outside the thief may well have had second thoughts or been apprehended when he
cycled off.

• It’s apparent the owner could have made a lot more money had he converted the
building into flats. Pubs are closing at such a rate (we’ve just lost the White Bear in
St John Street) surely anyone running one particularly an independently owned one
should be supported.

• I know the owner lives locally in the community and in my view he has greatly
improved the appearance of the building. It’s clear too from the products he sells
and the events he puts on that the pub is run on an ethical rather than purely for
profit basis.

Hopefully any issues can be resolved and this vital amenity saved. 

Yours Sincerely 

Rep 97

Page 469



1

Jones, Carol

From:
Sent: 30 October 2018 08:05
To: Licensing
Subject: Licence review of The Sekforde Pub

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

I want to add my support for renewal of this licence for The Sekforde Public House. I want the pub to 
continue trading and do not find it creates excessive noise, It has been in our community and part of it for 
decades and long may this continue. 

Rep 98

Page 470



Appendix 5 

Conditions suggested by Islington’s Noise Service 

1. Doors and windows to the premises shall be closed by 20:00 every evening and shall be closed at all
times if any events such a quiz, comedy nights or conferences are held at the premises.

2. The use of the door to the Sekforde Street elevation shall cease at 21:00 every night and notices
shall be displayed to that effect.

3. Prominent, clear and legible notices must be displayed at all exits requesting the public to respect the
needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly.

4. Tables and chairs may be placed out subject to the issue of a tables and chairs licence from Street
Trading.

5. Tables and chairs shall not be set out on the Sekforde Street frontage beyond the window closest to
35 Sekforde Street.

6. Any outside drinking area shall be cleared of customers by 22:30.

7. Any outside furniture permitted must be taken out of use and disabled by 22:30 every night.

8. A maximum of 20 customers may be permitted to stand outside with drinks until 22:30. The area for
vertical drinking shall be agreed with Street Trading and subject to permission being granted. The
area for vertical drinking shall not be in Sekforde Street.

9. No customers shall be permitted outside on the Sekforde Street side of the premises after 22:30 on
any night.

10. A door supervisor shall be present every Thursday, Friday and Saturday and on any
other night when an event may be held such as quiz/comedy nights or any nights when a large
attendance is anticipated.

11. The door supervisor will patrol the outside area and will supervise the dispersal of patrons and be
present outside until all customers have left the vicinity.

12. A limiter shall be installed to restricted to all amplified sound to ambient background levels including
amplified voice.

13. The sound insulation properties of the premises shall be monitored, maintained and adapted as
necessary to ensure that amplified sound played or other sound such as impact sounds within the
premises does not cause nuisance or undue disturbance to occupiers of nearby premises.

14. Noise and/or Odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells serving the building shall
not cause nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity.

15. There shall be no collections of refuse or deliveries of consumables between the hours of 21:00 and
10:00 and at no time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

16. In the event of noise nuisance being established the licensee shall appoint a noise consultant
registered with the Institute of Acoustics or Association of Noise Consultants to prepare a scheme of
sound insulation and noise control measures, to prevent persons in the neighbourhood from being
unreasonably disturbed by noise from the premises. The survey shall also include investigations and
specify remedies for the structural transmission of sound. The scheme shall be submitted for
approval by the Council, and the approved scheme fully implemented to the satisfaction of the
Council and the licensee notified in writing accordingly prior to any further events at the premises.

Page 471



Title: Sekforde 50m

Printed By:
RO RO

Printed On:
15-11-2018

MapBox

Page 1 of 1

15/11/2018http://gisappint/MapThat/Default.aspx

Page 472


	Agenda
	A6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	B1 177a Blackstock Road, N5 2LT - New premises licence
	B2 Benugo, 116 St John Street, EC1V 4JS - New premises licence
	B3 Fora Space, 71 Central Street, EC1V 8BU - Premises licence variation
	B4 The Sekforde Arms, 34 Sekforde Street, EC1R OHH - Review of premises licence
	LSC Report Nov 27 November 2018
	Subject: PREMISES LICENCE REVIEW APPLICATION
	5.1 To determine the application to review the premises licence under Section 52 of the Licensing Act 2003.
	a) to modify the conditions of the licence; and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them are altered, omitted or any new condition is added;
	b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
	c) to remove the designated premises supervisor;
	d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
	e) to revoke the licence;
	f) the Committee also have the option to leave the licence in its existing state;
	g) the Committee also has the power in relation to steps a) and b) to provide that the modification and exclusion only has effect for a limited period not exceeding three months.

	LN4223-091115-Licence
	Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
	Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
	Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
	Annex 4 – Plans
	Where the licence is time limited the dates
	State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited

	Representations Redacted in Support of the Application VERS2_Redacted
	Allen, Victor-Rep
	Anna Willetts
	Bill Bleakley
	Charles Cook
	Claude Penchina
	Craighead, Alison
	Dan Neidle
	Edwina Morton
	Elaine Lowry
	Elizabeth Evans & Stephen Rothholz
	Evans Liz
	Faint, Matthew
	G.R  & M.G Bretten
	Gabriel and Noemie Voisin
	Jale Ozayas
	Jon Thomson & Alison Craighead
	LA Rep - Sekford Arms
	Leora Neidle
	Lynette Szeto
	Mandy and Alberto Bergantino
	Meira Penchina
	Michael Tabona
	Mongia, Punita
	Monica Martinez
	Mrs Mann
	Samantha Mylonas
	Stephen Rothholz
	Thompson, Katie - Rep
	TS-rep-add challenge
	Veronica Steer
	Wendy Anthony

	Reps Redacted in support of the premises - Redacted VERS2_Redacted
	ALex Prince
	Alexander Ephrussi
	Amber Muldoon
	Andrew O'Leary
	Annette Kellow
	Bahar Tabatabaie
	Calum Millbank
	Campbell, Max
	Chloe Marshal
	Chris Dyson-Architects
	Chris Finch & Adrienne Morgan
	Christopher Daniel
	Clara Carnot
	Dan Cruickshank
	Dan Jestico
	Diana Raican - Address
	Eileen O'Donnell
	Elizabeth Webster
	Emilie Parry-Williams
	F M Baker
	Flora Anderson
	Freddy Eggleton
	George Smith
	Gideon Purser
	Gillian Hopkins
	Gokulan Bhanu
	Hadi Sarmadi
	Harry Smith
	Helen McBrien
	Ian Harper
	Ioannis Tzelati
	Jack Rowlinson
	Jacqueline Leckenby
	Jo Theobald
	Joanne Oliver
	Kat Martin
	Kate Rhode
	Katie-Hannah Wright
	Lisa Jovanovic
	Lonsdale, David
	Louis Russell
	M Bowen, G Beggio, B Armstrong
	Margaret Dunn
	Maria Long
	Mary Langsdale
	Matt Juden-Bloomfield
	Max Eyre
	Maxine Young
	Michael Archer
	Milo Edwards
	Nathan Whitchelo
	Oliver Beetschen
	Patrick Baker
	Paul Bogan
	Paul Rees
	Pedro Medeiro
	Peter Alter
	Prudence Seward
	Rebecca Tucker
	Rollo Millership
	Stuart McBrien 2
	Stuart McBrien
	Theo Sands
	Thomas Ashton
	Tom Raffe
	Tucker, Richard
	Valerie Burnham





